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Role of Neuropsychology
in the Diagnosis of FASD

- Identify pattern of current strengths and weaknesses
of the client

- Determine consistency with research on FASD

. Address the timeline of cognitive deficits (prior testing)

- Addressed more extensively by the psychologist

focusing on historical consistency

- Identify competing etiologies

.- Render an opinion of meeting criteria for FASD based
on CDC Guidelines and provide DSM-5 diagnosis

. Refer information on to M.D. for final medical
diagnosis

16
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Expected Findings in FASD

Rarely see 1Q below 70
— Often “split” between Verbal and Nonverbal

“Patchy” %irre§ula() presentation rather than
global or focal deficits with considerable
variability between strengths and weaknesses

Academic deficits especially in arithmetic

Social/Adaptive functioning deficits
— worse than expected based on IQ

Executive function deficits
— especially on low structure tasks

Increased variability in performance over time
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Neuropsychological Assessment for FASD

+ Created a battery that incorporated many of the most salient
clinical tests and domains of functioning based on 30+ years
of research experience

— 1Q (WAIS-IV)
— Achievement (WRAT-4)
— Visual Spatial Construction (RCFT)
— Learning and Memory (CVLT, RCFT)
— Attention (CPT)
— Motor Coordination (Grooved Pegs, Finger Tap)
— Executive Functions (WCST, DKEFS, COWAT, RFF, Stroop, ACT, Trails)
— Suggestibility (GSS2)
— Adaptive Functioning (Communication, Daily Living, Socialization)
» Ability Test (NAB: AC, ACS: SC, TFLS)

» Other Report (VABS, BRIEF)
18
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Categories of Documents Reviewed

James Chappell’s School Records

Psychological Evaluation Reports
Medical Records and Reports

Declarations from persons who know James Chappell

Prior Testimony & Nevada Supreme Court Decision

19
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Effort Testing

Advanced Clinical Solutions (ACS) Word Choice = 49/50
Reliable Digits = 7
Verbal Memory {CVLT) 16/16
Conner’s CPT Valid
Dot Counting Test E-Score=8

Effort testing on second day of testing as well as behavioral
observation during the assessment indicates that James
Chappell was putting out good effort.

20
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Intellectual Testing

Verbal Comprehension Scaled Score  Perceptual Reasoning Scaled Score

Similarities 9 Block Design 12
Vocabulary 6 Matrix Reasoning 7
Information 11 Visual Puzzles 9
Working Memory Scaled Score  Processing Speed Scaled Score
Digit Span 6 Symbol Search 9
Arithmetic 4 Digit Symbol-Coding 6
1Q

Verbal Comprehension 96

Perceptual Reasoning 96

Working Memory 71

Processing Speed 86

Full Scale 1Q 86

Research: Average score for FAE (PFAS, ARND)=90
21
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WAIS-R

WAIS-IV

Current and Prior
Intelligence Testing

/77 /91

96 96 71

86

Borderline
to low
average

80

86
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Current and Prior
Academic Testing

SAT /18%/
SAT [40%/
SAT /40%/
SAT /4/
SAT /18%/
Peabody / /6.0 //7.5 //8
IAT
WRAT /5th%/
WRAT-3 88/ /hs 89/ /8
WRAT-4 91/27%/11.6 92/30%/12.0 100/50%/>1

2.9

(Standard Score / %ile / Grade Equivalent)
23
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Vineland Adaptive Skills at Age 25

Domain

Receptive
Expressive
Written

Communication
Personal

Domestic
Community

Daily Living Skills
Interpersonal Rel.

Play/Leisure Time
Coping Skills

Socialization
Co posite
25

James Ford
SD (%ile)
0.0 (50)
0.3 (61)
-1.3(9)

$S=90/25%ile

-2.0 (2)
0.3 (61)

-1.7 (5)
S$5=76/5%ile
-1.0 (16)

-1.0(16)
$5=77/6%ile

Terry Wallace Myra Chappell-King
SD (%ile) SD (%ile)
-2.7 (<1) -2.7 (<1)
-2.3 (1) -2.0 (2)
-2.3(1)

$5=29/<1%ile
-2.0 (2)
-1.3 (9)

-2.7 (<1)
$S=63/1%ile
-1.7 (5)

-1.0(16)
SS=71/ B%ile



60TLOVY

26

Cross-validation of
Adaptive Functioning Results

Rl i =
Is the informant’s report considered YES
valid?

Are the informants reports consistent with each
other?

Are the results of Adaptive Functioning consistent
with research on FASD?
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Behavior Rating Inventory
of Executive Function (BRIEF)

James Ford Terry Wallace Myra Chappel-King
Negativity Scale 0 1 0
Infrequency Scale 1 1 1
Inconsistency Scale 6 4 4

27
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Cross-validation of
Adaptive Functioning Results

Is the informant’s report considered valid?

Are the informants reports consistent Fairly
with each other?

Are the results of Adaptive Functioning consistent
with research on FASD?

28
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Vineland Adaptive Skills at Age 25

Domain

Receptive
Expressive
Written

Communication
Personal

Domestic
Community

Daily Living Skills
Interpersonal Rel

Play/Leisure Time
Coping Skills

Socialization

Com osite
29

James Ford

SD (%ile)

0.3 (61)
-1.3 (9)

$5=90/25%ile

-2.0(2)
0.3 (61)

-1.7 (5)
§5=76/5%ile
-1.0 (16)

-1.0(16)
Ss=77/6%ile

Terry Wallace

SD (%ile)

-2.3 (1)

§8=29/<1%ile

-2.0 (2)

-1.3 (9)
2.7 (<1)
$S=63/1%ile

-1.7 (5)

-1.0(16)
S$S=71/3%ile

Myra Chappell-King

SD (%ile)
-2.7 (<1)
-2.0 (2)

-1.0(16)
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Cross-validation of
Adaptive Functioning Results

Is the informant’s report considered valid?

Are the informants reports consistent with each
other?

Are theres ts of YES
europs chological Adaptive

Function'ng consistent it researc

on FASD?
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IN SUMMARY

Multiple deficits across NINE neuropsychological domains
e Academics especially in math calculation

 Learning and memory for verbal and visual information

 Visuospatial construction and organization

» Attention functioning

* Processing speed
« Executive functions especially on tasks where there was less external structure

« Communication skills (based on direct testing of expressive communication and
two of the three informants)

» Daily living skills (found on both ability testing and informant reports)
 Socialization skills (based on informant reports)

Reflect significant functional disabilities.

« 40% of scores at least mildly impaired
» 28% of scores at least moderately impaired

34
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IN SUMMARY

* Chappell’s pattern of functioning is most consistent
with Neurodevelopmental Disorder associated with
Prenatal Alcohol Exposure (ND-PAE) as identified in
DSM-5.

* This would have been classified as Cognitive Disorder
(Not Otherwise Specified) under the DSM-4.

* Pa er re dth of efic'tsis con istent i
ho- eated euro ev lo nha isoder
(A Das ‘agosd Dr. aves.
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Psychological Expert Testimony

Natalie Novick Brown, PhD

Testimony: April 6, 2018

Re James Montell Chappell
Case No. C131341
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Prevalence

General Population:
* United States: 2-10% (FASD) [May, et al., 2018]

Adoptees/Foster System:
> 6% (FAS)
* 17% (FASD) [Lange et al., 2013]

Juvenile Justice System (age 12-18):
= 23% (FASD) [Fast, Conry, & Loock, 1999]

Adult Criminal Justice System (age 18-30):
* > 10% (15% more adults met criteria except prenatal
exposure could not be confirmed) [MacPherson et al.,
2011]
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| ﬁ-' . "ﬁ:“"l."!'.

Neuroimaging research is finding that prenatal exposure to
methamphetamine, cannabis, heroin, cocaine, and nicotine is
almost as damaging to the fetal brain as prenatal exposure to
alcohol.
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Key Deficit: Executive Functioning

[= Reasoning, Reflection & Impulse Control in Forensic Context]

Lobes of the Brain:

Paretal ioba

Fruntul
Occipital lobe lobe

Tampor »
be frontal
turtan)

Attention control
Response inhibition
Working memory (reflection)
Anticipation
Prioritizing
Strategizing
Sequencing
Organization
Second thought
Modulating mood
Response flexibility
Judgment

al-dir te ehavior
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FASD Impairs Capacity to Control Violence

American Bar Association (ABA) website:

 FASD has a significant impact on mental abilities relevant
in the criminal justice system, including impaired
judgment, inability to understand cause and effect, and
difficulty controlling impulses.

« FASD alone does not cause violence, but it is directly
related to impaired cognitive capacity to control violence.

e https://www.americanbar.org/groups/child law/tools to u
se/attorneys/fasd-resolution.html
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ABA Website: List of FASD Cases

In 1990, the United States Supreme Court in Sullivan v.
Zebley, 493 U.S. 521, 533-34 n. 13 described “fetal alcohol
syndrome” as a “well-known childhood impairment.”

By 1996, a humber of cases at the trial and appellate levels
involved FASD.

EXSng' hundreds of cases around the country involved

https://www.americanbar.org/groups/child law/what we do
/projects/child-and-adolescent-health/tetal-alchohol-

spectrum-
disorders/child and adolescent health/fasd criminallawsubj

ect.html
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Brain Damage in FASD Leads to
Trouble With the Law

10.1 History of Trouble With the Law (TWL) by sex, diagnosis and age

at interview (n=412)
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Streissguth et al., Understanding the
Occurrence of Secondary Disabilities in
Clients with Fetal Alcohol Syndrome (FAS)
and Fetal Alcohol Effects (FAE), CDC, 1996
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Evaluation Procedures

(a) Record review (Appendix A of report):
* Records available in 1996
» Records available in 2007

 Additional records obtained by current habeas counsel,
including new declarations from witnesses who were
available in 1996 and 2007

(b) Consultation with Dr. Paul Connor re
neuropsychological test results

(¢) Consultation with Dr. Julian Davies re diagnosis

(d) Interview with Mr. Chappell
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Referral Question #1: At the time of trial in 1996
and resentencing in 2007, what was known in
the legal field about FASD and ARND?
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Highlights in FASD History

1973 | “Fetai Alcohol Syndrome” reported in The Lancet
FIRST NATION-WIDE WARNING: National Institute of Alcohol Abuse and

1977 | Alcoholism {NIAAA) issues official warning against heavy drinking during
pregnancy

1981 15t SURGEON GENERAL WARNING: warns pregnant women and women planning
a pregnancy not to drink alcoholic beverages

1982 | Merck Manual, 14t Ed., included information about FAS

1988 | Alcohol Beverage Labeling Act mandated warning labels on alcoholic beverages

1989 | Michael Dorris’s The Broken Cord is published

1991 | Dr. Ann Streissguth speaks at NAACP Legal Defense Fund conference in Airlie, VA
FIRST GOVERNMENT-SPONSORED DIAGNOSTIC CRITERIA: Institute of Medicine

1996 | (IOM) develops diagnostic criteria for Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders (FASD):
FAS, pFAS, ARND, and ARBD

1996 SECONDARY DISABILITIES STUDY: CDC publishes Final Report on Secondary

Disabilities in Clients with FAS and FAE 10
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Highlights in FASD History

FAS DIAGNOSTIC CRITERIA ARE REFINED: Centers for Disease Control (CDC)

2004 publishes more specific diagnostic criteria for FAS

2005 2nd SURGEON GENERAL WARNING: warns against drinking for pregnant
women, women planning a pregnancy, and those at risk for pregnancy

2006 SAMHSA publishes information on its website for criminal justice
professionals regarding the relevance of FASD across the legal spectrum
On its website, the Fetal Alcohol and Drug Unit at the University of

2007 | Washington lists US cases involving FASD (ABA eventually takes over this

responsibility, which continues today)

11
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Known in 1996 (2007)

* FASD involves prenatal-onset, permanent brain
damage caused by prenatal alcohol exposure.

e FASD can manifest as FAS or FAE/ARND, but the

brain damage is the same, regardless of diagnosis.

» FASD is associated with pervasive cognitive
deficits, including significantly impaired executive
functioning.

 Executive dysfunction manifests in numerous
secondary disabilities, including high risk to
commit crimes in unstructured, novel contexts.

12
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MR/ ID
Reduced I1Q
Hyperactivity
ADD

Developmental
delays

Coordination
problems

Sensory deficits

Neonatal
withdrawal

Known in 1996

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

[per IOM]

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
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Fetal growth

Anomalies
Withdrawal

Behavior

Growth

Behavior
Cognition
Language

Academic

Alcohol

Strong effect

Strong Effect
No effect

Effect

Strong Effect
Strong Effect
Strong Effect

Effect
Strong Effect

Known in 2007

Nicotine Marijuana Opiates

Cocaine

Effect

No Effect

Strong Effect No Effect

Birth/Short-Term
Effect No Effect Effect
. No Effect No Effect
No Effect No Effect
Effect Effect Effect
Long-Term
* No Effect  No Effect
Effect Effect Effect
Effect Effect *
Effect No Effect ?
Effect Effect ?

? = Limited or no data available.

Effect

E 3
Effect
Effect

Effect

*

* = No consensus on effect

Meth

Effect

No Effect

?

Effect

14
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Referral Question #1: At the time of trial in 1996

and resentencing in 2007, what was known in
the legal field about FASD and ARND?

15
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Opinion

By the time of Mr. Chappell’s trial in 1996 and
resentencing in 2007, a great deal of information
was known in the legal field about the nature and
cause of FASD.
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Referral Question #2: At the time of trial in 1996
and resentencing in 2007, what evidence was

available to counsel to suggest Mr. Chappell
suffered from an FASD condition?
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Red Flag:
Defendant’s Report to Dr. Etcoff in 1996

[Report dated 9/28/96]

Mr. Chappell informed Dr. Etcoff in a Social History
questionnaire that his mother possibly drank and
used drugs during the pregnancy.

18




LETLOVY

Records Provided to Dr. Etcoff in 1996

[Report dated 9/28/96]

* A notation in the records indicated Maternal Aunt Sharon Axam
confirmed maternal alcohol/drug use during the pregnancy.

* At the time of his mother’s death, Mr. Chappell and his siblings had
been living with their maternal grandmother for a year due to
maternal neglect/heroin use. (William Roger Moore)

* When Mr. Chappell was ~2 % years old, his mother was struck and killed
by a police cruiser while walking on the highway at 4:25 am.
(Newspaper)

Thus, at the time of trial in 1996 and resentencing in 2007, counsel had
information that the birth mother drank alcohol and used drugs during
the pregnancy.

19
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Witness Accounts of Prenatal Alcohol Exposure
[Available but Not Obtained in 1996/2007]

Declarations from 9 individuals indicated that birth
mother Shirley Chappell:

(a) drank alcohol throughout the index pregnancy,
including heavy consumption on the weekends;

(b) used heroin and cocaine daily during the
pregnancy; and

(c) smoked at least a pack of cigarettes daily during
the pregnancy.

20
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Evidence of Central Nervous System (CNS)

DySfU nction [i.e., brain dysfunction]
Defendant’s Self-Report to Dr. Etcoff in 1996

[Report dated 9/28/96]

* He recalled being placed in a “special school” in
second grade.

* He recalled placement in special education classes
in seventh through tenth grade, when he left
school.

 He recalled being “pulled out of regular classes for
help in math, reading, and writing” In junior high
and high school.
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Other Evidence of CNS Dysfunction

The 41 pages of school records provided to Dr. Etcoff by
counsel in 1996 and 2007 documented evidence of:

(a) Chronic developmental delays
(b) Severe learning disability

(c) Pervasive adaptive dysfunction (e.g., did not play
with other children until 4th grade, in “constant
conflict” with classmates, toileting accidents and
finger sucking at age 9)

-- all early in life and prior to the onset of Defendant’s
own substance abuse in his teen years.

i2
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Evidence of CNS Dysfunction:
School Records

« Referred for special education services in June 1977 (end of 1 Grade)
due to numerous developmental and adaptive delays as well as
learning disability.

+ Special education reassessment in 1980 indicated major areas of
concern:

a) Adaptive delay in socialization (immaturity involving disruptive
and aggressive behavior);

b) Attention control problem {(“easily distracted”); and
c) Academic achievement deficits:

= 1-year delay in Reading and Listening Comprehension

» 2-year delay in Math

23
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Evidence of CNS Dysfunction:
1980 Evaluation

 School evaluations in 1980 (age 12) noted:

a) Learning disability (functioning at 1% grade level in 2" grade and
functioning at 2" grade level in 4" grade, despite being 3 years older
than classmates)

b) Developmental delay in communication (“asks unrelated questions and
will not respond when spoken to”.... “great difficulty expressing himself”)

c) Slow processing speed (“actions and reactions are very slow”)

d) Self-regulation deficits i.e., executive dysfunction) (“constant conflict”
with other students”); and

e) Adaptive dysfunction (“...great deal of difficulty adjusting in school, both
socially and academically....great deal of difficulty forming meaningful
relationships”).

24
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5/77

5/78

5/79

5/80

5/82

12/84
5/85

Evidence of CNS Dysfunction:

School Records
[GE = Grade Equivalence / % = percentile]

. L9GE 14GE 1.2GE
42% 6% 22% 18%
g 24GE 27GE 21GE  2.1GE
32%  44% 18% 18% 8%
g 33GE 37GE 3.3 GE 3.2 GE
38%  44% 28% 17% 32%
10 4.1 GE
8% 4% 22% 20% 36%
12
30%  11% 0% 16% 14%
14
14 13% 3% 7 0 9% 3%

Red type = 1 or more SD below the mean (< 16% percentile)
= 1 or more years below grade level
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Evidence of CNS Dysfunction:
Dr. Etcoff’s Report

Significant discrepancy in test results between Verbal 1Q (77) and
Performance 1Q (91)

Significant discrepancy between achievement test results that fell in
the average range for Reading and Spelling but in the moderately
impaired range (1% percentile) for Arithmetic

“SLD” (Severely learning disabled) special education placement

Documented evidence in the records of numerous cognitive and
adaptive problems:

*

Severe learning disability
“Probable” ADHD
Multiple developmental delays

Multiple adaptive problems (social, daily living skills,
communication)

Executive function problems
receptive language disorder and arithmetic disorder
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Evidence of CNS Dysfunction:
Trial Testimony

1996

« Maternal Grandmother Clara Axam described the Defendant as a “slow”
child who did not understand and learn things as quickly as normal
children. COGNITIVE IMPAIRMENT

« Clara Axam testified that the Defendant had a speech delay in childhood
and did not begin speaking until age 3 %. DEVELOPMENTAL DELAY

« Clara Axam testified that the Defendant received special education
services from 5t grade into high school. LEARNING DISABILITY [School

records indicated special education from 2" grade on.]

2007

» Willie Chappell, Jr. (brother) testified that the Defendant had
incontinence problems in childhood. ADAPTIVE DELAY

« Myra Chappell King (younger sister) testified that other children teased
the Defendant for being “slow.” COGNITIVE IMPAIRMENT

FF
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Lay Witness Evidence of Impairments

Sensory Integration: 2 witnesses
Processing Speed: 9 witnesses
Attention Control: 6 witnhesses
Communication: 8 witnesses
Daily Living Skills: 6 witnesses
Socialization: 8 witnesses
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Referral Question #2: At the time of trial in 1996
and resentencing in 2007, what evidence was
available to counsel to suggest Mr. Chappell
suffered from an FASD condition?

29
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Opinion

Documented evidence of mother’s pre-natal use of alcohol and
drugs during her pregnancy with James Chappell

Evidence via friends and family
Documented evidence of CNS dysfunction

Education records

Testimony and Declarations from friends and family

Uncontested evidence from trial expert Dr. Etcoff that at least two
of Mr. Chappell’s neurodevelopmental conditions (communication
disorder and arithmetic disorder) stemmed from “neurological
origin,” which constituted clear notice of brain damage

30
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Opinion

e Had counsel asked an expert in neuropsychology to
assess Mr. Chappell, results would have indicated
pervasive CNS dysfunction similar to what Dr. Connor
found, qualifying the Defendant for a diagnosis of
Cognitive Disorder NOS (a DSM-1V mental defect that
establishes CNS dysfunction in FASD).

* Had counsel retained a medical expert in FASD to
examine Mr. Chappell, results would have been
similar to Dr. Davies’ conclusion that the Defendant
met criteria for ARND (a medical defect).

e Results of the current record review are consistent
with both diagnhoses.
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Referral Question #3: How would FASD (i.e.,
ARND) affect Mr. Chappell’s ability to control his
actions on the day of the crime?
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Neuropsychological Assessment

Neuropsychological assessment by Dr. Paul Connor (report dated 7/15/16)
with 24 tests plus adaptive assessment found deficits in 6 broad cognitive
domains:

« Academic Achievement (especially, Arithmetic)

Learning/Memory (verbal and visual)

Visuospatial Construction and Organization (i.e., sensory integration)
Attention

Processing Speed

Executive Functioning (especially in low-structure tasks)

L J

Plus deficits in 3 adaptive domains:
 Communication

 Daily Living Skills

» Socialization
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Cognitive dysfunction predicts adaptive
dysfunction, per the FASD research.

Mr. Chappell’s adaptive dysfunction
involves child-like interpersonal skills and
coping capacity.
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James Chappell: Adaptive Dysfunction

Per Terry Wallace (former friend):
* Interpersonal: 11 % years old
 Coping: 12 % years old

Per James Ford (former friend):
* Interpersonal: 16 years old
* Coping: 12 ¥ years old

These ratings are consistent with the FASD research.
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James Chappell: “Extraordinary”
Number of Childhood Traumas

Per Dr. Matthew Mendel (report: 6/27/16):

 Mother’s heavy use of heroin and alcohol during her
pregnancy with him

« Mother’s death when he was a toddler
Absence of a father/father figure

Raised in a neighborhood where violence, drugs, and
prostitution were commonplace

Marked poverty

Extreme physical abuse

Physical neglect of basic needs

Emotional neglect

Loss of an uncle who was his sole nurturer

E1
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Double Whammy:
Prenatal Exposure + Postnatal Adversity

Clinical Forum

Neurobiology and Neurodevelopmental
Impact of Childhood Traumatic Stress
and Prenatal Alcohol Exposure

Jim Henry
Mark Sloane
Connie Black-Pond

Westcrn Michigan University, Kalamszoo

2007

> The combination of FASD and postnatal trauma are
significantly more devastating to neurodevelopment than

trauma alone.
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Adaptive Dysfunction = ‘Secondary Disabilities’

%
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Referral Question #3: How would FASD (i.e.,
ARND) affect Mr. Chappell’s ability to control his
actions on the day of the crime?
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Opinion

Because Mr. Chappell’s executive control over his
behavior is significantly impaired due to FASD and
because he was under stress at the time of the
offense, which diminishes everyone’s executive
control, it is likely his ARND influenced his capacity
to control his actions at the time of the offense.
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Referral Question #4: How would FASD influence

Mr. Chappell’s behavior with respect to his prior
domestic abuse of his girlfriend Deborah Panos?
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Opinion

Intense emotions of any kind diminish impulse
control for everyone.

If an individual already has deficient impulse
control due to pervasive cognitive dysfunction and
childlike coping capacity, stress and/or anger will
further decrease control.

Thus, at the time of the prior domestic abuse of his
girlfriend Deborah Panos, it is likely Mr. Chappell’s
ARND influenced his ability to control his actions.
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Referral Question #5: How would Mr. Chappell’s
FASD influence his drug addiction?
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Known by 1996/2007: FASD Meant a High Risk
of Substance Abuse

13.1 History of Alcohol/Drug Problems (ADP) by sex, diagneosis and
age at interview
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Secondary Disabilities study (Streissguth et al., 1996)
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Opinion

Compared to those who are not exposed to
alcohol in utero, Mr. Chappell’s FASD condition
increased his likelihood of developing a
substance abuse problem.
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LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA, APRIL 6, 2018, 9:07 A.M.
* *x k Kk *

THE COURT: Good morning. And this is Case No.
C131341, State of Nevada versus James Chappell. This is the
time that was set for the evidentiary hearing on the petition
for writ of habeas corpus.

Are we ready to proceed?

MR. LEVENSON: Yes, Your Honor. Can we make
appearances, please?

THE COURT: Yes, please.

MR. LEVENSON: Brad Levenson, Scott Wisniewski and
Ellesse Henderson on behalf of Mr. Chappell, who has waived his
appearance today.

MR. OWENS: And Steve Owens on behalf of the State.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. LEVENSON: We have our experts here. We just
thought if you wanted to give them the admonishment or whether
they were allowed to watch the proceedings.

THE COURT: What's the State's position?

MR. OWENS: I would move to exclude witnesses.

THE COURT: All right. So any witness that is not
going to take the stand right now needs to wait in the hall.

MR. LEVENSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I apologize in advance that it's cold out

there.

JD Reporting, Inc.
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MR. LEVENSON: So we are calling for our first
witness Chris Oram, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE CLERK: Raise your right hand.

CHRISTOPHER ORAM
[having been called as a witness and being first duly sworn,
testified as follows:]

THE CLERK: Thank you. Please be seated. State and
spell your name for the record.

THE WITNESS: My name i1s Christopher. Last name is
Oram, O-r-a-m, M as in Mary.

THE COURT: You may proceed.

MR. LEVENSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. LEVENSON:
Good morning, Mr. Oram.
Good morning.
There is a binder in front of you.
Okay.
I might ask you to take a look at it —-
Yes, sir.
-— at certain times to refresh your recollection.
Okay.

Mr. Oram, what is your profession?

b= O O S CH - OR - ©

I'm an attorney.

JD Reporting, Inc.
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And how long have you been an attorney?
Since 1991, so 27 years.

And how are you currently employed?

As an attorney.

What type of law do you practice?

I practice criminal law, criminal defense.
Solo practice?

No, I have —-

Solo?

I have an associate.

I'm sorry?

N O 2 Ol O ORI T O - O

I have an associate.

Q Okay. What type of criminal law do you practice?
What different areas?

A I practice primarily in every aspect of it. I've
done —— I do traffic tickets, postconvictions, appeals, just
everything, federal cases, so just the gamut of criminal law.

Q Are you Rule 250 qualified?

A I have been since I was in my 20s, yes.

Q Okay. So does 1998 sound like the year you were 250

qualified?
A It could be around there, yes.
Q How many capital cases have you been appointed to?
A I would not be able to give you an accurate estimate

of how many capital cases, and I presume you mean

JD Reporting, Inc.
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postconviction appeal, pretrial, all of them?

0 Yes, sir.

A Many, many, many. Hundreds of homicide cases I've
done. I couldn't give you an accurate number. I can tell you
that I've tried approximately 20 to 25 capital murder trials.

Q And any idea about your postconviction cases?

A Lots, but I -—- I don't keep count of those numbers,

but I do of the trials.

Q Mr. Oram, do you know James Chappell?

A I do.

Q And how do you know Mr. Chappell?

A I represented him on postconviction from his second

penalty phase and appeal from postconviction on his second
penalty phase.

Q Do you remember when you were first appointed to
Mr. Chappell's case?

A I don't.

Q Would it help to —-- would anything help to refresh
your recollection?

A If you told me, I'd accept it.

Q Well, could you look at Exhibit 1 in the binder in
front of you.

A Yes, sir.

0 And take a look at that document. Tell me when

you're done.

JD Reporting, Inc.
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A Okay. I read it.

Q And do you remember when you were first appointed to
Mr. Chappell's case?

A It appears they are appointing me on 10/5 of 2010.

Q When you were appointed to Mr. Chappell's case, did
you receive his prior trial file from anyone in particular?

A I don't recall who it came from, but, yes, I did.

Q Would anything help refresh your recollection?

A Actually, I think you sent me something before, if I
may look.

Q Or you can look at Exhibit 2 in the binder in front
of you.

A I think I have that separately already. Yes, I have
that, and it appears to be coming from several different
sources, okay, but I have it in front of me from David Schieck,
from the special public defender.

Q Okay. And do you remember if Mr. Schieck had served
as prior counsel for Mr. Chappell?

A Yes, I remember that.

Q How many —-- how much material did you receive from
Mr. Schieck?

A Well, according to this, we had it looks like nine
bankers boxes.

Q And do you remember if the materials you received

from Mr. Schieck included both the 1996 trial and the 2007

JD Reporting, Inc.
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penalty retrial?

A I would presume so, but that is exactly what I'm
doing. I can't independently remember the boxes, but I would
presume Mr. Schieck —-— I receive boxes from Mr. Schieck or
cases from Mr. Schieck and the special public defender often,
and they'd always been pretty thorough about giving me
everything I need. I don't remember having to reach out to
them and saying I don't have information.

Q And do you remember reaching out to any other -- to
any other counsel for any other materials?

A I could have, but I don't have any independent
recollection.

Okay. Are you familiar with Dr. Lewis Etcoff?

A I am.

Q Who is Dr. Etcoff?

A He is a psychiatrist or a psychologist.

Q And did he work on Mr. Chappell's case?

A I know he worked before my time and testified in

Mr. Chappell's case.

Q Okay. And do you remember if that was both in 1996

and 20077
A I believe so.
Q At some point during your representation of

Mr. Chappell, did you ask this Court for any funding during

your postconviction litigation?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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A Yes. When I filed the supplement, supplemental brief
or approximately around that time, I requested funding for an
investigator, and I believe three different experts.

Q Do you remember which experts you requested funding
for?

A Yeah. Yes. I requested one for a PET scan. One is
a little bit more difficult to explain, regarding the prefluid
ejaculation semen, that type of -- that was an issue in this
case, and I wanted somebody as an expert in that field. I
don't think that's what you're dealing with here today, but I
wanted that as an expert. I wanted PET scan and someone to
help me with fetal alcohol.

Q Okay. Did the State file an opposition to your
motion?

A They did.

Q In the opposition, did the State accuse you of going
on a, quote, fishing expedition in your request for services?

A I don't independently remember that, but it wouldn't

surprise me.

Q Can you turn to —-- would anything refresh your
recollection?
A Yes. The State's response.

0 If you look at Exhibit 4.
A Okay. I'm looking at it.
0

And is that the State's opposition to your motion?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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A It appears to be.

Q Can you look at page 5 of that.
A Yes, sir.

Q On line 10.

A

Okay. On line 10. Yes. Fishing expedition.

Q And in that same opposition, did the State argue that
even 1f Chappell had fetal alcohol spectrum disorder, otherwise
known as FASD, he could not demonstrate that the result of his
trial would've led to a more favorable outcome?

A Correct.

Q Okay. In that opposition, did the State argue that
because the jurors found the mitigating factor that Chappell
was born to a drug-alcohol-addicted mother there was no need
for an expert on FAS?

A Yes.

Q And that an expenditure of public monies would amount
to a fishing expedition?

A That's what they're arguing.

Q Was there a counter argument that you could have made
to that last point?

A I tried to do that in the reply that I filed to the
State's opposition to my supplement.

Q Okay. And what was that? What was that argument?

A Just that we needed it because they hadn't looked

into it, and his mother was on drugs and alcohol.
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Q So in relation to the State's opposition, did you
file a reply to the State's opposition for funding?

A That's —— I don't file something called a reply to
the State's opposition to that. I file a reply to everything.
So in other words, the way that I do it is I do a supplement.

I did the motions. The State responded to my request, and then
I did a reply which I reviewed, and I addressed those issues
there explaining why I believe I need an evidentiary hearing on
all of those things, but I don't file a specific reply on that
issue. I file a general reply to all of the issues. Yeah.
Hopefully that makes sense.

Q Did the Court hold a hearing on your motion, on the
petition and the motion for funding?

A Yes.

Q And in that hearing, did you address in any way your
request for expert funding?

A Yes.

Q Can you turn to Exhibit -- I'm sorry, Exhibit 5. Is
that the transcript of the hearing?

A Yes.

Q And can you show me where in this transcript you
addressed, other than saying you had requested it, any
arguments that you made in support of your request for funding?

A Any arguments other than that?

Q Other than stating that you had made the request for

JD Reporting, Inc.
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funding.

A Okay. I think on -- I talk on I think pages 5
through 7 about the -- I'm really at that point the Court has
already told me the Court i1s inclined to deny the petition, and
I think that it's important to look at what was being said. So
to get to your question, I think I say at some point, even
after the Court has said, I'm going to deny this petition; I
don't see a reason for an evidentiary hearing. The Court tells
me, in the past, I have held evidentiary hearings, even in your
cases, or words to that effect. I then sort of out of an act
of desperation say, Well, could I have an expert, or could I
talk about this ejaculation and the fact that that
aggravator —-- I tried to attack that aggravator.

Q But with regard to the FASD, did you make any

arguments in your —-

A No.

Q -— 1in that hearing?

A No.

Q Okay. Was a findings of fact and conclusions of law

filed in this case?
A Yes.
0 And in that findings of fact, was it -- was it stated
that your request for experts was, quote, bare and conclusory?
A I'd have to look.

Q Would anything help refresh your recollection?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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A Yes. The order.
0 If you would look at Exhibit 6, is that the
findings --

THE COURT: Do I have these exhibits you keep
referring to? Because I have a binder of exhibits from you,
but they're not -- the numbers don't correspond to the things
you're referring to at this point. So —--

THE WITNESS: Your Honor, I have a lot of these

myself. I brought them. So if you want mine that they've

given me —-

MR. LEVENSON: I believe the clerk has a binder.

THE COURT: Okay. I'd like to at least look --

MR. LEVENSON: I'm sorry —-—

THE COURT: -- if you're going to be moving to admit
these.

MR. LEVENSON: I'm sorry. When we originally called
the Court, we were told four copies, and so we brought four
copies, one for the clerk, one for the witness, one for the
State, and one for the DA. We didn't realize the Court's
copy —— clerk's copy was not the Court's copy.

THE COURT: Oh, okay.

MR. LEVENSON: So we will be glad to make an
additional copy, even over the lunch hour if we need to.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. What exhibit are we on

here?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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MR. LEVENSON: I'm sorry. This is Exhibit 6.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. LEVENSON: And, Your Honor, we will go ahead and
get another binder made for you.
BY MR. LEVENSON:

Q So my question is, Mr. Oram, in the findings of fact
and conclusions of law, was there a statement that your expert
request was bare-bones? It was —-- I'm sorry, quote, bare and
conclusory?

A If you could direct me to a page.

Q Absolutely. Can you look at page 5, lines 8 and 9.

A Yes, that's with the Court -- that's what the Court
rules.

Q And do the findings of fact find that you failed to
make any specific allegation as to what an expert in FASD would
uncover that would possibly change the outcome of this case?
Lines 17 through 19 if you need to refresh your recollection.

A Yes.

Q Did you file any objections to the findings of fact
and conclusions of law?

A A notice of appeal.

Q Did you —-- did you file an objection to this Court?

A No.

Q Why was retaining an expert in FASD important in

Mr. Chappell's case?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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A Well, because I had seen that his mother had been
addicted to alcohol and drugs, and so when I had seen that, I
made the request. I thought maybe I could unearth something
with it.

Q Are you familiar with the Clark County Office of
Appointed Counsel?

A Yes.

Q And as a Rule 225 qualified counsel, are you required
to attend continuing education classes put up by them?

A Yes.

Q Do you remember attending a CLE event sponsored by
that office at the government center in December 2011 where a
course on FASD was given?

A No, I don't independently remember.

Q Okay.

A A course on FASD.

Q Do you remember attending any CLEs on fetal alcohol
spectrum disorder before, prior to 20127

A No, I don't recall.

Q Before your work on Mr. Chappell's case, had you
requested an expert on FAS in any other case?

A Well, you have sent me a copy where I made a request
in front of Judge Cadish in State of Nevada versus Dante
Johnson, who had been sentenced to death, and I also believe in

your questioning of me before I told you that I had, I think

JD Reporting, Inc.
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the same experts that you have outside in a case that was -- in
other words it was pending a capital trial in State of Nevada
versus Burns.

Q In the one that I sent you on Dante Johnson, could
you look at Exhibit 7 in front of you.

A Yes.

Q Does that look like the supplemental brief you filed
in that case?

A It does.

0 And when was that filed?

A It shows October 12th, 2009.

Q And that would have been roughly three years after
Mr. Chappell's brief that you filed in his case?

A When did I file his brief in this case?

Q Court can take judicial notice of the docket, but I
believe it's February of 2012, the supplemental brief.

A So, yes, but you said that -- you said that I
filed —-

Q About two and a half years. This was roughly two and
a half years before.

A Yes, Dante Johnson.

Q And did you raise in Mr. Johnson's case that counsel
failed to raise evidence of fetal alcohol disorders?

A Yes.

Q Did you state in that brief that FASD is a group of

JD Reporting, Inc.
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disorders that can occur in a person whose mother drank alcohol
during her pregnancy?

A Yes.

Q And did you say that some of the symptoms of FAS are
poor judgment and reasoning skills?

A Yes.

Q Do you remember what evidence you actually had in
your possession at the time that you were representing
Mr. Chappell related to fetal alcohol spectrum disorder?

A Not independently. You have sent me something
showing a questionnaire, I believe, by Dr. Etcoff, but that
didn't really provide me more. I had that knowledge that his
mother had had the problems.

Q When you say the mother had problems, what —-- can

you —-—
A Drugs and alcohol.
Q Okay. During her pregnancy with -—-
A Correct.
Q -— James. Okay. Did you interview any of Chappell's

family regarding whether Chappell's mother drank or took drugs
during her pregnancy?

A I don't believe so.

Q Did you take any other measure to contact family
members? Did you write them a letter? Did you make any phone

calls?

JD Reporting, Inc.
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A No. And I thought that would be fruitless since
nobody was arguing that she wasn't doing that. Do you see what
I mean? In other words, I had proof of it, and I had nobody
disputing it.

Q So it's your testimony that the only thing you
could've interviewed family members about was whether
Mr. Chappell's mother drank during her pregnancy? There was
nothing else that you could've inquired about them regarding
fetal alcohol spectrum disorder?

A Oh, we could've interviewed them and done a whole
bunch of things, but again an investigator was denied.

Q Right. So that's what I'm asking. You personally
could have written them a letter or called them?

A I could, vyes.

Q Okay. Did you interview Mr. Chappell's probation
Officer William Moore [phonetic] about whether Chappell's
mother drank or took drugs?

A No.

Q Okay. Did you review Dr. Etcoff's report prepared
for the 1996 trial during your representation of Mr. Chappell?

A I would presume so.

Q Okay. Can you turn to Exhibit 13 in the binder in
front of you.

A Yes.

Q Does that document look familiar to you?

JD Reporting, Inc.
18

AA07181




o 01w N

~J

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

A I see what it is. And when you say does it look
familiar to me, what do you mean? Could you be more specific?
Does it look familiar?

Q Do you remember seeing this document in the files
that you received from Mr. Schieck?

A Again, I would presume so.

Q Okay. Do you remember seeing a notation that
Mr. Chappell was placed in special education classes in various
grades?

A I would presume so.

Q And okay. Did you review Mr. Chappell's school
records during your representation of him?

A I would presume so.

Q In your motion for funding, did you argue that one

effect of fetal alcohol spectrum disorder is problems with

learning?
A Yes.
Q Based upon your argument, wouldn't reviewing

Chappell's school records have assisted you with giving more
information to the Court?

A Yeah. Yes.

Q Do you remember any notations in the school records
that Chappell was —-- I think you said this -- he was in special
education classes —-- that was in the school records —-- and that

Chappell was characterized in school records as emotionally
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impaired?

A It could well be. He had a very problematic
childhood. Yes.

0 And he suffered from low academic achievement and
average level of intellectual ability?

A Right.

Q Did you raise this argument regarding the funding for
FASD to the Nevada Supreme Court?

A I did. 1In fact, what I did was —-- I read the briefs
in the last couple of days, and what I did is I morphed the no
investigator, no funding, no experts, no evidentiary hearing,
and I made that the number one issue.

Q Uh-huh.

A I changed it from the supplement and said, look, I'm
not funded. I couldn't go outside this record. Can we send
this back down, a new evidentiary hearing, and —-—

Q So other than your motion for funding, did you
present any additional evidence to the Court in support of your
motion for funding, any other outside the record information
other than what you said in your motion for funding?

A No, just the supplement and what was in the record.

Q Did you reach out to any experts on FASD to pick
their brains about what arguments you could make to the Court
to promote your argument for the need for funding?

A No, because I wouldn't know what else anybody else
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could help me with. I thought i1t was pretty straightforward.

Q So you didn't think talking to an expert in FASD
would assist you in gathering more information to give to the
Court for funding that you don't —--

A Oh, absolutely. I do, but that's why we get funding.
In other words, once you get the expert funding, then you get
the expert, and then you get to do all of this.

Q You didn't think that just calling an FASD expert and
Jjust asking them for a few minutes of their time to help you
out? A consulting expert.

A For what? I'm not sure, like, just to say, you know,
I'm contacting you and --

Q Yeah. You've never done that before?

A If T didn't -— I would think it was kind of a
fruitless conversation because if all you're doing is talking
about it, I figure they're going to tell me, yeah, that guy
could have fetal alcohol; why don't you try to get us
appointed. So, I'd be like, okay, that's a good idea. So
that's what I did.

Q You didn't think about calling them up and asking
what else you could argue to the Court to help your motion for
funding?

A No, because I would've thought it would have been
granted. I thought I -- I would've thought what I had done was

going to get me what I wanted.
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Q Uh-huh. And after that happened, you didn't do any
additional research? You didn't call any experts for a motion
for reconsideration of that denial?

A No, I didn't. And I'll tell you, when I came into
the court, the Court started on page 1, and basically said,
I've reviewed all of this, Mr. Oram, and I think by page 2 is
saying, I'm going to deny this writ, and the Court also says to
me that the Court has appointed -- done a lot of evidentiary
hearings with me and says, I've read everything; I'm not
inclined to grant this, gives me a little bit of time to talk.

Again then I ask the Court, Could you give me some
direction if you do want to hear anything, is there -- can I
dissuade you from denying this?

Q But, again, in your -- in that argument, you never
raised the issue again about the FASD experts. Your
concentration was on a preejaculate expert, correct?

A Yes, that's correct.

Q Okay.

A I do say to the Court, you know, I'm ready to argue
for an hour. 1I'm prepared to argue this, but —-—

Q But you didn't argue the FASD?

A No. And the Court addresses it I think on page —-
the Court addresses that matter on page 11 of the ruling,
specifically goes over why the Court does not want to appoint,

and the Court's looked it over and that the jury had looked at
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mitigators on page 11 of the other order.

Q Uh-huh. And at no time at that point did you make
any other arguments to the Court why you thought that was
incorrect?

A No. I didn't argue with the Court.

Q Did you give the Court any names of experts that
could be brought in?

A No.

Q Did you give the Court any cost estimates and how
much it would cost to bring an expert in?

A I didn't know at that time how much it would cost,
and I didn't feel that the Court was asking about -- I think
the Court was telling me I've read everything. This is
unpersuasive. In fact, I think the Court says right on page 1,
This is unpersuasive, and so —-—

Q Okay. Oh, I'm sorry.

MR. LEVENSON: Can I have a moment, Your Honor?
THE COURT: Yes.
MR. LEVENSON: We'll pass the witness, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Cross.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. OWENS:

Q Mr. Oram, your entrance into this case I believe you

testified was in what, 2012 when you filed the supplemental

petition. Does that sound about right?
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A I think, Mr. Owens, that Mr. Levenson showed me an
order where it was 2010 where I was appointed.

Q Okay.

A I don't remember.

Q So the pro per petition was filed in 2010. Your

supplemental brief was filed in 2012. Does that sound about

right?
A Yes, sir.
Q So that was about five, six years ago, and that was

you and me, and, in fact, it was here in this department; is
that right?

A Yes.

Q In that supplemental petition that you filed, you had
already recognized fetal alcohol syndrome as a potential issue
to pursue in this case; is that right?

A Yes. I do it what I would call almost ad nauseam.
Now that I've gone through it I just can't stop saying fetal
alcohol. 1In fact -- yes.

Q And that was based on things that you read in the
record in this trial where you discovered that there was
evidence that the defendant's mother had been abusing drugs and
alcohol during the pregnancy?

A Yes. It may even be in the record and also outside
of the record because I would've talked to David Schieck. I

would've talked to trial counsel about it or penalty phase
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counsel about it. So I was aware of it from a number of
different sources.

Q In fact, do you recall that that was one of the
mitigators specifically written in by the jury that defendant
was born to a drug-and-alcohol-addicted mother?

A Not only that, but I remember that the actual Court,
when the Court made the oral ruling against me, addressed that
the jury found those mitigators, and I remember the Court
specifically saying to me, I don't think it would make a
difference. They found it, Mr. Oram.

Q So even though there was some evidence presented of
it and the jury found it as a mitigator, you still felt that
prior counsel David Schieck was ineffective in failing to do —-
to do what? To pursue that more aggressively?

A Well, I'm arguing that I want the appointment of the
investigator to pursue this avenue is what I'm asking and to
see what can be unearthed with it.

Q And it would have been based on the claim of
ineffective assistance of counsel, right?

A Yes.

Q That's what you raise in habeas, right?

A Correct.

Q So you don't think that David Schieck had done as
good a job with that issue as perhaps he should'wve?

A I would just clarify this. I make arguments. I
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think Mr. Schieck is a fine lawyer, and so I'm a little more
cautious to say I don't think he did a good job. I'm not —-
that's not the way I approach ineffective assistance of
counsel. I believe I could make the argument, and I'm trying
to assist Mr. Chappell. I tried to make the argument as
ineffective assistance of counsel not to have obtained it, and
I'm trying to convince the Court and eventually the Supreme
Court to give me the funding to do it, which I could not get.

Q Do you recall that David Schieck had actually called
two different psychologists in the redo of the penalty hearing
which I think was 2007, as well as a medical expert, three
different experts to testify in their penalty hearing? Do you
remember that?

A It sounds about right, and I believe Mr. Schieck
actually overturned the penalty phase, but I can't swear to it.

Q And it sounded to me on direct that you were being
questioned or criticized somewhat for focusing on an issue
regarding an ejaculate expert as opposed to a fetal alcohol
syndrome expert; is that right?

MR. LEVENSON: Objection, Your Honor.

BY MR. OWENS:

Q He was questioned or criticized, maybe it was Jjust
questioned, that your emphasis at least in response to the
State's opposition was that you argued here in front of this

Judge more strenuously about this ejaculate expert rather than
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fetal alcohol?

A I don't think he was criticizing me, but he was
questioning me. Yes.

Q All right. And so do you see the ejaculate expert as
being a more important issue perhaps than fetal alcohol?

A It was because it was the only aggravator left. So
once the Court had made the statement to me, I've read
everything, I'm inclined to deny this, I felt that there was
Jjust the tiniest bit of wiggle room if there's something else
you want to say, and I just thought go right at the aggravator,
see if I can convince the Court to give me something to attack
that aggravator, and so that's why I went directly at that. I
thought if I can get rid of the aggravator, I can get him off
death row.

Q So rather than just presenting new evidence of more
mitigation which might help in habeas, you felt like going
after that sole aggravator, if you could defeat that, the death
is off the table; right?

A Correct.

Q In fact, that's the focus of the three experts that
David Schieck called in the penalty hearing; right? They were
all focused on overcoming that sole aggravator of the sexual
assault and whether it was consensual?

A Yes. And not only that, but I remember now

conversations with Ms. JoNell Thomas about focus on this,
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Chris, during the -- when I got the postconviction. Look at
that aggravator. There's something wrong there, and so she
gave me some indication to look at that very carefully.

Q So you've had experience both trying capital cases
and doing habeas in capital cases; right?

A Tremendous amounts.

Q And so as a trial litigator, one who actually goes
into court and has to convince a jury, you saw the more
important issue being those which focused on undermining that
aggravator rather than something just presenting new mitigation
evidence?

A Mr. Owens, I wouldn't say that I —— I know as a
capital litigator that if there are no aggravators you cannot
sentence my client to death. I see it as a very important
issue, but I saw other issues as important here too. I felt
that they're important. When we talk about the experts I asked
for, I didn't feel -- as I'm sitting here, I know the Court
disagreed with me. I know the Supreme Court disagreed with me,
but as an advocate, I felt that what I was asking for was
important.

Q So you don't put all your eggs in one basket and
focus on one issue?

A No, sir.

0 Establishing the defendant suffers from fetal alcohol

syndrome does not disqualify him for the death penalty, does

JD Reporting, Inc.
28

AA07191




o 01w N

~J

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

it

A No.

Q Establishing that the sexual assault was consensual
does?

A What they had relied upon to uphold it in that appeal
was wrong, and that's what I was trying to show, that I felt it
was wrong. I could see an argument that looked flawed to me.

Q And so the experts that David Schieck called, there
was one that testified as a psychologist about the cycle of
domestic violence and whether or not the victim truly consented
or whether she would use sex as a means to renew her
relationship with the defendant in and out of this
relationship. That was focused on undermining consent so you
could dismiss that sexual assault aggravator; correct?

A Well, that's what they were trying to do. Yes.

Q And same too with the ejaculate expert that you're
talking about. That would be another way to show that the
defendant didn't lie when he said that he withdrew and that
there was preejaculate fluid in her. That would explain the
DNA in her and be consistent with a consent?

A Yes. They were saying he was lying, and it doesn't
have to be that way, and that bothered me that -- I just
thought it was a flawed -- your arguments I thought were
flawed, your arguments.

Q One of the other experts that David Schieck called
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was this Dr. Todd Grey, the medical examiner, who testified
there was no physical evidence of sexual assault; is that
correct? Do you remember that?

A Yes. Yes.

Q And then the final one was Dr. Lewis Etcoff, who
testified that the defendant had a bad childhood, that he was
ill-suited to make decisions under stress and that he had
abandonment issues, a lot of different things going on in the
defendant's mind, again focused on showing that the sexual
assault was consensual; is that right?

A Yes.

Q Let me move on. After you filed the supplemental
brief, you filed these motions that you were asked about on the
direct examination; is that right? Motion for an investigator
and for three experts; right?

A I would've thought it was simultaneous with the
supplement, but I could be wrong.

Q I think it was. You were denied the investigator;
correct?

A Yes. Yes.

Q You were denied funding for a PET scan which is a
Positron Emission Topography scan. What was your purpose in
asking for that?

A So that we could -- I wanted to have examination of

his brain. I wanted to have experts look at this information
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to see about brain damage and fetal alcohol.

0 Kind of to confirm some of the opinions of Dr. Etcoff
because he had testified that there was a neurological basis
for the problems in defendant's brain. So you wanted to
confirm that and show that there actually was brain damage;
right?

A I think I probably would've wanted —-- my hope would
be go farther and that something better would come, something
different would come.

Q And then you asked for a full neurological exam on

Mr. Chappell?

A T did.

Q Because the last one had been 10 years prior?

A Yes.

Q And that's something common that you see in habeas is

every time there's a new round of habeas, there's a new round
of experts, right, frequently?

A Yes.

Q And then you wanted an —--—

A Can I just say with regard to capital habeas.

Q Right.

A I do a lot of noncapital habeas, and I don't usually
see 1t there as much.

Q And then you asked for a third expert on the possible

effects of fetal alcohol spectrum disorder on Mr. Chappell, and
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you set forth that there was evidence his mother had been
addicted to drugs and alcohol; is that right?

A Yes.

Q And you said, A proper investigation should have been
conducted to determine whether James was born to a mother
ingesting narcotics and alcohol during her pregnancy. There is
no indication in the voluminous file that counsel investigated

the possibility of fetal alcohol syndrome. Does that sound

right?
A Yes.
) And then you also filed a motion for the sexual

assault or ejaculate expert, right, on that other issue to
undermine the aggravator; correct?

A Yes.

0 And those were all denied?

A They were.

Q I filed an opposition. I think they already had you
read from it where I said that it was a fishing expedition.

A You did.

Q And that does sound like something I might say.

A It does.

Q You said that you filed a reply, maybe not a reply
directly to the motions, but a reply to my opposition, and in
there you pressed again on your fetal alcohol and PET scan

issues. Does that sound right?
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A It is right.

Q In fact, it figured prominently in your reply brief
that you said that these things had not been investigated
adequately, and you needed the time and resources to go do
that; correct?

A Not only did I do it there, but I realized in the
reply brief in the Supreme Court I mentioned it 10 times.

Q Yeah. Okay. And we're going to get there in just a
minute. It was denied at the argument by the Judge.

A The Court did deny it, yes.

Q And there was findings of fact and conclusions of
law?

A Yes.

Q Where the Judge said, Even if brain imaging could

reveal that Chappell suffers from fetal alcohol syndrome, this
Court has already accepted such allegations as true and found
it would not have changed the outcome. Does that sound like a
ruling that was made against you?

A Yes. And it was —-- the Court made it orally, made
something very similar to that orally.

Q And we went up on appeal. There was briefing, and
you said you raised this what, 10 times in your reply brief?

A What I did is I put it all in -- I changed it into
argument one, and I thought the best thing I could do was try

to see if I could convince the Court that —-- the Supreme Court
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that there wasn't the funding. There wasn't an evidentiary
hearing. I think let's see 1f I can get this to come back
down, and they gave me oral argument.

Q To show the Court that you didn't get a full and fair
hearing here --

A Yes.

Q —-— there wasn't funding, that the issues weren't
taken seriously?

A No, I didn't -- I didn't say that this Court didn't
take it seriously. I said that I should have had funding. I
never said that nobody took it seriously. Just I take a little
bit of exception to the way you said that.

Q Sure.

A I just said that I want funding. I should've been
allowed this. This is something, you know, just making as
much —- I thought it would be the strongest argument I could
make to them. Get this back down to the District Court so I
could get the hearing; I could get the experts.

Q And you thought you would win on that issue?

A When they had en banc oral argument and we had to go
up there, I thought I -- I thought I had a fighting chance,
yes.

Q So you and I went, and we argued this en banc in
front of the full court?

A Six of them. I think Justice Douglas recused
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himself.

Q And so they ruled against you. They judged —-- agreed
with Judge Ellsworth?

A Unanimously they agreed with Judge Ellsworth.

0 There was no dissent.

A No dissent and they addressed --

Q And they ruled. You've read the order of affirmance;
correct?

A I have. And I read it this morning as well.

) And they said, As his cognitive deficits have been
extensively documented and the jury nevertheless —--
nevertheless concluded that they were not sufficiently
mitigating, Chappell failed to demonstrate that counsel were
deficient?

A Yes. It mirrored -- it mirrored this Court's —-- what
this Court ruled is almost identical to what you just —-—

Q And they found that the District Court, Judge
Ellsworth, did not err in denying this claim without an
evidentiary hearing and without granting funding; correct?

A Yes. That's what they said.

Q And you didn't let it sit at that. You went and
filed a petition for rehearing?

A Yes.

Q Hoping perhaps you could get —-- illuminate this issue

and get at least one Judge to change their mind up there?
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A Yes.

Q And that was the subject extensively of the petition
for rehearing, and I filed a response, and there's the typical
one sentence order denying rehearing; right?

A Yes.

Q I think I elicited already that that was one of the
aggravators the jury found, that Chappell was born to a
drug-alcohol-addicted mother?

A That's one of the mitigators you mean.

Q I'm sorry. One of the mitigators that they found.
They also found that he had suffered from a learning disability
because that was something that Dr. Etcoff had talked about?

A Yes.

Q And their special verdict form was written out in
their own handwriting. It wasn't just a check the box. They
actually —-

A No. I noticed that.

Q -— wrote that --
A Yeah.
Q —-— and other mitigators down?

A Yes. And I actually think in the oral decision of
this Court, of this District Court the Court addressed that.
When I went back and looked at that, the Court actually in her
ruling sort of goes through. She doesn't say Mitigator Number

1, but she says what the jury found or what was presented to
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the jury.
Q So you recognized this as an issue, and you did your
best to raise it and brief it to the courts?

MR. LEVENSON: Objection, Your Honor. The State is
taking actually the contrary attitude they took in front of you
in 2012. They stated numerous times that Mr. Oram was
deficient in his performance because he argued with no
specificity, and he was going on a fishing expedition. So to
now say that he did the best he could in 2012 seems
disingenuous to me.

MR. OWENS: I never said that Mr. Oram was deficient.
I disagreed. I think he went over the top and went into areas
that clearly the Supreme Court did not agree needed to go into.
He was being extra zealous on behalf of the client is my point.

THE COURT: It's overruled. I don't think that the
State is arguing contrary to their prior position so should be
estopped.

BY MR. OWENS:

Q So, Mr. Oram, you recognize this as what you felt was
an important issue, this fetal alcohol syndrome issue?

A Yes. Yes. I just don't -— when I go through this
and I prepared for this, I can't think of how many more times I
could say it without being obnoxious.

MR. OWENS: Thank you. I'll close my examination.

THE COURT: Thank you.
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Any redirect?
MR. LEVENSON: Yes, just briefly. One moment, Your
Honor.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. LEVENSON:

Q Mr. Oram, the State has been talking about this
mitigating factor that Mr. Chappell was born to a
drug-and-alcohol-addicted mother. Do you see a difference
between an aggravator that talks about being born to a
drug-alcohol-addicted mother and being born with FASD?

A You said an aggravator.

Q I'm sorry. Mitigator. The mitigator.

A Well, I see —- okay. So —-

Q Do you see a difference between the jury finding that
he was born to a drug-alcohol-addicted mother and evidence that
he was born with FASD and what that means? Do you see a
distinction?

A Oh, yes. I would think that an expert would be able
to give -- shed much more light. 1I've often argued that, that
we as lawyers saying, okay, this is what that means. I cannot
articulate fetal alcohol, like I'm sure the next witnesses are
going to be able to do. I'm not ——- so I do see a distinction
between we as lawyers arguing, and, again, that's why I would
ask for an expert so that they can give that kind of

information.
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Q So it's your testimony that the jurors didn't know
the full extent of the problem just by the fact that they found
he was born to a drug-and-alcohol-addicted mother?

A That's what I was arguing.

Q Mr. Oram, would you raise a frivolous issue to the
Court?
A I raise issues 1in capital cases that I often footnote

in the Supreme Court and to the district courts where I say I
recognize the issue I'm raising has been denied repeatedly. I
do it to preserve for federal review. So I suppose somebody —-—
a Court could say you know those have always been denied, and
so is that frivolous? I try not to raise things that are going
to cause a loss of credibility, and like with those issues just
acknowledge that you —--—

Q So let me be more specific. Did you raise —-- did you
think your fetal alcohol spectrum disorder issue was frivolous?

A No.

Q Did you think it was less important than the
ejaculate issue that you raised?

A (No audible response.)

Q Did you think that if James Chappell had FASD that
that would not have perhaps one juror would have found that he
should not have been sentenced to death?

A That's possible, but I guess what you're asking me is

if I could -- if I could defeat one of the two, I'd defeat the
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sexual assault because then there's no -- there's no death. So
I saw that as the -- that would be the most important primary
attack. To be -- from the beginning when I had this case, the
most primary attack I could get was to get rid of that
aggravator.

Q So in your case then, you actually argued for the
ejaculate expert to the exclusion of the FASD expert?

A No. No.

Q But you didn't raise any argument about the FASD
expert in front of this Court, in front of this Court at the
hearing?

A Yes. There were a lot of issues that I raised that
were not raised. I mean, that's very quick. If you look back
at that evidentiary hearing transcript, as I look at it, by
page 1, the Court is telling me essentially what the ruling is,
looks like it's going to be. So, yes, at that point where she
Jjust gives me a little window to say something, I go after the
expert that I think could attack the one aggravator.

MR. LEVENSON: No further questions.

THE COURT: Recross.

MR. OWENS: Nothing further.

THE COURT: May this witness be excused?
MR. LEVENSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Oram.

THE WITNESS: Thank you very much, Your Honor.
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Do you want me to leave?

MR. LEVENSON: Yes, please.

THE COURT: You may call your next witness.

MR. LEVENSON: Thank you.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: Thank you, Your Honor. We would
call Dr. Paul Connor.

PAUL CONNOR
[having been called as a witness and being first duly sworn,
testified as follows:]

THE CLERK: Thank you. Please be seated. State and
spell your name for the record.

THE WITNESS: My name is Paul Connor. Last name is
spelled C-o—n—-n-o-r.

THE COURT: You may proceed.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: Thank you, Your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:

Q Good morning, Dr. Connor.

A Good morning.

Q Do you need a moment to get some water?

A That's okay.

Q Oh, okay. What do you do for a living?

A I am a clinical neuropsychologist in private
practice.

Q And are you licensed to practice in any states?
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A I have a full license to practice in the states of
Washington and Oregon, and I get temporary licenses when needed
in other states.

Q Okay. Did you get one for Nevada for this case?

A T did.

Q And that's a license as a psychologist?

A Yes.

Q What educational degrees did you earn to prepare you
for your position?

A I received a bachelor of science degree in psychology
from the University of Washington and then a Ph.D. in clinical
psychology with a specialization in neuropsychology from
Brigham Young University. As part of that training, I do an
internship year which was at Henry Ford Health System in
Detroit, Michigan.

Q What is clinical psychology?

A Clinical psychology is either the assessment of or
treatment of mental health conditions or personality
conditions. So it's looking at issues of depression,
anxieties, psychotic conditions, personality disorders, things
like that.

Q And what is forensic psychology?

A Forensic psychology is usually applying those sorts
of skills in a forensic setting in a criminal or civil case.

0 And is that what you did in this case?
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A Not entirely. I did a neuropsychological evaluation
which is different from a psychological evaluation.

Q Well, let's get to that next. What is

neuropsychology?
A Neuropsychology is —-- it can be both assessment and
treatment -- in my case, my practice is all assessment -- of

brain behavior relationships, how a person's brain is
essentially functioning through the use of various tests of
memory and attention and planning and problem solving and
different things like that.

Q How much of your practice is clinical psychology

versus neuropsychology?

A Well, clinical neuropsychology versus —-—
Q I'm sorry. Versus forensic.
A Forensic.

0 My mistake.

A That's okay. About 70 percent of my practice is
clinical neuropsychology.

Q Okay. And the other 30 percent is forensic?

A Yes.

Q So is it fair to say, based on your description

before, that neuropsychology is a subspecialty within

psychology?
A That's correct.
Q Okay. Now, what is your -- when was the beginning of
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your experience related to fetal alcohol spectrum disorder?

A When I completed my internship, received my Ph.D., I
wanted to get a postdoctoral fellowship. I came back to the
University of Washington to work at the fetal alcohol and drug
unit at the University of Washington doing research on fetal
alcohol spectrum disorder. So I was postdoc there from 1995 to
1999 and then stayed on as a faculty member.

0 What were your research areas?

A Fetal alcohol syndrome, neuropsychological impacts,
mental health impacts and neuroimaging.

Q Okay. Have you published any articles on FASD for

any peer-reviewed journals?

A Yes.

Q How many?

A Purely FASD articles, probably 16, 17.

Q And how about other aspects of neuropsychology?

A Closer to 20.

Q Have you taught any courses on either of those two
subjects?

A Quite a lot.
) Okay. More than 107
A Closer to about 100.
Q Oh, okay.
MR. OWENS: And, Judge, if I can interject. I accept

him as an expert as well as the other two if that helps counsel
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or not, but I don't have any dispute regarding their
qualifications.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: Just one more question then, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:
Q How many prior court settings, federal and state,
have you been qualified as an expert on in the realm of FASD?
A In the realm of FASD, all 25 times that I've been
called to testify.
Q Okay. And how about in the realm of neuropsychology?
A All 37 times I've been called to testify.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: So, Your Honor, based on the State's
stipulation, we would move that Dr. Connor be designated as an
expert in neuropsychology and fetal alcohol spectrum disorder.

THE COURT: Well, the Court doesn't designate them as
an expert. There is no objection to his testifying, and I'm
not excluding his testimony, but I don't put my blessing on
him. That's not the role of the Court.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:
Q So, now, Dr. Connor, would you please flip to
Exhibit 17 in your binder and review it, and let me know when

you're done.
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A Yes.

Q What is Exhibit 1772

A This is a copy of my report of neuropsychological
assessment that I did with Mr. Chappell.

Q And is it a true and correct copy?

A His date of birth, year of birth is not on this form.
It was on my original report, but, other than that, it looks
the same.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: And, Your Honor, just for the
Court's attention, that was redacted pursuant to court rules
since this is a public filing.
BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:

Q Doctor, when was that court -- when was that report
created?

A The report was created in July of 2016.

Q And do you regularly prepare reports such as this one
in your work as a neuropsychologist?

A Yes.

Q Are these reports made at or near the time that you
receive and review the information they contain?

A They often are. It's at the discretion of the
attorneys as to when I generate a report. I'm not going to
write a report unless they ask me to write a report.

Q For the occasions when you are asked to write a

report, is it your practice to do it as soon as possible?
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A Yes.

Q Are they comprised solely of information which is
based on the reports of a person with knowledge of the
information that they contain?

A Yes.

Q And are you responsible for the generation, retention
and storage of these type of reports?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Now, do you see on page 3 of that report of
the list of the —-- a list of the documents reviewed in arriving
at your results?

A 3 and 4, vyes.

Q Okay. Between the dates that you prepared that
report and today's hearing, did you review any additional
materials related to Mr. Chappell?

A Yes. I was provided with a number of other records
within the last couple of months.

Q Okay. And are those records the ones listed in
Exhibit 18 in that binder?

A It looks like Exhibit 18 has both records that I
reviewed as part of my report and also some of the new -- and

also the new records, but, yes, it includes both of them.

Q Okay. So 18 is a comprehensive list then?
A Yes.
Q Okay. Is there any information that was not provided
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to you that you feel would have been necessary for you to
accurately opine about your conclusions today?

A No.

Q Did you create a PowerPoint presentation to assist
you in presenting your conclusions to the Court?

A I did.

Q And if you could please flip to Exhibit 21 in the
binder and review it. Are those printouts of the PowerPoint

that you created?

A Yes.

Q Now, Doctor, do you do all your work for free?

A No.

Q Who hired you?

A I was retained by the defense counsel in this case.
Q The federal public defender's office?

A Federal public defenders, vyes.

Q Did the fact that you were compensated for your
services in any way affect your belief as to their accuracy?

A No.

Q Okay. Doctor, what did the federal public defender's
office ask you to do in this case?

A They asked me to conduct neuropsychological testing
and review records to determine if Mr. Chappell's current
neuropsychological functioning is consistent with a diagnosis

of fetal alcohol spectrum disorder.
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Q Were you able to come to a conclusion?

A I was.

Q And what is that conclusion?

A That his function is consistent with the diagnostic

guidelines for fetal alcohol spectrum disorders.

Q Thank you. Now, Doctor, I'm going to turn you to the
PowerPoint that we talked about previously. What is fetal
alcohol spectrum disorder?

A It's actually not a diagnosis itself. 1It's an
umbrella term, and it is used to encompass a number of formal
medical diagnoses. The first one is fetal alcohol syndrome,
which are individuals that have a particular set of facial
features, growth deficiencies and CNS cognitive impairments.
Partial fetal alcohol syndrome are individuals that have some
of those physical features but not all, but they have the same
cognitive and CNS malformation impairments.

And then ARND, which is a condition where they don't
have any of the physical features of FAS; they don't have
facial features. They're not necessarily short statured when
they were young, but they have the exact same set of cognitive
CNS impairments.

Q SO ——

MR. OWENS: Judge, if I could interject for just a
minute. I guess I have an objection or a question at least or

a concern regarding the exhibits that we're using because the
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record should now reflect that we've moved into a PowerPoint
that I guess is in the exhibits as Exhibit 21, and that's now
being displayed.

I'm not sure the manner in which we've been using
these exhibits that are in a binder, 22 exhibits provided to me
by the federal public defender, it seems to be documents
already on file in this court for the most part from what I've
seen so far, and they're being used to refresh witnesses'
recollections. So I've been using them for that purpose. If
some or more of them are going to be admitted at some point, I
might very well have an objection, but if it's just to refresh
memories, that's one thing.

And now we've got the PowerPoint going on. I don't
know if they intend to, since it's in with the exhibits, I
don't know if it's just for demonstrative purposes or they're
offering the actual content of the PowerPoint for the truth. I
just don't know where we're going with the exhibits, I guess.

THE COURT: Yes. Why don't you clarify.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: Your Honor, our —-- our intention was
going to be that at the conclusion of all of this we would
address the issue of whether these documents should be admitted
or not.

Now, for present purposes, this is being offered as a
demonstrative aid. We believe that the witness is going to

refer to it to elucidate the Court about his testimony. So I
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think probably at this time an objection as to its
admissibility is premature. We're simply offering it as a
demonstrative aid and the Court can, you know, reply upon the
testimony solely at this point.

THE COURT: Well, I don't know that an objection is
premature at this point. If you're wanting to offer it as a
substantive exhibit, generally you would lay the foundation and
then move to admit it before the Court would consider it since
I'm the finder of fact in this proceeding. If it's a
demonstrative aid only, then generally what I do in those cases
would be that it is marked as a court exhibit as something, you
know, any time a PowerPoint is used, even in trial, where it's
used I have marked those copies as court exhibits for a
complete record of what was put forth in the hearing or in the
trial in the case of a trial. So —-

MR. WISNIEWSKI: So basically you would want to
address this issue now?

THE COURT: So you need to make a decision. Is it a
demonstrative aid, or, otherwise, you lay the proper foundation
for why this should come in as an exhibit.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: We're fine with it being marked as a
court exhibit as a demonstrative aid, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. OWENS: And I have no objection to its use in

that way. The other exhibits I guess we'll deal with as they
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come about, but so far, to my knowledge, they've just been used
as refreshing memory.
THE COURT: All right.
BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:
0 So now, Doctor, you said that each of these three
conditions you spoke about -- FAS, PFAS and ARND, they all

feature central nervous system dysfunction as part of their

effects?

A That's correct.

) Okay. And what is central nervous system
dysfunction?

A Central nervous system dysfunction is dysfunction in

the brain. CNS consists of both the brain and spinal cord and
peripheral nerves. We're looking at the central nervous system
area which is more related to the brain, so regions of the
brain, their functioning and the way that we test them through
the neuropsychological assessment to look at how those regions
are working.

Q Is there a difference between brain dysfunction and
brain damage?

A Yes. Brain damage is a medical term, that
structurally there is something damaged within the brain. As a
neuropsychologist, I don't do that. I look to see what the
person's functioning is, what the brain functioning is. So

that's what I usually discuss is functioning.

JD Reporting, Inc.
52

AA07215




o 01w N

~J

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Q And so that was —-- is it fair to say that a diagnosis
of FAS, PFAS and ARND cannot be made unless there's evidence of
brain dysfunction?

A That's correct.

Q And now, Doctor, the PowerPoint also has a term FAE.
What is that?

A FAE was a diagnostic term that was used back —-- it
started in the late '70s for individuals that didn't have the
full fetal alcohol syndrome, all the facial features. They may
have had some. They may have had none of the facial features,
but, again, they had the exact same set of CNS or brain
dysfunction, neuropsychological dysfunctions. In 1996, when
the Institute of Medicine was released, the term FAE was phased
out and replaced with either partial fetal alcohol syndrome
when there's some physical features, or ARND when there's no

physical features.

0 Doctor, what causes FASD?

A Maternal drinking during pregnancy.

Q Can other substances adversely affect a gestating
infant?

A Yes.

Q Do they do so in the same manner that alcohol does?

A No.

Q During the course of your work on this case, some of

the terminology you just talked about, did the federal public
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defender's office ask you for your assistance in developing a
poster board that could sort of serve as a glossary?
A They did.
MR. WISNIEWSKI: Okay. And, Your Honor, if I can
approach?
THE COURT: Yes.
BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:
Q Is this the poster board that was generated, Doctor?
A Yes.
MR. WISNIEWSKI: And, Your Honor, just for the
Court's information, we're going to hopefully be able to just
display that as a glossary throughout the course of this
presentation as the doctor relies on other slides.
THE COURT: Okay. Well, you better move it up closer
for my eyes then.
MR. WISNIEWSKI: All right. How close would you like
it? Towards a couple feet?
THE COURT: At least 2 feet.
MR. WISNIEWSKI: All right.
THE COURT: There you go. That's good. Thanks.
MR. WISNIEWSKI: Thank you.
BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:
Q All right. So, Doctor, why does alcohol affect a
fetus in the way it does?

A Well, alcohol freely crosses the placenta. The
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placenta offers no barrier, no filtration of alcohol, so that
within a few minutes of the mother, the pregnant woman drinking
alcohol, the blood alcohol level is equilibrated in the fetus.
The trouble is that early on in pregnancy the fetus has no
working liver, and so it has no way of processing out the
alcohol. It's dependent upon the mother in order to process
alcohol, and so, unfortunately, alcohol then stays on board in
the fetus's system for longer periods than it would've if it
had a functioning liver.

Q What are some of the —-— what is the onset of CNS
damage that can result from that alcohol exposure in the early
stages of pregnancy?

A Well, in animal studies, they found damage that has
occurred within 12 hours of exposure.

0 And what is this slide, Doctor?

A This is a study that was done by Kathy Sulik of
rodents, and they administered alcohol to the moms, and then 12
hours later they sacrificed mom and fetus, and they stained the
tissue of the fetus. And what they stained for are dead cells.
And so where the arrows are pointing on the left, all those
black dots are dead cells in the mouse fetus.

On the right, you notice that they're congregated in
that kind of frontal tip area, and that area is the region of
the fetal tissue that goes on to become the brain in a

developed rat.
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Q And this was after just 12 hours of alcohol exposure?

A This was 12 hours after alcohol was exposed —- they
were exposed to alcohol.

Q Okay. Not 12 hours of constant exposure?

A No. No, it was not 12 hours of constant exposure.

Q Oh, okay. What are the biochemical processes by
which this type of brain cell death develops?

A Well, alcohol is what's called teratogenic drug, and
a teratogen is a substance that will kill fetal tissue. So
let's say you have a petri dish. You put a live cell, I'll
call it a nerve cell because that's what I most pay attention
to, you put a live cell into there. 1It's perfectly happy to
function in that -- in that petri dish. You put alcohol into
that petri dish. It will kill that cell. So it has a direct
toxic effect of killing the cell.

Also, as alcohol is metabolized by the mother through
the liver, there is a -- one of its metabolites called acid
alcohol -- acetaldehyde, and that is also a noted teratogenic
drug. So even during the process of the mother's filtering out
and breaking down alcohol, there are chemicals that are being
created that also will directly kill the cells.

Alcohol also has a tendency to restrict flow of blood
through the umbilical cord, and so you can get situations of
essentially hypoxia, lack of oxygen, to the fetus. And then

alcohol has an impact on the development of brain cells
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throughout the course of pregnancy. It can affect when the
cells are first being created, genesis. It can affect when the
cells are copying themselves, proliferation.

It can affect when the cells are moving from a
central location where they're developed to the location that
they need to end up in the fully developed brain, and that's
the migration process. In fact, some of the earliest autopsy
studies found clumps of cell bodies in areas where they
shouldn't be, in the middle of white matter pathways.

And then there's another process that's a normal
process called pruning or apoptosis where we have a lot more
connections within the brain than we need, and we have to pare
them back. Alcohol can stop that process. So you have
connections that are going to places that they shouldn't be
going. Think of like an electric sort of a system. You're
getting electric connections going to the wrong parts of the
brain. So you get short circuits within the system because of
that.

Q And now I just want to make sure I'm understanding
you correctly. You spoke about that acetaldehyde. You know,
some of your earlier testimony was that one of the reasons that
alcohol was so damaging is that alcohol passes freely through
the placenta and directly impacts the developing infant. Is
that affect of the byproduct of the absorption of alcohol by

the mother? What you're saying is that even if the mother's
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liver fully processes that alcohol the byproducts of the
alcohol breakdown still damage a developing infant?

A Right. Acetaldehyde itself gets broken down too. So
the liver is taking care of that as well, but during that time
when the acetaldehyde is in the mother's system, it's also in
the fetus's system.

Q Okay. ©Now, this is sort of all on the cellular
level. What are some of the observable disabilities that can
result from prenatal alcohol exposure?

A Well, the one most, I guess, catastrophic is just
death. The fetus may not be viable. So there may be
spontaneous abortion, or the child may be stillborn or die very
soon after birth, but then there are the physical
malformations. I'm sure that Dr. Davies will be talking about
these in much more detail, the physical facial features.
There's also growth deficiencies that can occur, and then what
I pay attention to, the functional deficits, the deficits in
learning and attention and planning and problem solving and
processing of information, things like that.

Q Now, is the brain dysfunction greater among persons
who have the accompanying physical abnormalities, or is it —-
or can it be the same regardless?

A It can be —- it can be the same. In fact, people
that don't have the physical anomalies can actually have far

worse impairments in cognitive function.
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Q And now why is that? Because, you know, you might
assume that it sort of progresses as a steady progression of
damage, the effects of alcohol. Why does it seem to target
some areas more than others?

A Well, it has to do with the timing of alcohol. The
physical features, the facial features of FAS actually get laid
down very early in pregnancy, like six to the eighth week of
pregnancy, a lot of times before the woman even knows that
she's pregnant. So if she drinks during that tight window, you
can see the physical features of FAS. But if she doesn't drink
during that window, no physical features.

But if she drinks after she finds out that she's
pregnant and continues on drinking throughout the course of
pregnancy, there are what, six more months plus of alcohol on
board this fetus, on board the system as the fetus is
developing. So you can get at least equal impairment,
sometimes worse impairments.

Q Now, have any alcohol exposure tests been conducted
in a laboratory setting?

A Yes. There have been quite a few. This is one
particular one that really exemplifies the neuropsych side of
things, the functional deficits for individuals with FAS.

0 And what is this detour learning test?

A So this is a test where you have this room set up

of —— with a window, and you can look through the window, and
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you see a food dish, and you put a chick in there, and the goal
is, of course, to try and figure out how to get to the food.
When you put a normal chick into that room, it sees the food.
It runs towards the food. It bonks its beak on the window.

It may do that a couple of times, but it learns, and
then it starts looking around the room. It starts
problem-solving. It sees that there's a doorway. It goes out,
gets to the food. You grab the chick. You throw it back into
the room. It sees the food through the window and goes, oh,
yeah, I figured this out. It goes out the door and goes to
find the food. 1It's learned the problem-solving approach.

You take that chick away, put it in later, a few days
later or a week later. It may take a couple of trials, but it
quickly learns to go out the door and get the food.

When you put a chick that was exposed to alcohol in
ovum, it will see the food. It will run towards the food. It
will bonk its beak on the window, picks itself up, sees the
food, runs towards the food, bonks its beak on the window. It
does it over and over again. It's what we call perseverations,
doing the same thing even though they have negative
consequences for you.

It may eventually find that door. It goes out the
door, gets to the food. You put it back in. It starts bonking
its beak on the window. It takes it a lot longer to learn how

to solve the problem, but it may learn it. You take the chick

JD Reporting, Inc.
60

AA07223




o 01w N

~J

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

away, bring it back a week later, put it back in. It's almost
as 1f it had never seen this before. It starts bonking its
beak on the window. It takes a long time to relearn the task.
So they have a hard time retaining information over time.

Q Now, Doctor, you had said that Dr. Davies talks a lot
about some of the physical characteristics. Does this slide
demonstrate some of the neurological impairments that, you
know, occur with alcohol exposure?

A Yeah. Well, part of the thing about alcohol exposure
is it has different impacts on the body, on the fetus depending
on when during pregnancy. Early in pregnancy, the first
trimester is a lot of the physical anomalies, the facial
anomalies.

Second trimester, that's when you get a lot more of
the spontaneous abortions, when you're trying to actually bring
the systems together and on line and it doesn't work out. It's
spontaneously aborted.

And then the third trimester tends to be kind of this
rapid growth. Most of the development's there, but you just
got to get bigger to get ready for delivery, but any time
during the course of the pregnancy the brain is developing, and
you can impact the development during any time during the
pregnancy, all three trimesters.

) Is that continual brain development is that

referenced on this slide as well?
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A Yes.

Q What does this chart show?

A It's a little bit of a messy one. This is in the
standard dysmorphology books. It shows kind of periods of time
when these different regions of the fetus are being developed.
So you got the CNS with the very dark blue lines which shows
that the heaviest period of development is throughout most of
the pregnancy all the way up to about 20 weeks. The light blue
means that there's some going on, but it's not as critical of a
time period.

The heart, the limbs, the eyes, notice that most of
that is done by the eighth week of pregnancy. The pallet,
which would be the lip and the philtrum that you see in FASD,
again, about the seventh to eighth week of pregnancy. So
that's what this chart is kind of showing in a different way.

Q Now, these CNS deficits that we have been talking
about, would they reveal themselves in a person's IQ score?

A They can. Yes.

Q Okay. What do you mean by can as opposed to will?

A I should say —-- I should amend that to say that yes,
it does impact their IQ, but throughout our research, what we
found was that it doesn't impact them necessarily to the level
where they are considered intellectually disabled based off of
a standard IQ score. People that have the full facial features

of FAS had an average score of about 79 which is actually in
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the borderline range.

But people who had fetal alcohol effects, so now we
call them partial fetal alcohol syndrome or ARND, their average
score was actually 90. It was definitely lower than average
which is 100, and that's what the black line in the background
is i1s the average for normal individuals. So it's definitely
decreased, but it's not something that is decreased into the
impaired range.

And that's why I often talk about IQ as being really
kind of a poor predictor of fetal alcohol spectrum disorders.
Yes, it's impacted, but it's not one where you would give Jjust
an IQ test and say, yes, this person has fetal alcohol spectrum
disorder.

Q And there were other deficits that IQ alone doesn't
encompass?

A Absolutely.

Q Okay. And I think you spoke about this a little bit,
but are the deficits a person suffering from FAE, Fetal Alcohol
Effects, now known as PFAS and ARND, are they more pronounced
in certain areas as opposed to others?

A Yes. Yes, they are. Neuropsychologically in
general, but this is some research that was done in the
mid-90s that was showing that individuals with FAS and even
more pronounced for those that had the FAE or PFAS, ARND

impairments in academic functioning, especially arithmetic --
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once you get past one plus one equals two, math is actually
pretty —-- very abstract concept -- and also in their adaptive
skills, their daily living abilities, how they can function
independently on their own in a real-world setting when they're
not getting a lot of support around them.

And individuals with —-- especially with the
individuals with FAE, they tended to have a bigger difference
between what you'd expect based off of their IQ and what you
see on their actual testing of academic skills and adaptive
skills, and, in fact, when you come to adaptive skills, on
average they were functioning within the intellectually
disabled range.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: And I'm going to see if this works.
Nope, it doesn't.

Your Honor, can I approach the board?

THE COURT: Yes.

BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:
Q Okay. So, Doctor, I just want to, you know, draw
this out a little bit more. This chart —-

THE COURT: I need a microphone.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: Oh, you can't hear?

THE COURT: Right.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: I was trying to talk loud.

(Pause in the proceedings)

BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:
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0 So, Doctor --
Is it on?
THE COURT: No, that's not close enough. I said
like -- there you go.
MR. WISNIEWSKI: There we go.
BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:

Q So, Doctor, you were talking about that there are
adaptive deficits that are even much lower than their IQ and
learning disabilities would predict. Is this the adaptive
deficits that you were talking about?

A Those four diamonds on the far right are the adaptive
functioning scores in that study.

Q Okay. And these three diamonds in the middle, those
are the learning disabilities?

A Yes.

Q Basically. And the dot that's up there is the IQ?

A That's the average IQ. Yes.

Q Okay. And these are all mean so that this graphical
representation is basically showing you the level of deficit
directly; correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Thank you. So now turning to the next slide.
Were there formal guidelines ever developed on how to diagnose
FASD?

A Yes. There have been guidelines developed from the
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'70s all the way through. They've been refined as time goes
on.

Q Okay. What are the —-- what are the Institute of
Medicine guidelines?

A These were published in 1996, and they're a set of
guidelines that establish that fetal alcohol syndrome, partial
fetal alcohol syndrome, ARND diagnostics scheme. What I've got
up here on the slide is only my area, the CNS. It has specific
criteria when it comes —-- or criteria when it comes to facial
features and growth, but with respect to the neuropsych side of
things, these are the criteria that they put out as part of
their -- for the diagnosis.

Q And when were these guidelines published?

A They were published early in 1996. I think around
April.

Q Okay. Now, you said that diagnoses occurred though
as far back as the '70s.

A Yes.

Q How did diagnosis occur prior to 19967

A It was —- there were guidelines that had been
developed, had been published. They tended to be a little bit
less formalized. There was a lot more emphasis especially on
the physical side of things of kind of doing more of a holistic
evaluation, looking at them kind of overall, looking at the

physical features, not necessarily doing very precise
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measurements.

In the CNS again, the neuropsychological findings,
they weren't very heavily codified. It was we're looking for a
series of impairments. They are kind of complicated
impairments. They're beyond what you would expect for somebody
that would have, like, ADHD or things like that. So it was a
little bit fuzzy. So the IOM was trying to codify that more
formally, more —-- a little bit more specifically.

Q I see. So is it fair to say that prior to
publication of these guidelines there was a little bit more
room for individual examiner discretion, whereas once they were
codified, most of the country followed a very similar standard?

A Yes, the standards became much more "similarized".
Yeah.

Q And now you said that as a neuropsychologist you
focus on these areas, the CNS dysfunction. Just for everyone's
awareness, what are the other guideline criteria for an
eventual diagnosis of FASD?

A Well, with the exception of full fetal alcohol
syndrome, there has to be some sort of knowledge about prenatal
exposure to alcohol. The reason why you can do full fetal
alcohol syndrome without is because the facial features, the
three facial features are so specific to FAS that we haven't
found it in any other condition at this point. So you can do

it then.
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Then it would be the facial features, the eyes. The
list of the important facial features became the eyes, thin
upper lip and the philtrum, the ridges between the nose and the
upper lip, growth deficiencies, looking at size differences and
then the CNS deficiencies. So with respect to the CNS, it was
looking for a complex pattern of behavioral cognitive
impairments that you can't explain just by family, that you
can't explain just by environment.

Q Okay. ©Now, this, I guess to put it broadly, was sort
of the state of the science in 19967

A Yes.

Q What were the diagnostic criteria in use in 2007 when
Mr. Chappell's penalty retrial occurred?

A In 2004, the CDC, Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, published some modified guidelines to FASD where
they became much more specific in how you make the diagnosis.
As far as the physical features, there were ranges of size that
you're looking for and percentiles. Similarly, in the CNS side
of things, you were —- they codified out that you needed to
have either IQ that's within the intellectually disabled range
or deficits in at least three domains of functioning, and these
deficits had to be at least one standard deviation below the
mean. So they were much more codified, much more rigid sorts
of guidelines that were set out.

Q Perfect. And was there in your opinion need for
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further codification and rigidity in this area?

A Yes. Even, you know, the IOM made great strides
improving, but it's still talking about a complex pattern, and
so that's still kind of fuzzy. The nice thing with the CDC was
it's rigid. You need to have deficits in these -- in three
domains, has to be at least one standard deviation. So you can
apply it in every case.

It becomes much more reliable now because I can do it
in this case. I can do it in another case, and I'm using the
same criteria, that same cut point. I don't have to kind of go
well, you know, it's a little bit fuzzier on this one. 1I'll
give it to them here, but I won't give it to them there. No, I
have to find these three domains —-- or deficits in three
domains. So it's much more rigid that way.

Q Now, generally speaking, when you engage in your
neuropsychological assessments, what do you do? What are you
looking for?

A I'm looking for that, again, the brain dysfunction.
I'm looking for strengths and weaknesses that a person may be
having. I'm not diagnosing brain damage. Having said that,
when it comes to fetal alcohol syndrome, by definition, that is
a form of brain damage. So at that point it becomes a brain
damage issue.

The tests that neuropsychologists developed over the

years were looking at different skills, different functions —--
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memory, attention, planning, problem-solving -- and a lot of
times they were built off of studies of people that have had
some sort of an injury to those regions of the brain, and so we
measure those sorts of things. And what we're looking for is
we're looking for impairments or good functioning, both.

And an impairment i1s a situation where the person is
functioning at a level where at least 84 percent of the
population is doing better than them. That would be the cut
off for a mild impairment. From there on, as you get further
and further away from the mean or less and less percentile,
then the impairments become more and more severe.

And then with respect to the fetal alcohol diagnosis,
my goal, what I am doing, what I'm asked to do in these cases
is I'm looking for the strengths and weaknesses, just like any
neuropsychologist would do for any kind of case, and I'm
looking to see if the pattern of the functioning is consistent
with an FASD, looking to see if they do meet those three domain
deficit guidelines.

I look to see are there any other potential competing
ideoclogies that needs to be brought to the attention of the MD
because they need to take that into account when they make
their formal diagnosis, and so I provide that information then
to the MD who does the physical evaluation.

Q What do you typically see in your FASD diagnosis in

the evaluations of people who have FASD?
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A Yeah. When I see people with FASD, like we saw in
that one -- that one chart, I don't expect to see people that
have IQs within the intellectually disabled range. That's the
minority, maybe 20 percent, but I often will see splits in IQ
domains. So they may do really well on language-based tasks,
but do really poorly on nonlanguage-based tasks. I often see
that in people with FASD.

I expect to see kind of patchy functioning. They do
well here; they do poorly here. And it's kind of —-- it's very
irregular sort of a pattern of functioning. This is compared
to let's say a person that has an intellectual disability for
some other reason. We typically will see a lot of the scores
are low, kind of consistently low, similar to what you expect
for their IQ. Or people that have much more focal injuries,
like a stroke, you expect to see them doing fairly well in most
areas, but that one part of the brain that's been affected by
the stroke we expect to see impairments that are -- relate to
that.

With FASD, because of the nature of alcohol exposure
and how it can occur anytime during pregnancy, all the way
across pregnancy, a lot of doses, we expect to see different
skills being affected. We don't really see a set single
profile for people with FASD because of that variability in
exposure. So I expect that. However, I typically will see

academic impairments, math especially.
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I typically see some sort of social adaptive
impairments with these individuals, and they're doing worse
than you expect based off of IQ, oftentimes very close to or
within the intellectually disabled range.

I expect to see executive function deficits,
planning, problem-solving, learning from mistakes, those
perseverations that we talked about. And I often will see them
coming up more in types of tests where they don't have a whole
lot of structure to go on.

You've got certain executive function tests where I
give you basically the rules. You know what you can and you
know what you can't do. You know what your goal is. You just
have to do that task. Then I have other tests that I give them
where I'm not going to tell you how to solve it. You have to
figure that out on your own. Those are the lower structure
tests. We tend to see people with FAS do much more poorly in

those areas. That's where the perseverations often will come

out.

And like we see the variability of functioning at any
given time —-- they do well in some areas, poor in other
areas —- we often see variability over time. So one day they

may be able to remember things reasonably well but the next day
they can't. Parents and teachers complain about this all the
time for people with fetal alcohol. It's like one day they

just don't get it anymore, but then they get it again later.
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It's very confusing to families because of that variability.
Q Now, turning our attention to Mr. Chappell in
particular, did you conduct a neuropsychological assessment

here for FASD?
A I did.
) And when did that occur?
A I saw him over the course of two days, May 23rd and
May 24th of 201e6.
Q Okay. And where was that?
At Ely State Prison.
How much time did you spend with Mr. Chappell?

A little shy of nine hours with him.

(OIS ©

Is that a typical amount of time for you to conduct
these type of interviews?

A It was actually a little bit long in his case. He
was very slow to process information.

Q Okay. Even among other people who have been
diagnosed with FASD?

A Yes. I mean, there's a very large range of
individuals with FASD. There are ones who tend to be much more
fast, fast, fast, and I can get the testing done quickly. Then
there are the ones that are kind of the very slow plodders.
They have to think really hard about it.

Q Okay.

A And it takes longer.
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And he was on the longer end of this?

Yes.

(O ©)

How did you prepare for this meeting?

A Well, I have a battery of tests that I use in pretty
much every case where I'm suspecting FASD. The tests are
actually ones —-- either the tests are or the skills that
they're measuring are ones that specifically in research we've
found to be sensitive to the impacts of prenatal alcohol
exposure.

They're not specific to it necessarily. You can't
say that his performance on the Rey complex figure test, his
poor performance means that he's got FASD. It just means he's
got an impairment when you look at the patterns overall. But
the tests were ones that were sensitive to prenatal alcohol
exposure, and they measure a broad range of domains of
functioning.

Q Do you do the same test for every person you're
assessing for FASD, or do you choose different testing methods
based on the individual?

A I usually use pretty much the same tests for
everybody with FASD because it's that battery that I know is
something that's sensitive.

Q And that's something you've developed over your years
of practice?

A Yes. Through the research that I did, through the
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research that others did around the country.

Q Did you review any materials, documents to give you
background on Mr. Chappell's case before meeting with him?

A I did.

Q Okay. And those were the ones that you previously
talked about, were listed as Exhibit 187?

A Yes. Yes.

Q Now, you spoke a little bit about how some of your
examinees, you know, speak very quickly. Others are more slow
and methodical. They're really trying to think things through.
Did you conduct any testing in particular on Mr. Chappell to
see 1f he was giving optimal effort to his testing?

A Yes, I did.

Q Okay. And that effort testing, how does that relate

to the concept of malingering?

A Malingering is kind of one end of the spectrum of
effort. It's —-- malingering is a situation where a person is
actively trying to fake bad in order to gain -- get a secondary

goal. The testing that I do, at one extreme, yes, it can pick
up if a person is malingering, but what I'm also very
interested in is just how much -- how much work is he doing for
me? How hard is he working? How much effort is he putting
out? And so that's why I do these tests.

Some of these tests are embedded within tests.

They're hidden. Others are standalone. None of them are —-- I
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don't tell them, oh, here we are on our malingering test now,
but they may be standalone tests that we do. They may be ones
that are built right into tests.

Q And what were the results of the testing that you did
for Mr. Chappell?

A In all cases he performed very well, made very few
errors.

Q Now, I know that you said that IQ was a poor
predictor of FASD, but did you perform intelligence testing on
Mr. Chappell anyway?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And why do you do that nonetheless?

A Well, it may be a poor predictor of FASD, but it's
very helpful at elucidating kind of comparisons. How is he
doing on other neuropsychological adaptive tests compared to
what the IQ would say? And also, like I said, oftentimes we do
see these variability in functions across domains within the IQ
test, and that is something that we see with fetal alcohol.

Q What was Mr. Chappell's full-scale IQ here?

A It was measured at 86. The challenge that we have is
that there was quite a bit of variability between the domains,
and when you do that, the full-scale IQ, which is essentially
an average of those scores tends to be less —-- less reliable
from that perspective. It's not a good representation of his

overall functioning.
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Q And that variability, that's the splits that you
talked about before?

A Yes.

0 So the chart here, it seems to show, and correct me
if I'm wrong, that in verbal areas he was testing very near the
mean?

A Correct.

Q And for areas like working memory, he was actually
testing as borderline intellectual disability; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. And that's those type of splits you talked
about?

A Right. And that's quite a significant split between
the scores.

Q Did you compare Mr. Chappell's present results to any
of his prior intellectual testing?

A I did.

Q Okay. And how did that testing compare?

A They were —-- they were fairly consistent. Overall IQ
again not a great predictor just because of the splits, was
fairly similar to IQ testing back in 1996. They didn't give
scores back in 1986 but kind of borderline low average which is
actually a very similar range to what mine is at. There was a
difference when it comes to the VIQ/VCI column, but that

difference is a little bit of an artifact because with the
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WAIS-R, they create a score called a VIQ, and that VIQ includes
both the verbal test, like you see on the VCI down in the 2016,
the 96 and --

Oh, I can do it.

—-— and it includes the working memory component. So
both of those end up going into the VIQ score, and so that
accounts for some of the change.

There was also a bit of a change just in -- for
Mr. Chappell in that he did do a lot better on one particular
test, one particular subtest which was information which is
basically fact, fact sorts of items. You know, who was the
president during World War II, different things like that. He
did do better on the second trial.

Q Was this -- was this confluence of current and prior
intelligence testing, was that consistent with what you would
expect in an FASD person?

A Yes.

Q Oh, it stayed up there.

A Stayed up there.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: Do we know how to clear that?

THE COURT: Yeah. I can get it. There we go.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:
Q Now, you also compared Mr. Chappell's IQ intelligence

testing to his prior academic testing; correct?
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A Correct.

Q And what were the results of that comparison?

A Again, they were quite similar. He tended to do
better on more language-based tasks, but math has consistently
been an area of considerable weakness for him, and I found that
on my testing, and it was being shown a lot throughout the
course of his history.

Q All right. So now we've talked about the IQ. We've
talked about the academic testing, and you previously stated,

I believe, that there has to be evidence of deficit level
functioning in three domains in order to be classified as
potentially appropriate for an FASD diagnosis?

A Yes.

Q How many areas did Mr. Chappell fall into the deficit
[unintelligible]?

A In nine domains.

Q Okay. And that's probably pretty small type, but can
you tell the Court what those nine domains are.

A Within the academic domain, especially math, learning
and memory domain, he had a very hard time learning new
information, kind of like the chicks, although, when it was
really concrete, he could retain it pretty well, but he had
troubles learning. When it was more complex language-based
skills, he had considerable difficulties learning and

remembering; and on visual sorts of tasks, considerable
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difficulty. So memory domain across both sides, significantly
impacted.

Visual-spatial skills is another area that is kind of
a hallmark for fetal alcohol. Show him a complex picture, he
has to copy it. So he has to organize what he sees, take it
in, understand what he's looking at and be able to reproduce
it. So it takes a lot of effort on that part, and that was
another area of impairment. So that's one of the domains.

Q Okay. And, Doctor, I'm sorry to interrupt, but, you
know, just getting back a little bit, this chart, is this a
profile of what his test scores are?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And, you know, our expectation was that we
were just going to talk about a couple of the areas that
Mr. Chappell scored particularly in rather than having to go
over the full nine because we only have a one day hearing here.
But you —— I believe you were starting to talk about the
visual-spatial domain; correct?

A I pretty much finished with that one.

Q Oh, you finished with that one. Okay. And you spoke
about memory as well?

A Yes.

Q Okay. So those were my top two that I wanted you to
talk about. Is there anything that I cut you off from that you

felt was —--
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Yeah. The other one that was --
-— elucidating?

I'm sorry. Now, I cut you off again.

LGN © T

No. No. No. My bad.

A The other one that's particularly telling is in the
executive function domain where he was demonstrating
considerable difficulties in planning. In problem-solving, he
was perseverative in his testing. So those are kind of the
three really cardinal key domains, and then he had deficits in
other domains, including processing speed.

Q Okay. The executive functioning domain, what
real-world skills does that domain govern?

A Well, it's something that very closely ties into
adaptive skills because you have to -— you come on a situation
that you don't know how to deal with. It's new for you. You
have to, one, rely on your history —-- what do you know that's
similar to this -- to be able to apply that in order to try and
solve this new problem; and it's also, once you have figured
out how to do it, can you stick with it and not fall off track
and suddenly do something different that's no longer helping
you.

Q That's the control chickens who even a couple days
later they may have made one mistake but still knew to find
that door?

A Right.
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Q Okay. And that ties into adaptive functioning you
said?

A It does.

Q So getting to adaptive functioning, Doctor, what are
the Vineland scales of adaptive behavior?

A They are a interview form that i1s administered to
people that know the individual well at certain times during
the life. They can be done retrospectively, and they ask a
series of questions of can this person do this skill completely
independently, no help whatsoever. Do they sometimes need
help, or do they always need some sort of help, and these are
Just normal day-to-day skills that they have to -- that a
normal person would have to do independently out in the real
world.

Q And what domains does the Vineland test for?

A It assesses communication skills. It assesses kind
of daily living skills —-- hygiene, cleaning around the house --
also work-related skills, and then it also measures kind of
social skills -- interactions, interpersonal interactions,
coping, things like that.

o) Okay. Now, this test, was this geared towards
Mr. Chappell's functioning in 2016 or prior to that?

A Prior to that.

Q Around what age of his?

A Age 25.
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Q Okay. And why that age?

A Because that was a time in his life before he came
into prison for this current case. So he was in the real world
environment, and so all of these sorts of domains could be
assessed because it's not a highly structured environment like
a prison environment would be.

Q Did you administer this testing yourself?

A No, I didn't.

Q Who did?

A Joanne Sparrow. She's a —-- she was a Ph.D. student.
She had also previously been a psychometrist, and that's
basically what she was doing on this. She was acting as a
psychometrist for me under my supervision. She administered
the interviews to these informants.

Q And you said she was one of your students?

A No, she was not one of my students.

Q Oh, okay.

A But she was a student in the Ph.D. program, clinical
Ph.D. program, and we used her as a psychometrist for these
interviews.

Q Okay. And is it normal in your field to have someone
else perform psychometric testing on occasion?

A Absolutely.

Q Is it actually rare for you to do this testing

yourself?
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A It's relatively rare. I know a lot of
neuropsychologists that do -- that have psychometrists do all
of the testing. I don't do that. I like to do the testing
myself a lot of times.

Q Okay. What steps go into the Vineland scales of
adaptive behavior?

A I don't quite follow. I mean, it's an interview
format asking them can they do this or that independently,
semi-independently or can't do it at all independently.

Q Okay. And they take the statements from the
reporters and work them into a scoring mechanism?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And how do you ensure that the people who are
selected for testing, you know, are giving optimal effort, are
reporting truthfully, things like that?

A Well, there's a couple methods that I do that. One
of them is that at the same time that we do the Vineland we
give a test called the BRIEF, which is another questionnaire,
and part of that questionnaire is it asks questions about bias.
Does the person look at this person as being —-- in an overly
negative way? It also looks to see if this person is
consistent in their responses, and so it asks these sorts of
questions to kind of catch on to those sorts of things, and so
we did that in this case.

Q And now, did the reporters here pass the BRIEE?
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A Yes, they passed the BRIEF.

Q Okay. And I see that the names of the reporters are
James Ford, Terry Wallace and Myra Chappell-King. How are
reporters chosen for the testing?

A Well, T give a list of criteria to the attorneys. We
want to interview people that know the individual well, knew
him during a period of time close to the time of the case but
before that, and interacted with him on a frequent basis.
That's really the main criteria that we give, and then the
attorneys will provide us with contact information for
individuals that they feel meet those criteria.

Q Now, you said that Ms. Sparrow took the reports of
these people. What is the next step in the adaptive -—-

THE COURT: Let me ask a question.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Before I forget it. Thank you.

So when there's been a time gap of 20 years, and now
you're asking these people to —-

THE WITNESS: Right.

THE COURT: -- think about a time that was more than
20 years ago, does that -- is there some control for that in
this?

THE WITNESS: There's no optimal control for that,
but what we do is we do talk about, okay, what was kind of

going on in life during that time? We try and bring them back

JD Reporting, Inc.
85

AA07248




o 01w N

~J

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

to that period of time of, you know, kind of linking it to
events in the life so that they can kind of get into that,
recalling more about that time period.

You know, also when it's people that have known them
for a very long time, it's kind of a cumulative knowledge, up
until they were 25. So that can kind of have a bolstering
effect of understanding them better and being able to recall
that sort of thing better about the individual.

And, you know, there are the challenges
retrospectively. We all agree that there are challenges to
these retrospective reports, but it's certainly a valid use.
It's, you know, endorsed by the testing companies and has been
used very frequently in these sorts of settings where you do
have to look back in history in order to get a feel for how the
person is doing back then.

THE COURT: Okay. And are —- the other testing was a
couple slides back. So you're testing also these particular
folks who are -- obviously have —-- they're aligned with
Mr. Chappell. They're from his family; right?

THE WITNESS: Family, friends.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: Family and friends.

THE COURT: So what is done to make sure they're not
also reporting to you in a way that would be favorable to

Mr. Chappell?
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THE WITNESS: Right. And that's -- that's the
two-pronged thing that I do. The first one is with the BRIEF.
I look to see if they do tend to have a reporting bias —-- do
they tend to report him doing really, really bad in every
aspect? That would be a negative bias -- and then also looking
to see if they're kind of consistent reporters, things like
that.

And then the second aspect is I look to see if the
reporters are kind of consistent with each other. We are not
interviewing them as a group together. We're interviewing
them, sorry, separately, and we want to see if there's a lot of
overlap between their reports, and so those are ways that we
work towards kind of making -- taking into account and trying
to control for whether there could be some sort of bias.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. WISNIEWSKI: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. WISNIEWSKI:

Q And so, you know, Doctor, the one thing I was just
going to ask you about was sort of that cross validation.
That's something that you did here?

A Yes.

Q And now you also talked about the negative bias of
everyone reporting Mr. Chappell as being very bad. What is
positive bias?

A Positive bias is basically trying to say, you know,
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LANSING Serm gy
LANSING scHooL DISTRICT (o

BUPPCAT Stmacis Coen o~
L] i
Iﬂl—ll:.l.-

S0iooL gocyar WORK EVALUATION

Hamo: Jnmgy Chappe]]

Suppor: Conter ] Dote: 11/12/a8
drehdaees 18 Sens ¥ale Legal Cuacdlant Eloca Azom
Sehegl; Sextan l.h:lomhin Crandnsthey
Crede Taachary Mdeenn;  3a2] Wedgewoad Dy,
Primary Language: English

Talophane: 882-5524
SV Evalootae, Tharuss Abad
Rsunon for fuferrnl

Routing thrge Yene pg-

Reptures Pata

Studant Intatviow

Intervigy Yith Crandmotiioe
Ravicd of pocargs

Consultag fon with Sehaoy Paychalagisg

}'nnll.z Lonarotlation

Al

¥eluariom,

Living ot homg vith famge,

1. crnndmllmr. “laca Awn

Atademy, |0 a.a, -}
. Mele, Rodnay, gge 3¢
1. Stutor, Hyea,

", age 351, employed wigh 3tata rulica
[N
» CMD oyod ag pf g,

Inewib(ta, 3 Pem, = 1 g g,
A Lemin Soxtan,

Living Quetniio ehy Mome:  Japuwt thtingng

I lapriane , are M, who gy Hved wigy nat ral fachur atpgg
theea manghiy ot fRCr NE wnrky fue his [athge wiho blackenpu
*° Preparing to yo go cullopa,
1. Carla, e 19, Stw ban twn chittdeon fAges g and § sinthy,
She 1lven 4y 9N Spartmone ¢ Logen ang Jolly, Shae plans gn
€St mrricd pepg wnth for gy flens ting, (lar tlance ia
"ot the children'y {ather,) She {8 nag cenieyed outsfde ela
hone

- Wllge, age (8, 1n July be vag Inencecratod dug o heonklig and
encating, Ilg hna mt Lol ae bony stneo 1984 wiign he uan pone
50 the mnyry Noms 1n Crayliog fur nine monthy, Alter that he lived

oF ol mouthe, Elnge Tebruacy, 1980, unct1 ne

Yoa srrasted, he livad vith hin Atng Cacla, Jin' gq MY eupected

e gt oue nf jaqy URELL Harck, pon,

THERE'S N BETTER PLACE T LEARNt
v - h-hmt‘lﬁ-llﬂmcll LU

gt Dlavncy
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James Chappell
Toge 1

€, Clars Azan’s oflapring (beslden Radney)s

1. Achony Anamt Tn 1980 he wiea stabbed 27 tlmes and diuvd. ho
and Jamos had juse starved forming m cloms relecionship.

1.  paughter (Jomua' mother) was killodl by & polles car whilo walklng
acromn tha stTeet la Aspust. 197,

1. Sheemn, age J1, Lives in mn aparemanc and has one child, ¥ yeaes
old, who frequently spehds wetkends ae Glara’s home. Sha 13 nat
aarricd end La currencly & homcmakor. At onc tlme she warked for
Oldssabile.

Sefnece Jamas' natursl wather d1ed, he eml hin slhlings spenc wuch tlac at their
grandmothar's bousa and, In fect, vera alrosdy Living vith her ac ths time of
his sother®s Jeash, However, mothar had frequentiy vialesd the chlldren and
was uwpeclally close to Jamen, lNar daath vas a very diffieuls adjudtsant for
tho children and in parcicular, Ja #ig vaw only 2 yeors nid at the Clmg,
Janas dosa not have contact wicth hlu nacural fachesr sasepe for tha times Le has
suen him on the strect, His facher d» [requencly In jall for druns snd ather
vislationa.

Jamca and hls wiblings ars not sligible fae Sueiol Sscurlry benallts because
thelr sother had not worked long onough befors her dessh te quallly. The
childeen have Medlcaid Lenafita,

Clarn hne encountared many provlcns vith Jomas and hin slolinge. She took all
four ehildean to Enual Croumd fue crwnmvling {ar 8 year but wha felt it win snt
Lalpfel, She was Lhen gainp ta pursua peticloning Lha coorp fae
IneareiglablEity on all four grandeldldrua but this vas acver followed through
an.  Hyra hae beva dnvulvud with tlhe enerie mince the ape af ten vhan aho v
caught stuallng, She has alna rna swny (rom home, Her current caumries s
able ta get Hyrs luto privats counacling flvo werks ago with Or. Jnan Jachane
Jnhnens on Crand River in Eoat LAnsing, Tho eaurc le paybng Che cont.
Isprovesunt vas nated since thurpy bepan, howiver, Land wudk uhe wnw couplt
simpiifeing, Clara Aspm refusinl 10 ge down to tho polico statlnn hotause sho
s dlepunted ond refusea tn tencue her anpmuru.  bAatead, she gave the pullce
offlcat, Carla®s tammmithur's vnmn {BILL Hwew),

In 198 Jumga wau gaught sliopltfeing umd won placed In a Juvanlle boms for one
niptits lle wan chan placed on probation for tw yesre. Duceabor ol (9B him
preabatlun gaded, Illle enee wurher wan alen RLIL Howre. Clata feeln BilY Mnoru
vas vary Inlluential Im turniag Jasea agound, [n 1981, Jasvs ssv & therapluk
In East Lennlap, Dr. Peneil, for a yesr. lla stopped golng righe sroum) thu
arna tinw hiv comsia Anthony vas killcd,

Hyrm snd Jamen do not get alony. They continually put oaeh nthar dinm,
Turwyvsr, they dn warry about sach ather, Jomes ia Joscribed an quice, | (™)
rarely siwres hle feelinpa or Jdiscusnon 1wsuga. He wlaapa & loe and sponde
wost af hin tise bistenloa tn punic or watchlag T.¥. M hae twws closy friomi,
Onm, v J8 16, ts & powl Lnflowors, $he ather boy 1o 19 and $a continually dn
pravhle with tha law, Host nf tho timo Jnwes steys st loso,

AA07010
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ol Informicl

Clara stotes that Jamap hay bad brhavier probleas [n sghool the lssl thees
yeara. e tries to gat attanting by acting "allly”. Do has dtfticuley
complating assigamonts, Last yoir Jdnacn skipped schoal {or 28 days (rom
Sepremboc to Hovesbar, He wag ment to llerry 4111 for cha rowe of the yeur in

the Adult Educatian progran, & ot his Lwpr t, he wau mane back to
Sexten far the 1986-07 schoel yesr,

Far the past twn summars Jomes hhag
Durtng the suessr of 1985 he worked
the summur of 1986 ho coohod ar tha
enjoyn eooking and hoper to make o e

been {nvalvad vich the Vet work program,
In a tanltortal Capacliy se Semton. Durlng
cafeteria ac Hell Vocstlonal Cencer, Jum
arcer of foed management.

Jamer weated ha did veey vell the firue threa weaka of ochoul this yoar buc
then got “tired” omd atarcod skEpping wnd noc completing wuck. If ho hos yne
mara abmsenca e wil] ba Suspendud lrom sclenr), Crandmother hus vacuad him Zhag
W ha (8 wuspeaded e has oo leave the housy amb 49 sag Allowed hack, Jomea ja

pesnimlacie abaur nog klpplag wehool fur the runt of tha yuar. Jnsaw doew nut
14k9 to desss far PL and s [n Tatling,

Health Informatlon

dumzs hed hie Baet Physical in Aupuar, (98, Hodlesld now puya for n phystcal
uvary two yoars, Jases Jn dpacribed ne s vary healthy chlld vith aa
signiltcant pavr t1ingance oc injurice. e should be wsaring glosawon all the
tire, The eye Jdactor wn ant weon In Septembar, 1983 whun s new palr of
Riovses vers prescribmd, Tha only time he will voar thom im to wacch T.¥.

Crandmather haw dinbeces and a GATE Summur, Sho has te ewo ths doctor svary
tiree months, 1n 1972, she became very 111 and vew Jdingnuscd de have £1.14
(inflamazion of the senlitancu Uining the thanhare of thy hoart and surface of

the velves}, She was hespitnlized for two sonths Ine trestoane snd las not hag
& reoceurranco,

Senclaslon

From the (nformtios Katieredy reviow | rocards and (ntarview with Jowan snd
iy grandanthar, Jomcw Apponrs Le eontinue tn woet tha eritctinn far

Emotinnally Ispelred, s ¢xtilbiew ponr dolf [mape, awnidn ce behavince, poor
prebles solving ahills, Insduquate copring shille snd low acndemic mativetfon.

A ey
7;‘“-&.-4 [2&‘.1, ”’ "/ 7\“
Thuress Abed, H,9.4.

Schasl Jocdnl Vorl

B e o Lo

o i
oS iy Wiy ot e

o eve e msh admlly Ll
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LANSING SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUPPOAT [1EPACES CINTIR D¢
Ll e
Labaee, Wdmibin

PSTCIOLOGLEAL RCTORT

Howa! Jamas Chappall

Student It lﬂl;!!l-

.0.1 12711

[ ) 16-9 .

Sex! Hols

schwoli sexcon Nigh School
Geedey Spesial Education = 141
Evaluation Dote: 10723736

Teychologluee Lutie Faposh

Refacts!

Jamow vas ralegred for s routlne thres yenf re=cvalustion o doteraine il he
cantipuad to quallly fora Specin) Cducntlon FrURram.

schoal ltistory

Janca hag always attended school ta the Lansing Schonl pincrict. g wos
roferrod {ne un gvnluatlon whon hu was in tha fourth geade At Heara'n Tark
schonl becauso of diurept lve hulnvioe, agpfunsive responues and Low academic
schlsvesant. A 0 recouit of that avaluiefon hu vas placed In s specivl
Fiucutlan progran for the tmot bonally fapnived asd S¢ wul Secinl Work service
was led. That pECE cant L el el he v 8 re-ceetified In the swvanth
gradg lor spacial Fducntien pincusaut and schaul Social Mork parvlcve. Jomud
prosently attends Suxton Mah Schoul wwmry he wan all Spocinl F watlon clanwes
wigh tho axceptlon of art and gye.

Sourcegs ol fnta
Reviev al CA-CO
Paview ol foam Fila
Consuitation with $pecinl Education Coordlnntuf
Consultatian vith Team esbure
Duaarvatlons
Clinicel Incervivw
gelretnd WATS-R Sub-tostd
. yide Range Achiovemont Teat = Ruvinad

Incegprocaglon of Datn

_l_n:’nnrgl_n_u!_lnlnrm_g_llﬂ goa Schonl Social Wrker ropurt on [lla.

THERE § NO BETTER PLACE 10 LEARNL
Y Lonaing Lenasl Diswiel by ulwwmllmmbwm
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Jamas Chappull
Prya 1

Ohnersntiona  Jumw came o 1Hieply foe the cvaluat tun ot appeneecst to
ba uliy and eomewlag vichlrown, I reMl ndud LO the Puginits wode ul
hts resdily, levur,  Eoen Blasugh L ¢ somin wr | woal Ing mind 1
Larts was explained gp him, ke scomed to be discruatfol as 1€ there
van gn ulterior sative for acelnp hileme  Jumcw did not AppoAt to espect
much succens and seeped to be reulgned to having & diéficule time Ln
schnol, Although ha wag Willing te respond, he wvaw quita Lleareiculate

and shoved anainsy by svalding eye contace and ending many of his
Tasponsen with a norvous tough,

Toats adainterorsd sin
ViLthin the burderil o ¢
utily selactod aul=gestw vere admintsrervd {n arder to emsuan his ahiiley
t0 reapand fn o stryerurod Sltuation. No wignificant change vas matcd
frem ihn provious avstuntlon of ljw verbal [lyuncy amd ahstraee abilivy,
When his acadewic skilla vers nuseased, he stkmeud u wignlficant drop
[rom thase ohtaiued rtirge yonrs sgn. W ile o iad previously Loos ag

the dith percenclio i readlsg, olu weerus this ciny wuru only at tha Sch

parcentile. lis arltlociie 8core wie at the 4th porcencile previcustly and
1c 10 now At tho Ind pereentd s

The extenslve Intarvipw ruvoats |

YOU gater who aeens to Foel ha has
Lesty bapg of Mucteading in tEfu o

sreelally as It telates 1o acolumic
athlewomnt. e dld not n wear © wve many cuplng ehilifn 1o denl wich
rtublems he vnconaters and trive tn cndure vhatever eomes his way by
pracpoting ncticn e rends te vithdeaw and avold when bs onroynters
probloma and often caes what oppunes to his to be the easy vay our,

Comparod to tha svalua(ian done thres years oga, Jomes doos not Appeat ta
havs mode much progress,

Eonclusionn_gnd Recowmsndatinng
"N Joromashdatinng

The rcaults of this evalustion fndicats Jamew cont fuues 1o mect oligiblivey

fanuireeunts as an Emutlonally Jupalred mtudent. Hi santivnal problome appeny

ta incerfare with hia sbility to learn, Puyehothorapeutie Interventlon e
strongly recomsonded for him,

]
ur.tJPc -
Lutle P2 duvh

Sehool Payehologlec

et e et bt 3 bt ottt o e
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INGHAM INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT

INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PAOGRAM

uilh" (4] D Aaral RevienlE P
I!lu of !zlﬂm Goresting LB P,

Studuns Mami = llo.um Ohtrke

v £ 2-27 Y Attending Ol ity M%M
@w Mdermbory [npme, m‘
Disirict lmnﬂu ' hmm M!‘.

hm.'"m"w M«c&l—}ﬁb«
Mryiing Date 5__/¢ J’l’

Parents notiled of thls mesting by % [ S-1-F0

Tate
Mapny of parent nntliication e, = ((n
PREJENT LEVEL OF PERFORMANGE
Pimory Aran af Conenn Livtl of Prrleamones
—ticithelrewtl from peaple /Ln.i.m;&.,l;_e_mml_'b_'ﬂu\
._’na ot #m:.n'_co-n.un.l L e

te lfecant fous
_.s.uu’.t&f..&‘u.xﬁ bernefigem ..am,w.du.@ud_u_ﬁn«_uﬂm /

@ 495, rom

SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL PRAOGNAMS AND SERVICES

d( hﬁ (’& Arrron Aemponaitie Frojecied initstian Dem Review Dars
e
Lorenf 83 fEAJEPME _

cud.,!u A Xectarddain,

s e e S —
Eatentnl p-ulmunlnnﬂwmnhnmL-__ oy

Apceanimere dre af nrae |:r_.5;ﬁ#_ 2 te arranpd m#lﬂﬁwl_-—.———

Nume andfar poitian

ANNUAL OOALS AND SHOAT TERM ODJECTIVES MUST DC COMPLETED AND ATTACHED, IEP FORM 3 OR EOUIVALENT
AMAT MUST 0% L2ED

npenents of |EP are suhjueted g reshilon 1y ascynsry Earh molidan munt he doasimester and het o 19 st tamhe?

winTey A Abminlg dis B Qs tbeg Mirkett (e CADD PINE  ngah paienBiatiit) S2hant Ds1a1
CAMANY  Farers fQuasriton 6 W Repma Mrungy
—— — e - g ApAeT s rem—epes - -
7. LEIHEN t T FE 7R N
defd e -,h:‘ 1 . .3:.1 "-\:{v L TN ,
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©INGHAM INTERM‘E!;-ATE SCHOOL DIS IRICT
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traily stobipng  Ofteber tass. Wil vaice 3p- yeacher
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. Juns  as acy 1 rule +a Chaervation
dzacher upon
€ uesk [ 2o o

AA07017



SETTTOVYOD Tteddeqnp

‘l‘-' Y Ay o ey Wt . ] ¢

PO e =,

. HALTIOISEIPLINART TEAM TYALUATION RETOAT - {rzee) ._"
<t

] Jases thappell Address: 2317 Hellar £t. 48910
\rthdstar_ 13-T908 Phoner TCF- 1976

Sthooli HoOred Pazk Parent(s] NamatNdu, l:l__-y'lu_n

Gradat Support Centert A

5 { Handicap: K.l Dateat =

PURPOST) To numasrite asesestent infatmstion and presens pecfermsnce Jevals for the
developeent of the child's Individusllzed Eduention Progras comittes.

RECEIVEDT

Y¥ajor Atese of Concern Based on Ralarrals d-
b
1, _Sleruptive behaviar _,9}- \ E&’ .
1, _hgyresaive rasponees d ¥ v HAY 2 1530
3, _Esslly distracte S‘}
Lov acadamic scniovemont -
Learning snd Afpusiment #
Atzmasment Per{nreed By: Adminisirative Dt
Hane/Posttion Evalustion Inseruments Used baze
1. _Maty Converse/Tessher thatroction, Testing 10779 to prescn
1. _victor =T, T, T/
3, _rsthlesn Bannom, Payzheloglst TP, WISE-R, Handas AT
i, T OESRTVELLSI,: IATHIUIUSr "3/ O0 tTrpreTne
. Reaults o Assassaent rresgns Levealia) of Recoomendations for
in aveas af Coneatn Porformangy Planning Child's Progea
tanity distractad 1spature behavist fmaller clasatoem

plaruptive behavick Individual attention

Aggrassive swspentes Individual tharspy

tow acadamic schisvament third qgrade lewvel contrallad, structured meeting

Plagnastic Reprassatativa to TEPC) Bonovan A, Dosay, Jr.
Tean Lesdaxr Bignacurer Datat w FETY IE’

.This cowpleted vafarval prekage includes the lsllowing supportive doeuvasntatioms

1. £~ Consant of parant or guardlan fotr evaluatlen,
2, "" = Darents hava besn mude avare of this rafsersl by the building principal or tes
of the child,
Coupleted “Request fer Student Scragning and Comaultation”™ ferm,
Coaplsted Interdimciplinary Team Tvalustion Repare,
Written eopies of all repacta ace attached.
4 d handd e indicated.
Tndividus] from diagnostte tasm designated to partictpats in the TIPC indience
Other partinent data.

440 |
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LANSING SCHOOL DISTRICT

519 w, Ealamazon Sereet . ]
tanzing, Michigan 489)) \ ,‘1",.
SCHOOL SOCIAL WORK EVALUATION

Mara s JAES CHAPPELL Support Centere A Dates  4-18-80
Bicthdates L2-1 boxs M lagal Guardlany Clsra Axam

scheals Hoorow_Perk ala hipi___Grandsethar
Crader_4 Tasschars N, Converan Addzursy 1527 Wallet €t ET]
Peimary Lanqusqac Engilah Phone ¢ 489-71076

bats of S Evaluationi_3/D0 to prement  $% tvaluator) Domovan A. Dosey, Jr.
PREBLEN

Jamas vas originally referred for supportisw sarvices on Juns 11, 1977, At that
tism, the teacher statad, "t have talkad to the grandsothsr sevecral times and a com-
terence waz held with tha principal, char and grandroths Jamas hac 2 weltlng
probles and ha sucks his flngers. Wle sctions and rasctions are very slov. Ha ke
unruiated quastions and vill nov csspond when spoken to. Him grandsother wants vhat
ir best for Yams and also wvents him r5 do wel) in school.® At thst cise, James
wat in the second grade but functioning a4t a {lrst qrede level, There wvas ho action
taken on that ralercal.

on rebruary 26, 1788, Jamee was sqain relerred {of suppoftive tervices. The

raferral stetod, "Dlarurtlve behavior, . P which a1 unwarr .
He is In the fourth grade snd functlonkng et & sacond grede lsvel.
L nisrony

Javau Lo presantly 1iving with his srandeother, Mes. Claza Azan, snd theee slb-
1ings. Jamee! mother 18 deceasad and his father Lm §n sridon. Hrs, Azes 13 8 cock
st tha Michigen Atats Follcs Commleary.

Nrs, Axam is svars of Jamss* difficultiss but fewls that this say be dis to the
1oea of his mothar when he was two ahd & half yeats oid. He Lo alow about doing hie
chorss, but Mre. Axam feela this Is normal. lta hes a nood celatlonahip with his sib-
ilngm,; But Im 8 constant tes fn tha past f4w yesrs, hs has bLeen playing with the
othat children In the nalghlorhood vhers forpally, he did not join In thelsr gaman,
but steed on tha sidalinew.

DEVELOFHFHNTAL RISTORY

Jaras was a full tapm, alx anit a hal? pound beby at birth. Thers appasred to be
ne difticulttes during pragnancy or blreh. lile early dovelopment sppaarsd to be nor-
Pa), but ot the #gé of two dnd & half yesrs, hin sothar dled, and Jaras vould not talk
to snyoe.  Hls grandeother sntolled him In lload Start whers he would met play with
anyene or talk to snyore, Ne finally bullp s relationablp with s new teachey, and
whan sha left swddenly, he regresned te hls oid behavicr, not taliing to anyone.

Aftet srtaring hindergartan, he benen to relate ta hin twscher and scms of the
othe¥ children, but did fot get anvolwed s playing with them, usually playing by Nin-
aslf or standing on the sidelinen.
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Jocial vork zvatustien
Jasan Chappell
Faqu Two

F1=.1 HISTOKRY

1n the sacend grade, Jarms was referred {or sexvice but nothing was dona at that
tiva. Since than, Jemsn hay tecalved sarvices from the byllding teas, reading teschar,
{nstructional aldas sehool counsdlor, schoal nurse (recalvad uys qlasyun), cORPanTA~
tery sdusacion, tha discipline cods and [{ » with tha § het.
pehavior ssems ta b8 deteciarsting.
other students and 1s quite often
he otheT bays.

Rons of thase have heen effeccive. and hls
Jarms s in constant confllct with seve al ol the
Loclaved to get his vork donés and te desp him avey frem tl

SECOMMENOATIONS

relculty sdjusting Lo achesl, both soclally and
t desl of allficuity (orming seaningful pela=
d in & smaller claseroon attyatlon and should

Jaraa haw had & great 2eal of 4b
acedemleslly. 1 fsal that he has 4 grea
tipnshlps and recomwend that he ba Pl

recaive individusl therspy outsidasthe school satting "
Vil iy’ /? /(,0‘{@" ;{

Tonovan A, Dosay Jf+e C.3
genool Bocisl Horker

oA ek

- am—
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LANSING SCHOOL DISTRICT

EQUCATICHAL EVALUATION
519 0. Kalamaroe Staeed
laradng, Hichigan 4193)

Nemet JAIES CHAPFELL Suppeal Candea & Pater 4-4-18

T TN Legal Guordianm:” C2ean Lxgm
Sceheolr ¥ —_ Adpr At €A
Grades T Teachenr lowwenit Addacait eLieA (L. ]
Palsary language of ChiTdi_Ennliih Phomer L1
fete af T/C Tatingy 4 3.1 T/C Evadusconr  Wletania Sealock
BACKGRULNG

James was Agherred fou inmpymopniate efasirgon belmvion.

ACHECVEMENT LEVELS
Jamed recedved the follmeana dcorcd on the agadomic feids predented:
Purmredd Analnsis ui Reaitdig Aid{dculen

Subtest M Camle Tquavatent
Orat Reading Ind
Sclent Reading I
Liatewany Commphension Jad

James was abfec to acad with eomprghension np Lo a {{fth qrade Leved, srally
andd s{lenlln, bul fuud 2eading aate Lavers fhid o & third gafe fevel.

Key dath Diganostie Mdtimetic Teyd

Subtest Grade Epudvaleat

Nurcialion
Tactlons

Gigomeday and Sipabnts
AditiLion
Subtraction
Haltdpticatien
Pivisdom

Hental Comtmrtaiion
Nusealeal Recianing
Vurd Frablems
Nissdig Eewentd Bed
Naney

Neaaaement

Time

,l-.\-ulﬁui-—%?"l
SRR SR SRPR AR AR <Y

o HwE

aumy

-

Total Gamile Foaiwtent

36

AP imrm v e g ——

———
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EOUCATIONAL EVALUATION
JALS CHAPPELL
PAGE TW(0

SEMAVIORAL ABJUSTWNT

On & ome-lo-oue, James was ertremels quiel, it would fazquently liave peaiods
utiene he woudd airpte 440 ard seare.  Ne wondd dlo this aatil | neques ted e Ae-ctlend.
Cametimes he would Lean and prpcedd queatirny, amdf sometimed L seemed as Chouak he
wimaty Ld not hean me ot ale. Mo 14t wn a ven ai Gl mannga and did not fidgel.

SEuRy

James acems Lo be ¢ woungafen with acod basse abelalies wio hay sevese
diddicutty vaintainin i atlentoon on the extewal woald,

RECOMUENGAT 10K
Asadesde fasks might be kept veay atrightioumad, erncentraling on relt
shltts.
[4’«5 frien je’ﬁf L
Tctoaia Sendo
Tragher-Crnsnliant
VSask

AA07022



OFTTTOVHOD TT eddeypp

Y P "

LAISING SCLOOL DISTRICT

SCKCOL PSYOHOLOGICAL EVALUATION
51% U, Kalsaacoo Streat
tanting, Michigan 4093)

Hars s JAMES CHAPPELL, Suppott Contars A_ Dates_ d4-1f-|
MELIE T e M Aoy ey, Axem o
Blrthdacae 3T Sexs, logal Guardlan .

Schoolt Roorss Pery CAs 103 Rejatlonsnipa Grandmother.
Cradei___4 Taschary M, Converay aAzesn 1517 Hedleg €0 dR9I0,

Priasry L 1) Engllah Phens: Ang=1024
Dste of Paychelegleal Tewelngo_4-j~g0 Payehotogicel Tvaluvator ¥achisen Rannen
zzrema

Jaras wan relerred becausa of hls aleruptive behavisr and sgqressive respenses
which are uAvarrintad. He 4oss not cosmunlcste well with the teachar or the alde and
he often hae great dlfflculty axpreseing himse}f, Thays are long periods of sllence
aven ln & one=to-one eltustion,

EVALLAT Iem

Jarws i3 & tail, slender, atifactive jasning ten yaar, threy senth old boy. kis
geeas anc Fline potor coordination are voary qeod. Jle was not ceeperstive, and consae-
quentiy, the retults of the verbal sectlon of the tant are wirsilable. s refused ro
answar quastions on cowptehsnslon. Thare wery (requent Coeuprences whers he would act
cuid be able to qlve an adequats ponse, There are Indi-
catlons that this boy has a basicslly pretty good Latellectual abllity, hut 19 funce
tining st a dull norwel level. On genersl (Afermation, ha gave sdditional responses
above the eslling aad the same thing was Rryq on Plock design, vhers he deubles his
saw scote aftar reaching s cwillpg. On the coding, visual serory
Id just stop and lock at a1l the symbola lnatesd of tha one ba nesded.
e i qive wers vary Laconle, Throunhout the whela tize M was belng
testad, he sat with hls back turned towarda the szaminer and yefussd to look arpund
aRcupt once vhaa he was teld dirsetly, and anothaee tima when he wan talking about
sporta.

Tha Bender=Castajt indicatss an ertremaly comstricted sort of auapiclous parson~
#lity who has & very poor self=concapt snd vho doea not relste well 13 othe¢ people.
This ls furthar cenfisvad in the Siousa=Tras-Teracn, vhere it seems there o a real
#pLit here betwesn hia [eelinae and hls connitive avarem Ne seras Lo be a very
riqid, houtils person vho over=controls by withdravael, lie @ pot pasm tD have re=
jationsnips with othar people that ars veary maningful to hin. 1n Eslhing with [
there la some indicstion of soma slinht thowht dleerder. dle k0 svars of veslity but
doss nse pay attsation te jt,

GUMMART AND APCOMMENDATIONG

Jawaw LN 4 ven year ald boy who st the pressst tiss L funceloning in the low
sverade Level of Ingoilectus] shiilty whers hasically He ssema 10 have Anod LAtellec=
tual capscity. lie dnws not late. He la very withdrewh gnd usoun withdrawal as a
! 4 has & poor ssifl-concapt snd thers seems to ba some rather britcls in=
tellectual contrals which will not carey hia therwan In tetma of relsting Ly othet

pecnle,

38
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Payehologqlcal evaluation
Jamad Chappell
Peqs Two

It is recommanded that an 1.0.0.C. be ¢alled T@ ancids what ssrvices should ba

aftarsd ta Ja=ss.

s - :
Cathinen Dannon, M.he
schoal paychologist

- ety = ———
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LNINE SOrOL DISTRICT
TNGEWM CANTY PROBNTE CouTr
EOGTIC (e

4 &2“

FL» TEST RESLLTS AND EDUCATICNAL EVRLLATICNS FOR
sulent attended classed daily in poch, English, and Seclal Studies

in the lansing School District-ingham County Probate Coust Eduszeion Progran
vhile at tha Inghzs County Juvenila heTa.

™e i d lain the skills that this student stodied while
in oer Wa have iratl 4 those skills that the sewdent has mestered
or akllls that the student still nceds to mastet.

¥han a 4 enters our we give o himher & Pealndy Individual

Achleverent Test and & mubject locamr test Ln each of the thoos subjecta
listed atmve, That test dotetmines Wdat skills the szsdent will study In our

program.
e rmalized chat rany are mt dyisy 1y the sumz shilla
in thair hoce school, We are sttepting w halp our seview or

irportane skille that they may have misscd and/or beyin mustering new skilla,

Although thig student has been absent from your sehool, he/she has boon
atcerading elassea Ln eur program.  Wo wish thit you would woke allowarees
for the diffcrence in the skills sedicd and assiqn wut studont a qrxis
or crodlt for that misscd time acoording to the grades wve hawe reportod in
our sutEary.

Should jou have any questinns cogarding this student or the cchaol progra
at the Juvenile tlom, fecl free to call va ac 982-5717.

—— rr— s ——
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ERUCATIEYN DEPARTMENT

LANSTHG SCP::. DISTRICY
ERSHS COUTY JUVENILE MOME
100 vest tilland Stroet

Lansing, Mlchigan 48910
(5171 002-3717

STULENTS NuEy__ Qitomeas (3@9-// ier__La”
GRADEe Lusmn: Lt e

ENTRY DATE:_g0 op7 RELEASE DMTE1__sg 2 4 MO, SCHOOL Davs.___ 37

LAST SCHOOL ATTENEDs |_é”£., SUmRY SENT w._ué}éi-.__

LT .
3. PEATODY JHDIVISUSL ACHLEYEME T TeST ﬁ“!l_my
MATWEXATICS . %
Neibiig CHmEIERIOH e
L =
.2,
0em yamany J.ﬂ M—%
gy canne
1, LI 'itwf./bu&'(tmf
2. mam —
3, sDCiL STUDIES _&:
&, PHYSICIL ECUCATICH —
ARRITICHN, GCEntg

SUPRIES ATTACHED

- AnCE SRR 2k AR,

J—
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LANSING SCHOOL DISTRICT

M-Cboﬂaell.,_‘.\ﬂmﬁ_mm PRINCLPAL

KET:
Citizenship
Work Habits

Rifort

COMMENTS ¢
3

VG = Vary Good

¥¢ 5 N

Lansing School District

nmawm%mm_Saanum_Jﬁﬁggaﬁﬂé____
has been promoted to the WALAZ. geade for the school year 19.26 1922
T Z y Taacher

MDCRES PARX BCHOOL / /3 9/77
REPORT SINCE LAST CONFERENCE SEMESTER REPCRT

8 - Satisfactory N ~ Needs Improvement
V6 5 N V¢ 8 N
Reading - S" Belencs B 1
Language Arts Social Studies
Spelling ! S" Music
Hathematice ' A1 AxE
o 'l Phys. Hd,

Jmes needs nat sedtle

I I l ‘ . W ATTEHDANCE ;
. . sy s sent 5’/L
work., He (s W peye 4%

g M ” ] ! Times Tardsg

quing 10 _

/2

sometimes pute popers in
his desk +hat need +o be finished .

42

42
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43

LANSING 5CHOOL DISTRICT -- End of Year Report Year ‘2[9 - 22

RAME [lﬂmes ( ,hQPPe “ Attendance - Days Absent é

R Q Times Tardy -33'
TEACHER_ [7)¢ anen September Placement 2 b G |
Key: VG - Very Good 5 - Satisfactory 1 - Improving N - Needs Improving
VG 5 I

Citizenship Suggestions for Help: (1f needed)

X

Work Habits X James needs Yo work
X
X

BEfort o0 _addibion ¢ aubtrachion
Sacts, He also needs
Io_read hooks over

Beading Readinass X

Mathematice

Music Effort

Art Effort

KK

Phys. Ed. Effort

43

dhe  summer.James
s Vuauing deouble uh
mxésLnS_add.e.ndsiitE= 7)
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Lansing State Journal (Lansing, Michigan) - Fri, Aug 24, 1973 - Page 12
Downloaded on Feb 9, 2018

City’s 13th 4uto Fatality

Car Vietim Identitied

Lansing police have identi-
fied the woman who was killed
by a sheriff's car early Thurs-
day morning as Mrs. Shirley
Chappell. 24, of 3021 Beau Jar-
din, Meadowbrook Trace
Apartments.

Mrs. Chappell was struck by
an Ingham County Sheriff's
Department patrol car on I-196
near Dunckel, east of the
apartment complex around
4:23 a.m.

ACCORDING TO Lansing
police, a Lansing police ser-
geant saw her walking on
Dunckel about 10 minutes be-
fore the accident and warned
her about walkingin the dark
toward the expressway. She
said she was out for a breath
of fresh air and he assumed
she was staying in the Hospi-
tality Inn nearby.

Dep. Daniel Shepler, 28, told
police he was traveling along
1-496 northbound when he

looked into his rear-view mir-
ror to check a car coming up
behind him. When he looked
bhack onto the roadway in front
of him he saw the woman and
swerved to avoid her but was
unable ta do so.

Mrs. Chappell was the 13th
traffic fatality in the city this
vear, Last year there were six
during the entire vear.

Mrs. Chappell is survived by
her husband, Willie R.; two
daughters, Carla and Myra;
three sons, Lapriest Blocker,
Willie Jr., and James, all at
home; her mother, Mrs. Clara
Axam and her father, Arthur
Axam; two sisters, Shauneen
and Sharon Axam, two broth.
ers, Rodney and Anthony
Axam, and her grandparents,
Mr. and Mrs. William Under-
wood, all of Lansing.

Services will be held Mon-
day at 11 a.m. at the Riley Fu-
neral Home.

Copyright © 2018 Newspapers.com. All Rights Reserved.

News
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Paul D. Connor, Ph.D.
Neuropsychological Assessment Services
22517 7" Avenue South
Des Moines, WA 98198
206-940-1106 Fax 206-400-2764
NEUROPSYCHOLOGICAL REPORT

NAME: James Chappell

DATE OF BIRTH: 12/27/

DATE OF EXAM: 05/23/2016 & 05/24/2016
DATE OF REPORT: 07/13/2016
PATIENT'S AGE AT TESTING: 46

LAST GRADE COMPLETED: 9

IDENTIFYING INFORMATION / REASON FOR REFERRAL

James Chappell is a 46-year-old right-handed African American man. He was referred to me by
his current federal post-conviction attorneys, the Office of the Federal Public Defender, District
of Nevada. There is evidence that Mr. Chappell’s biological mother used alcohol and heroin
during the course of her pregnancy with him. Therefore, this neuropsychological evaluation was
requested to determine if Mr. Chappell’s current cognitive functioning was consistent with the
diagnostic guidelines for Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders (FASD). This information would be
used by Julian Davies, M.D. in determining a final medical diagnosis on the fetal alcohol
spectrum, if appropriate. It would also be used by Natalie Novick Brown, Ph.D. in her life-long
functional and psychological assessment that addresses the impact of prenatal alcohol exposure
on behavior.

Mr. Chappell was seen privately at Ely State Prison in Ely, Nevada over the course of two days.
Though initially introduced to me by one of Mr. Chappell’s attorneys, no members of the
defense team or jail staff were present during the interview and assessment. The purpose of the
current evaluation and the limits upon its confidentiality were explained to Mr. Chappell, that a
copy of this report would be submitted to his defense team, and that all parties involved in the
case would have access to it. He was amenable to this and agreed to proceed with the
assessment.

I am a clinical psychologist with a specialization in neuropsychology and licensed within the
states of Washington and Oregon. I obtained a Bachelor’s Degree from the University of
Washington, majoring in psychology. I received a Ph.D. in clinical psychology with a
specialization in neuropsychology from Brigham Young University and completed an intemship
at Henry Ford Health System, specializing in neuropsychology. Following the receipt of my
Ph.D., I received post-doctoral training in neuropsychology and FASD at the University of
Washington. For nearly 20 years, I have been involved in and conducted research focusing on
the effects of prenatal alcohol exposure as it pertains to neuropsychological and mental health
functioning and the structural and functional brain anomalies often seen in these disorders. | am
currently in private practice, conducting neuropsychological evaluations in clinical and forensic
settings, utilizing a battery of cognitive tests that have been shown to be sensitive to the effects

DEFENDANT'S o)
% EXHIBIT -7

1013134

Page 1
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of prenatal alcohol exposure in over 40 years of research on this subject. A copy of my CV is
attached to this report.

DIAGNOSTIC FEATURES OF FASD

Fetal Alcohoi Spectrum Disorders (FASD) is an umbrella term used to denote the presence of
significant damage caused by prenatal consumption of alcohol. It encompasses a number of
specific diagnoses. Individuals who have been damaged by prenatal alcohol exposure have been
formally and medically diagnosed since the early 1970’s. However, the specific diagnostic
guidelines have undergone refinement over the years since.

Fetal Alcohol Syndrome (FAS): This term was first coined in 1973 when doctors at the
University of Washington began noticing children who were born to alcoholic women, had a
very specific pattern of facial features, and demonstrated significant cognitive impairments, The
Institute of Medicine (IOM) refined the diagnostic guidelines for diagnosis of FAS when it was
published in April of 1996. This was further refined when in 2004, the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (CDC) developed a set of guidelines for the diagnosis of FAS that
included more specific criteria for the three main diagnostic features. The first diagnostic feature
of FAS is a specific pattern of facial features (short palpebral fissures, smooth or flat philtrum,
and thin upper lip). All three of these facial features must be present at some point in the
person’s life for a diagnosis of FAS. However, the facial features often ameliorate as an
individual passes through puberty, such that, someone who may have had the full facial features
as a child may not retain these facial features to the same degree in adulthood. The second
symptom for a diagnosis of FAS is growth deficiency, defined as height and/or weight below the
10™ percentile at some point in the person’s life, especially as a child. The third symptom group,
and the one most germane to my area of practice, is evidence of central nervous system (CNS)
abnormalities. This can include hard signs such as abnormal neuroimaging, microcephaly, and
neurologic impairments such as motor deficiency, seizures, soft neurological signs, and
functional deficits as measured by neuropsychological testing. Functional deficits are defined as
intellectual functioning 2 standard deviations below average and/or deficits at least 1 standard
deviation below average in at least 3 domains of cognitive functioning (e.g. motor functioning,
executive functioning, memory, attention, social skills, cognitive or developmental deficits or
discrepancies, etc.).

Fetal Alcohol Effects (FAE): This diagnosis was first identified in the late 1970"s. It referred to
individuals who had been exposed to alcohol prenatally and demonstrated the same CNS
abnormalities as individuals with FAS in the presence of confirmed prenatal alcohol exposure.
However, individuals with FAE had some or none of the facial features that are seen in
individuals with FASD. With the development of the IOM diagnostic criteria published in April
of 1996, the term FAE was replaced with the new terms of Partial Fetal Alcohol Syndrome
(PFAS) and Alcohol Related Neurodevelopmental Disorder (ARND), described below.

Partial Fetal Alcohol Syndrome (PFAS): This was defined by the Institute of Medicine (I0M)
in April of 1996 as an individual demonstrating some, but not all of the facial features and or
growth deficiency seen in the diagnosis of FAS. However, the requirement of confirmed
maternal alcohol exposure and CNS abnormalities is the same as for the diagnosis of FAS.

Alcohol Related Neurodevelopmental Disorder (ARND): Based on guidelines developed by
the IOM, in ARND there are typically no physical features (facial anomalies or growth

Page 2
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deficiencies) in the presence of prenatal alcohol exposure. However, the same set of CNS
abnormalities seen in FAS are present in ARND. Therefore, the same guidelines developed by
the CDC for FAS can be applied for the diagnosis of ARND.

There has been ample research around the United States that demonstrated no difference between
FAS, FAE, PFAS, and ARND in the presentation of CNS abnormalities in neurological,
neuroimaging, or neuropsychological signs.

Cognitive Disorder, NOS and Neurodevelopmental Disorder Associated with Prenatal
Alcohol Exposure: In 1994, the American Psychiatric Association (APA) released the 4t
edition of its Diagnostic and Statistical Manual (DSM-1V). This included a diagnosis of
Cognitive Disorder, NOS. This diagnosis was typically made for individuals who were
demonstrating significant neuropsychological impairments but were not related to specific
dementias or amnestic disorders such as Alzheimer’s disease or Traumatic Brain Injury.
Cogpnitive Disorder, NOS was routinely used as the DSM-IV diagnosis to describe the
neuropsychological impairments that were associated with an FASD.

In May 2013, the 5" Edition of the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual (DSM-5) was published.
Included in this edition is a diagnosis directly relevant to FASD: Other Specified
Neurodevelopmental Disorder (315.8/F88). The only example provided explicitly in the text for
this diagnosis is Neurodevelopmental Disorder Associated with Prenatal Alcohol Exposure (ND-
PAE). This diagnosis identifies an individval as having an FASD and the neuropsychological
evaluation is critical in making this diagnosis. ND-PAE does not differentiate individual FASD
diagnoses, not relying on the facial features associated with FAS and PFAS in making the
diagnosis.

DOCUMENTS REVIEWED

For the purposes of this report, the following records that were reviewed' focused on issues that
were directly relevant to the current neuropsychological evaluation for consistency with FASD.
Therefore, it primarily focused on prior psychological/neuropsychological assessments, school
based testing, and school records. Prior test scores are compared with current testing results
below. These included:

Lansing School District Cumulative Records
Moores Park School Records
Forrest View School Records
Psychological Evaluation by Lewis Etcoff, Ph.D., ABPN dated 9/28/1996
Materials reviewed by Dr. Etcoff as part of his 1996 evaluation
Trial Testimony of Dr. Etcoff (1996 and 2007)
Declarations from the following individuais:
o Benjamin Dean
o Charles Dean
o Georgette Sneed
o James Ford

'| was given additional records to review but have highlighted these in particular as being most relevant to this
assessment. A list of all the records [ reviewed are attached to this Reponrt.

Page 3
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James Wells

Joetta Ford

Myra Chappell-King

Rose Wells-Canon

Terrance Wallace

William Earl Bonds
William Roger Moore
Willie Richard Chappell, Sr.

000000 O0O0

NEUROPSYCHOLOGICAL TESTING RESULTS
TESTS ADMINISTERED

Psychological/Neuropsychological History Interview

Wechsler Adult Intelligence Scale — 4™ Edition (WAIS-IV)

Wide Range Achievement Test - 4" Edition (WRAT-4)

California Verbal Learning Test — 2™ Edition (CVLT-2)

Rey Complex Figure Test (RCFT)

Conners’ Continuous Performance Test — 3" Edition (CPT3)

Grooved Pegboard Test (GP)

Finger Tapping Test (FT)

Wisconsin Card Sorting Test- 4" Edition (WCST)

Delis-Kaplan Executive Function System (D-KEFS) Tower and Proverbs Subtests

Controlled Oral Word Association Test (COWAT)

Ruff’s Figural Fluency Test (RFF)

Stroop Color and Word Test

Trail Making Test (TMT)

Auditory Consonant Trigrams Test (ACT)

Gudjonsson Suggestibility Scale 2 (GSS2)

Neuropsychological Assessment Battery: Auditory Comprehension Test (NAB: AC)

Advanced Clinical Solutions: Social Cognition {ACS:SC)

Texas Functional Living Scale (TFLS)

Vineland Adaptive Behavior Scale — 2™ Edition (VABS-II) (Administered to James Ford, Terry
Wallace, & Myra Chappell-King)

Behavior Rating of Executive Function, Adolescent Version (BRIEF) (Administered to James
Ford, Terry Wallace, & Myra Chappell-King)

Advanced Clinical Solutions: Effort Assessment Scores (ACS: Effort) Word Choices & Reliable
Digit Span

CVLT Forced Choice (CVLT: FC)

CPT3 Validity (CPT3: V)

The Dot Counting Test (Dots)

Behavioral Observations:

On both days of the assessment, Mr. Chappell presented as a friendly and polite man. On
informal observation, though his upper lip appeared quite full, Mr. Chappell was noted to have a
fairly smooth philtrum, a somewhat flattened midface, and eyes that appeared to be somewhat
small. In addition, he was noted to have possible clinodactyly of the left pinky, somewhat large
gaps between pinky and ring fingers, possible bilateral hockey stick creases, and a right ear that
was noted for a possible railroad track pattern. Formal measurements were not obtained as part
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of the current evaluation. This will be investigated formally by Dr. Davies as part of his
evaluation. No tremor was noted during the course of the evaluation and he sat fairly still
throughout. Throughout the course of both days he would ask me to purchase considerable
amounts of food, which he would eat fairly quickly. Mr. Chappell tended to interact in a
somewhat childlike manner that was not consistent with his chronological age. On interview he
had difficulties remembering details of his history and would often talk around answers, not fully
answering them. He would say things like “etc. etc.” to make it seem like he had more fully
answered questions. In addition, he would often use large words to give the impression of
sophistication. However, several of the words chosen were not accurate to the context of the
discussion. There was no indication of thought disorder, homicidal or suicidal ideation.

On testing, Mr. Chappell tended to work quite slowly, thinking for a long time while performing
tasks. However, he was very persistent and would continue to work hard on tasks. When tasks
became difficult for him he would often smile and chuckle. At times, it appeared as though he
was confused by instructions but would not often ask for clarification. In addition, he sought
little feedback on his performance.

Mr. Chappell was administered several performance validity tasks designed to measure his
effort. On all tasks, his performance was nearly error free. Mr. Chappel}’s performance on effort
tasks, combined with observations throughout the evaluation, indicated that the current
assessment should be considered an accurate representation of his current neuropsychological
functioning.

Intellectual functioning indicated considerable variability in performance depending on the
domain being assessed (see scores in Table 1). His domains of greatest strength were in Verbal
Comprehension and Perceptual Reasoning where his performance was within the average range.
Processing Speed was performed within the low average range. His domain of greatest weakness
was in Working Memory, where his performance was within the borderline to mildly
intellectually impaired range. This means that 97% of people who have taken this test performed
better than Mr., Chappell in this domain. Because of the split between domain performances, Full
Scale IQ, measured at 86, should not be considered an entirely accurate representation of Mr.
Chappell’s overall intellectual functioning. Mr. Chappell has received IQ testing in the past (see
Table: 1). When he was approximately 16 or 17, though scores were not provided, it was
reported that his overall intellectual functioning was within the borderline to low average range.
In later testing, he demonstrated significant splits between language-based and nonlanguage-
based skills similar to current testing and his overall intellectual functioning. In prior versions of
the WAIS, the working memory domain was inciuded in the VIQ instead of being split into
Verbal Comprehension and Working Memory domains as it is in the current version of the test.
Mr. Chappell’s level of intellectual functioning as well as significant splits between domains is
frequently seen in individuals with FASD.

Table 1: COMPARISON OF CURRENT AND PRIOR 1Q TESTING

Year Test va/viQ PRI/PIQ wWmMi PS| FSIQ
10/1986 Borderline to
low average
6/1996 WAIS-R 177 /91 80
5/2016 WAIS-IV 96 96 71 86 86
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When individual subtests were analyzed, Mr. Chappell’s area of greatest strength was on a
visuospatial task of assembling blocks to match a picture (high average range). He performed
within the average range on a visuospatial task of identifying individual components of puzzles,
a task of speeded visual scanning, and language-based tasks of identifying the abstract similarity
between items and informational knowledge. Mr. Chappell performed within the mildly impaired
range on tasks of speeded translation of information and short-term attention and memory for
number sequences. His area of greatest weakness was in orally presented arithmetic, where he
was performing within the mildly to moderately impaired range. On the balance of tasks, Mr.
Chappell performed within the low average range.

Academic Functioning:

Language-based academic achievement was performed at a level that was fairly consistent with
Mr. Chappell’s level of language-based intellectual functioning. However, he demonstrated
considerably greater difficuities in arithmetic performance than might be expected based on his
overall level of intellectual functioning, though quite consistent with his performance on orally
based arithmetic testing from the IQ test. As can be seen in Table 2, word reading was performed
at an equivalent of the middle portions of an 11" grade level while reading comprehension was
performed at the equivalent of the beginning of the 12 grade level. Spelling, Mr. Chappell’s
area of greatest strength, was performed at an equivalent beyond the end of high school. By
contrast, Mr. Chappell’s arithmetic calculation skills were performed at an equivalent of the
beginning of the 4™ grade level. He was able to perform most addition and subtraction tasks, and
was able to perform single digit multiplication. However, he was unable to perform division,
multidigit multiplication, calculate fractions, or perform higher order arithmetic. His
performance on math testing was considerably below expectations based on his level of formal
education. However, it is consistent with school records that commented on troubles with
arithmetic throughout his education, records indicating participation in special education
services, and Mr. Chappell’s own self-report that math was his most difficult subject. As can be
seen in Table 2, Mr. Chappell’s current performance on academic testing is quite consistent with
prior testing in which he performed considerably more poorly on arithmetic tasks and had
relatively greater sparing of language-based academic skills. Difficulties with academic
functioning, especially with respect to arithmetic, are frequently seen in research on individuals
with FASD.

TABLE 2: COMPARISON OF CURRENT AND PRIOR ACADEMIC TESTING
(Standard Score / %ile / Grade Equivalent)

Year Test Word Reading/ Reading Spelling/ Math
Total Reading Comprehension Writing
5/1977 SAT J18%/ /18%/
5/1978 SAT /40%/ J12%f
5/1979 SAT 140%/ /23%/
5/1980 SAT 14/ 126/
5/1982 SAT /18%/ 711%/
12/1984 Peabody IAT ] /6.0 /775 //8 7/7?
10/1986 WRAT 15%%/ 2%/
6/1996 WRAT-3 88/ /hs 89/ /8 67/ /4
5/2016 WRAT-4 91/27%/11.6 92/30%/12.0 100/50%/>12.9 72/3/4.0
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Leamning and Memory Functioning:

Mr. Chappell’s initial performance on a list learning task was within the moderately to severely
impaired range, recalling 2 of the 16 words on the first trial. He benefitted from repetition of the
list, improving his recall of words over the ensuing trials such that on the 5™ and final trial Mr.
Chappell recalled 10 of the 16 words, performing within the low average range. Because of his
poor initial learning of information, his overall performance on the learning portion of the task
was within the mildly impaired range. Following a short delay, Mr. Chappell recalled 9 words,
performing within the average range. Following a long delay period, he recalled 8 words, again
performing within the average range.

Mr. Chappell was administered a contextual memory task in which he was read a story and asked
to repeat it. His initial recall of the story was within the mildly to moderately impaired range,
having difficulties recalling many components of the story. In addition, he added many details
that were not in the origina) story, indicating some difficulties with confabulation. Following a
delay, he again was unable to recall many of the components of the story, performing within the
mildly to moderately impaired range. As with the short delay trial, he added several inaccurate
details to the story, again indicating troubles with confabulation.

On a visuospatial learning and memory task, Mr. Chappell was first asked to copy a complex
figure and then later asked to draw the figure again from memory. When copying the task, Mr.
Chappell performed within the severely impaired range. His approach to copying the figure was
very poorly organized. He worked from right to lefi in a clockwise order breaking up the
majority of the components. As such he did not appear to recognize the overall shape of the
figure. In addition, he failed to copy one component of the figure. Following a short delay
period, Mr. Chappell’s reproduction of the figure was within the moderately to severely impaired
range. His approach was again quite disorganized and many of the components were broken up.
In addition, he did not recall the majority of the components of the figure. After a long delay
period, Mr. Chappell’s performance was within the moderately impaired range. Though he was
able to recall a few additional components that he had not recalled on short delay task, the
majority of the components that he did draw were inaccurate and his approach was again
disorganized.

Difficulties with learning and memory functioning and visuospatial construction have been
reported in research on individuals with FASD.

Attention Functioning:

Mr. Chappell’s performance on a task of sustained visual attention showed no significant
difficulties with attention functioning. However, his pattern of performance indicated
considerabie slowing of processing speed with reaction times that were quite slow.

Motor Functioning:

On a task of speeded eye-hand coordination, in which Mr. Chappell was asked to insert pegs into
grooved holes, he performed within the average range, bilaterally. On a task of finger speed, in
which Mr. Chappell was asked to tap a key as quickly as possible, he performed within the low
average range when using his dominant right hand but within the mildly to moderately impaired
range when using his left hand. Mr. Chappell did not indicate a history of significant hand injury
which would account for his poor performance on the speeded motor task.
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Suggestibility:

Mr. Chappell was administered a test addressing his susceptibility to endorsing information,
particularly in the context of interrogative questioning involving misleading cues. Mr. Chappell
was read a short story and asked to repeat it. Mr. Chappell’s performance on this portion of the
task is reported above in the memory section. Following the recall of the story, detailed questions
about the story are asked. After the first round of questions, the examinee is told that some of his
answers are not correct, and the questions are then repeated. It is noted how many times the
examinee succumbs to the misleading questions on the first round and how many times he
changes his answers from the first to the second round. The total of the two is reported as “Total
Suggestibility.” When Mr. Chappell was presented with the questions for the first time, he
endorsed 6 of the misleading questions, indicating performance within the average range.
However, when the questions were posed to him the 2™ time, he endorsed 12 misleading
questions, indicating performance within the mildly to moderately impaired range. In addition,
he shifted his response on 6 questions, indicating performance within the low average to
borderline range and suggesting some difficulties withstanding external pressure. Overall, his
total suggestibility was within the low average range.

Executive Functioning:

Executive functions are described as the ability to problem solve, learn from past mistakes,
inhibit responses, shift attention, multitask, and generate information. On a task of visual
tracking, Mr. Chappell performed within the high average range. When test complexity was
increased to include shifting attention during the visual tracking task, he again performed within
the high average range. He performed within the low average range on a task of word generation
based on a letter cue (e.g. letter "B"). When asked to name as many animals as he could, a more
structured task, Mr. Chappell performed within the high average range. On a test requiring the
generation of unique figural designs (analogous to the verbal fluency task), Mr. Chappell
performed within the mildly to moderately impaired range. On a task of response inhibition, Mr.
Chappell was first asked to read a series of words (names of colors) as quickly as possible and
then asked to identify colors quickly, Finally, he was asked to identify colors of ink while
ignoring the word that was printed. His reading of words was within the low average range,
while his naming of colors was within the mildly to mederately impaired range. On the inhibition
task, identifying the color of ink while ignoring the word, Mr. Chappell’s performance was
within the average range. On a working memory task in which Mr. Chappell was required to
remember a series of letters while performing a distraction task {counting backwards by 3's), he
performed within the low average range, overall.

On a fairly structured visual problem solving task, Mr. Chappe!l was asked to move a series of
graduated sized disks on pegs one at a time to match an exemplar configuration. His overall
performance on this task was within the average range, completing all but one of the trials and
performing the task fairly quickly (average range). On a less structured task of visual problem-
solving, Mr. Chappell was asked to make judgments on matching stimuli in which multiple
matching criteria could be applied. His overall performance on this task was within the impaired
range. It took him many trials in order to identify the initial problem solving strategy (mildly to
moderately impaired range), and ultimately was only able to identify three of the six possible
strategies (mildly impaired range). On this task, Mr. Chappell would become stuck on particular
problem solving strategies even when they were not effective (mildly to moderately impaired
range), indicating considerable difficulties with perseverative behaviors. In addition, he made
many additional errors in matching (mildly impaired range). On a test in which Mr. Chappell
was asked to explain both common and uncommon sayings, his overall performance was within
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the average range. However, though he was typically able to correctly describe the concrete
meaning of the sayings (average range), Mr. Chappell demonstrated considerably greater
difficulty identifying the abstract meanings behind the sayings (mildiy impaired range). School
records include comments of poor problem solving skills when Mr, Chappell was 16 years old.
Deficits in executive function skills, especially on tasks that have less external structure, have
frequently been documented in the research literature on individuals with FASD.

Adaptive Functioning:

Two avenues were utilized to assess Mr. Chappell’s day-to-day adaptive functioning skills. The
first avenue included direct measures of Mr. Chappell’s abilities in several aspects of daily
activities in the structured environment of the testing room. The second avenue involved
informant reports of his functioning on a day-to-day basis in non-structured environments.

Direct Measures: Mr. Chappell was administered a test designed to address his perception of
emotional states in others. His overall social perception was within the average range. He was
able to identify emotional content both based on facial expression and tone of voice.

On a receptive communication task in which he was asked to follow a series of instructions, Mr.
Chappell performed within the average range, overall. He was able to follow most single and
multistep step instructions accurately. However, he tended to become somewhat confised by
convoluted or misleading questions (e.g. double negatives).

On a test that measured such daily living skills as communication, domestic abilities, and
community skills, Mr. Chappell’s overall performance was within the mildly to moderately
impaired range. He demonstrated significant impairments in his ability to calculate change and
communicate accurately in daily activities.

Taken as a whole, current direct testing indicates that in structured situations Mr. Chappell
demonstrates impairments in communication and daily living skills.

Informant Report: The Vineland Scales of Adaptive Behavior—II (VABS-II) were
administered to three people who have frequently interacted with Mr. Chappell and have known
him well. The informants included his friends, James Ford and Terry Wallace, and his sister,
Myra Chappell-King. The interviews were conducted by Joanne Sparrow, a psychometrist and
Ph.D. clinical psychology student specially trained in administering these interviews. All three
reported on his functioning when he was 25 years old. However, his sister acknowiedged that she
did not know him very well during this time period and as such was unable to provide complete
information on his functioning. She indicated being better able to comment on his functioning
between the ages of 15 and 17, though a follow-up interview regarding his functioning during
these ages could not be obtained prior to the completion of this report. As part of the interview
process all three informants were administered the Behavior Rating Inventory of Executive
Function. One aspect of the BRIEF is that it includes several validity measures to determine the
potential for bias in the informant. None of the informants’ responses raised concerns about the
validity of their report, and should thus be considered an accurate representation of their
perceptions of Mr. Chappell’s day-to-day functicning.

On the Vineland, both Mr. Ford and Mr. Wallace were able to provide sufficient information in
order to calculate an overall composite score. Based on their report, Mr. Chappell obtained and
Adaptive Behavior Composite Scores of 78 (7" percentile) and 54 (<1* percentile), respectively.
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This indicates day-to-day functioning that is between 1.5 and 3.1 standard deviations below
average, and represents significant impairment. They also represent functioning that is below
expectations based on Mr. Chappell’s level of intellectual functioning, especially with respect to
language-based skills. Deficits in the ability to apply cognitive skills appropriately in day-to-day
activities when the levels of external structure are at their lowest, are seen extremely frequently
in research on individuals with FASD. The Vineland assesses three domains of adaptive
functioning: Communication; Daily Living Skills; and Socialization.

Mr. Ford indicated that his friends overall communication abilities were within the low average
range while Mr. Wallace indicated communication functioning to be within the severely
impaired range. This indicates a fairly significant discrepancy between the two informants’
reports. Mr. Ford indicated that Mr. Chappell’s only area of significant weakness was in written
skills where he was reported to be functioning within the mildly impaired range. By contrast, Mr.
Wallace indicated that Mr. Chappell’s receptive communication skills were his area of greatest
weakness with functioning that was reported to be within the moderately to severely impaired
range. Mr. Wallace also indicated expressive and written skills to be within the moderately
impaired range. Though Ms. Chappell-King was unable to provide sufficient information to
calculate the full domain score, she was able to report on some of the subdomains when her
brother was 25 years old. She agreed with Mr. Wallace that her brother’s area of greatest
weakness was receptive communication skills, functioning within the moderately to severely
impaired range. She also indicated that his expressive language skills were within the mildly to
moderately impaired range. Therefore, Ms. Chappell-King’s responses to questions were quite
consistent with Mr. Wallace’s responses

Mr. Ford reported Mr. Chappell’s overall daily living skills to be within the mildly to moderately
impaired range while Mr. Wallace reported his functioning to be within the moderately impaired
range. Both agreed that personal hygiene skills were an area of weakness, with functioning that
was within the mildly to moderately impaired range. Mr. Ford indicated that community based
skills were within the mildly to moderately impaired range while Mr. Wallace indicated that
skills in this area were within the moderately to severely impaired range. All three informants
agreed that domestic skills were an area of relative strength for Mr. Chappell. Both Mr. Ford and
Ms. Chappell-King indicated domestic abilities that were broadly within average range while Mr.
Wallace indicated abilities that were within the mildly impaired range.

Socialization skills were reported by both Mr. Wallace and Mr. Ford as being within the
impaired range with Mr, Ford indicating functioning that was within the mildly impaired range
while Mr. Wallace was indicating functioning within the mildly to moderately impaired range,
Both agreed that his area of greatest relative strength was in coping skills where his performance
was in the low average to borderline range. Mr. Ford indicated similar levels of functioning with
respect to Mr. Chappell’s interpersonal skills while Mr. Wallace indicated interpersonal skills
that were within the mildly to moderately impaired range.

When comparing the reports of the informants, greatest discrepancy was found with respect to
communication skills with Mr. Ford indicating functioning that was considerably higher than

either Mr. Wallace or Ms. Chappell-King were indicating. In other aspects of daily living skills,
the informants were fairly consistent in their description of Mr. Chappell.
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SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Figure | graphically represents Mr. Chappell’s pattern of performance on the current testing
where all scores are converted to standard deviations from the mean (a score of 0, green line) and
the direction of deficit is made censistent (lower scores = poorer performance). Standard
deviations below -2 for intellectual testing and -1 for neuropsychological testing represent areas
of impaired functioning (red line). Mr. Chappell’s performance is shown with the blue line.

As can be seen in Figure 1, Mr. Chappell demonstrated significant impairments in 9 domains of
functioning. These included:

Academic functioning, especially in arithmetic

Learning and memory for verbal and visual information

Visuospatial construction and organization

Attention functioning

Processing speed

Executive functions, especially on tasks low external structure

Communication skills (based on direct testing of expressive communication and two of
three informant reports)

Daily living skills (based on direct testing and informant reports)

9. Socialization skills (based on informant reports}.

Ll ol e

e

In addition, 40% of Mr. Chappell’s test scores shown in Figure 1 were at or below the cutoff
point for impairment, indicating quite widespread impairments. Furthermore, 28% of the scores
that were in deficit were found to be at least within the moderately impaired range.

The guidelines developed by the CDC for diagnosing an FASD require that, in the presence of
prenatal alcohol exposure, functioning in at least 3 domains of cognitive functioning that are at
least one standard deviation below average and/or intellectual functioning that is within the
intellectually disabled range. Reportedly, multiple people have indicated that Mr. Chappell’s
mother consumed alcohol as well as heroin during the course of her pregnancy. Mr. Chappell’s
pattern of current neuropsychological functioning meets the diagnostic guidelines with deficits
that were identified in 9 domains of functioning.

In addition, Mr. Chappell is demonstrating a pattern of functioning on current testing that is
consistent with research studies on individuals with FASD. As can be seen in Figure 2, Mr.
Chappell is demonstrating significant splits in performance between the various domains of IQ
testing, a pattern often seen in individuals with FASD. In addition, Figure 3 compares Mr.
Chappell’s performance on current testing with research on individuals with FASD with respect
to intellectual, academic, and adaptive functioning. As can be seen, Mr. Chappell demonstrates a
descending pattern of performance between the three domains of functioning that is entirely
consistent with research on individuals with FASD. This pattern can be seen as a “hallmark”
feature in research on individuvals with FASD. Finally, Figure 4 portrays Mr. Chappell’s
performance on executive functioning and adaptive functioning measures where the green line
represents the average score for higher structured executive function tasks, the purple line
represents the average for lower structured executive function tasks, and the red line represents
the average score for the lowest level of external structure with respect to adaptive skills. As can
be seen in the figure, Mr. Chappell is demonstrating a stepwise decrease in functioning as the
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level of structure in the environment also decreases. Therefore, Mr. Chappell’s current pattern of
neuropsychological functioning is consistent with the diagnostic guidelines for an FASD,

On interview, Mr. Chappell did not report a significant medical history that could be contributory
to his current pattern of neuropsychological functioning. He recalls one incident in which he fell
from a moped but indicates that he does not strike his head during the incideat. He also recalls a
few fights with family members in which he was struck in the head. However, he reports never
receiving a blow to the head that resulted in loss of consciousness or concussion-like symptoms.
By contrast, Mr. Chappeil reports a history of alcohol, marijuana, and crack cocaine use in his
life, He first tried alcohol when 12 years old. Between the ages of 15 and 17, he indicated
drinking nearly daily to the point of intoxication though not to the point of passing out or
throwing up. After the age of 18, he indicates drinking at least every other day to the point of
intoxication and acknowledged using alcohol up to the time of his arrest. He first tried marijuana
at the age of 12 and began using on a daily basis when he was 16 or 17 years old. He reports
continuing to use marijuana at least once every 3 1o 4 days up until the time of his arrest at 25.
He first tried crack cocaine at the age of 1 7. He reports that he did not use frequently until just
before moving to Las Vegas, but that once there he began using approximately every other day,
increasing his use over time. It is possible that using alcohol, marijuana, and crack cocaine could
have a negative impact on cognitive functioning, especially during the time that a person is
actively using, However, the majority of research indicates that even with chronic use of
substances, ongoing abstinence typically will lead to improvements in cognitive functioning. In
addition, research on animals and humans has found that those exposed to prenatal alcohol are
more likely to develop alcohol and substance use problems that frequently start earlier in life.
Therefore, while it is possible that these competing possibilities could have had an additive
impact, Mr. Chappell’s pattemn of current neuropsychological functioning continues to be
consistent with guidelines for the diagnosis of FASD.

Thus, Mr. Chappell’s current functioning is consistent with past research and with carrent
guidelines for diagnosis of a FASD. As such, a dingnosis of Neurodevelopmental Disorder
Associated with Prenatal Alcohol Exposure (ND-PAE) based on the current DSM-5 would
be appropriate. He would alse have been appropriately diagnosed with Cognitive Disorder,
NOS when the DSM-IV was being utilized between 1994 and 2013, However, the ultimate
medical diagnosis awaits formal evaluation by Dr, Davies,

Signature l:lﬁc

7
(,_P' M
Paul D. Connor, Ph.D.

Licensed Psychologist/Neuropsychologist
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SUMMARY SCORES

WECHSLER ADULT INTELLIGENCE SCALE — FOURTH EDITION (WAIS-1V):

Verbal Comprehension  Scaled Score

Similarities 9
Vocabulary 8
Information 11

Working Memory Scaled Score

Perceptual Reasoning
Block Design

Matrix Reasoning
Visual Puzzles

Processing Speed

Digit Span 6 Symbol Search
Arithmetic 4 Digit Symbol-Coding
j(o]
Verbal Comprehension 96
Perceptual Reasoning 96
Working Memory 71
Processing Speed 86
Full Scale IQ 86
WIDE RANGE ACHIEVEMENT TEST — 4 EDITION:
Subtests Standard Score Percentiles
Word Reading 91 27
Sentence Comprehension 92 30
Spelling 100 50
Math Computaticn 72 3
Reading Composite 90 25
CALIFORNIA VERBAL LEARNING TEST: (mean=50, sd=10}
T-Score Percentile
Trial 1 20 <]
Trial 5 45 3
Total of all learming trials 38 12
Short Delay Free Recall 50 50
Long Delay Free Recall 45 3l
Recognition 55 69
REY COMPLEX FIGURE TEST: (mean=50, sd=10)
T-Score Percentile
Copy 17 <l
Immediate Recall 23 <1
Delayed Recall 26 1
Recognition Total Correct 40 16
Conner’s Continuous Performance Test- 3™ Edition (mean=50, sd=10)
T-Score Percentile
Omissicns 47 61
Commissions 39 86
Reaction Time 63 9
Variability of Reaction Time 47 6l
GROOVED PEGBOARD: (mean=50, sd=10)
T-Score Percentile
Dominant Hand 50 50
Non Dominant Hand 50 50

Page 13

Scaled Score
12
7
9

Scaled Score
9
6

Grade Equivalents
11.6

12.0
>12.9
4.0

AA07042




FINGER TAPPING: (mean=50, sd=10)

T-Score Percentile
Dominant Hand 41 18
Non Dominant Hand 33 4
CONTROLLED ORAL WCORD ASSOCIATION TEST: (mean=50, sd=10)

T-Score Percentile
Total of F-A-S Trials 42 21
Animals 56 73
RUFF’S FIGURAL FLUENCY': (mean=50, sd=10)

T-Score Percentile
Total Unique Designs 303 23
Perseverations 34.9 6.8
STROOP TEST: (mean=50, sd=10})

T-Score Percentile
Word only trial 41 18
Color only trial 31 3 (1 error)
Ink color (ignoring printed words) 53 61 (1 error)
Interference 56 73
TRAILS TEST: (mean=50, sd=10)

T-Score Percentile

Trials A 55 69
Trails B 57 75
CONSONANT TRIGRAMS: (mean=50, sd=10)

T-Score Percentile
9 Second Delay Trials 42 21
18 Second Delay Trials 48 42
36 Second Delay Trials 40 16
WISCONSIN CARD SORTING TEST: (mean=50, sd=10)

T-Score Percentile
Perseverative Responses 33 5
Nonperseverative Errors 36 g
Conceptual Leve! Responses 35 6

Raw Score Percentile
Categories Completed 3 6-10
Trials to Complete 1* Category 33 2-5
Set Breaks H >16

DELIS-KAPLAN EXECUTIVE FUNCTION SYSTEM: (mean=10, sd=3)

Standard Score Percentile

Tower Test
Total Achievement il 63
First Move Time 11 63
Time per Move 9 37
Move Accuracy 10 50
Total Rule Violations 11 63
Proverbs Test
Total Achievement 9 37
Common Proverb Achievement 10 50
Uncommon Proverb Ach, 8 25
Accuracy Score 11y 50
Abstraction Score 6 9
Page 14

AA07043




NAB: AUDITORY COMPREHENSION TEST: (mean=50, sd=10)

Total Auditory Comprehension

T-Score
55

ACS: SOCIAL COGNITION: (mean=10, sd=3)

Social Perception
Affect Naming
Prosody

Social Perception Pairs

Scaled Score
11

11

11

9

Percentile
69

Percentile

GUDJONSSON SUGGESTIBILITY SCALE 2: (mean=50, sd=10}

Immediate Recall
Delayed Recall
Yield 1

Yield 2

Shift

Total Suggestibility

Scaled Score
34
30
46
34
40
42

Percentile
5

2

34

5

16

21

TEXAS FUNCTIONAL LIVING SCALE: (mean=50, sd=10)

Time

Money & Calculation
Communication
Memory

Total Score

Scaled Score

Cumulative Percentile

VINELAND ADAPTIVE BEHAVIOR SCALES: (Administered to James Ford re age 25)

Communication
Receptive
Expressive
Written
Daily Living Skills
Personal
Domestic
Community
Socialization
Interpersonal Relationships
Play and Leisure time
Coping Skills
Adaptive Behavior Composite
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=75
3-9
3-9
17-25
34 5
Standard Score Percentiles
{mean=100, sd=15)
90 25
76 5
77 6
78 7

v-Score
{mean=15sd=3)

i5
16
11

9
16
10

Age Equivalent

18:0
22+
113

12:6
22+
17:0
16:0

12:6
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VINELAND ADAPTIVE BEHAVIOR SCALES: (Administered to Terry Wallace re age 25)

Standard Score Percentiles v-Score Age Equivalent
(mean=100, sd=15) {mean=135,sd=3)
Communication 29 =]
Receptive 7 4:7
Expressive 8 5:7
Written 8 9:0
Daily Living Skills 63 1
Personal 9 12:6
Domestic Il 15:0
Community 7 9:6
Socialization 71 3
Interpersonal Relationships 10 11:6
Play and Leisure time
Coping Skills 12 12:6
Adaptive Behavior Composite 54 <1
VINELAND ADAPTIVE BEHAVIOR SCALES: (Administered to Myra Chappell-King re age 25)
Standard Score Percentiles v-Score Age Equivalent
(mean=100, sd=15) (mean=15,sd=3)
Communication
Receptive 7 4:11
Expressive 9 7:6
Written
Daily Living Skills
Personal
Domestic 12 15:3
Community
Socialization

Interpersonal Relationships
Play and Leisure time
Coping Skills

Adaptive Behavior Composite

BRIEF-A: (mean=50, sd=10) (Administered to James Ford re age 25)

T-Score Raw Score
Inhibit 45
Shift 61
Emational Control 45
Self-Monitor 65
Initiate 45
Working Memory 58
Plan/Organize 51
Task Monitor 53
Org. of Materials 51
BRI 51
Ml 51
GEC 52
Negativity Scale 0
Infrequency Scale 1
Inconsistency Scale 6
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BRIEF-A: (mean=50, sd=10) (Administered to Terry Wallace re age 25)

T-Score Raw Score
Inhibit 66
Shift 6l
Emotional Controt 45
Self-Monitor 68
Initiate 48
Working Memory 74
Plan/Organize 58
Task Monitor 57
Org. of Materials 44
BRI 58
MI 56
GEC 57
Negativity Scale 1
Infrequency Scale 1
Inconsistency Scale 4

BRIEF-A: (mean=50, sd=10) (Administered to Myra Chappell-King re age 25)

T-Score Raw Score
Inhibit 57
Shift 53
Emiotional Control 54
Self-Monitor 51
Initiate 42
Working Memory 55
Plan/Organize 49
Task Monitor 57
Org. of Materials 51
BRI 54
Mi 50
GEC 52
Negativity Scale 0
Infrequency Scale 1
Inconsistency Scale 4

CALIFORNIA VERBAL LEARNING TEST - FORCED CHOICE;
Total Correct
Correct choices 16/16

CONNERS' CONTINUOUS PERFORMANCE TEST - VALIDITY:

Overall Validity: Valid

ADVANCED CLINICAL SOLUTIONS — EFFORT ASSESSMENT SCORE:
Raw Score

Reliable Digit Span 7

Word Choice 49/50

THE DOT COUNTING TEST:
Score

E-Score 3
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Figure 2:

Significant Splits on Current 1Q Testing of James Chappell

Standard Deviations (mean =0, sd = 1)

Page 19

AA07048



Figure 3:

Downward Slope James Chappell
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Figure 4:

Neuropsychological Testing of James Chappeli:
Executive Functioning and Adaptive Functioning
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MATERIALS RELIED UPON (Amended)

DOCUMENTS SENT TO DR. PAUL CONNOR

e Dr. Lewis Etcoff, Report {6-11-1996)
e Dr. Lewis Etcoff, Supplemental Report (9-28-1996}
Evaluation Material {incl. Life History Questionnaire), Dr. Lewis Etcoff
e Dr. Natalie Novick Brown, Final Report (8-3-2016)
e Dr. Julian Davies, Final Report (8-5-2016)
e Quantitative EEG Analysis, Dr. Robert Thatcher (8-1-2016)
e Dr. Jonathan Lipman, Report (8-12-2016)
e Dr. Matthew Mendel, Final Report {(6-27-2016)
¢ Social History Chronology
e Photo, James Chappell at age five
e Photo, James Chappell at age one
s Excerpts of Medical Records from Ely State Prison for James M. Chappel!
e Nevada Supreme Court Opinion (12-30-1998}

School records, James M. Chappell

e 1976-1977 Moores Park School, Semester Report

s 1977 Moores Park School, Certificate

e 1978 Lansing School District Environmental Education Center, Certificate
e 1978, Moores Park School, Certificate for Field's Day

s 1979-1980 Moores Park School, Student Progress Report

e 1980 Class assignment

e 1980 Daily Progress Report

s 1981, Forest View School, Student Progress Report

s 1982, Maple Grove School, Certificate of Completion-5™ grade
« Junior Citizen’s Award, Officer Friendly Program

e Lansing School District, Cumulative School Record

Declarations of:
¢ Angela Mitchell (8-9-16)
e Benjamin Dean (4-17-16)
* Bret Robello (9-29-16)
e Charles Dean (4-19-16)
e Carla Chappell {4-23-16}
¢ Clare McGuire {8-6-2016}
e Dina Richardson (8-9-16)
e Ernestine ‘Sue’ Harvey {6-15-16)
e Ernestine ‘Sue’ Harvey {7-2-16)
o Fred Dean (6-11-16)
¢ Georgette Sneed {5-14-16}
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e Harold Kuder (4-17-16)

e James Ford, (5-19-16)

s James Wells {1-22-16)

s loetta Ford {5-18-16})

s lila Godard (8-5-16)

e Lewis Etcoff (7-11-16)

¢ Louise Underwood (9-22-16)

e Madge Cage (9-24-16)

e Michael Chappell (5-14-16})

¢ Michael Pollard (9-14-16)

e Mpyra Chappell-King {5-20-16})

e  Phillip Underwood (4-17-16)

s Rodney Axam (4-16-16)

* Rose Wells-Canon (4-16-16)

e« Rosemary Pacheco (8-9-16}

e Sharon Axam (4-18-16)

e Sheron Barkley (4-16-16)

e Shirley Sorrell (9-23-16})

e Terrance Wallace (5-17-16)

e Verlean Townsend {9-23-16}

e  William Earl Bands (5-13-16)

* William Roger Moore (4-17-16)
¢ Willie Richard Chappell {4-16-16}
s  Willie Richard Chappell, Jr. (5-16-16)
o Willie Wiltz, Ir. (7-28-16)

Trial and 2nd Penalty Trial Testimony of:

e Trial Testimony, James Chappell {10-14-1996)

«  Trial Testimony, Dr. Lewis Etcoff (10-15-1996)

¢ Trial Testimony, William Roger Moore {10-22-1996}

e 2nd Penalty Trial Testimony, Dr. Lewis Etcoff (3-16-2007)
¢ 2nd Trial Testimony, Dr. William Danton (March 14, 2007}
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JULIAN DAVIES, MD 4245 RooseveLt War NE
SeaTTLE, WA 98105

T 206-313-0252
F 206-598-3040
JOOLIANGUW.EDUY

AugusT 5, 2016

JAMES CHAPPELL - MEDICAL EXPERT REPORT

James M. Chappell (DOB 12/27/. is a 46 year old man referred to me by the Office of
the Federal Public Defender, District of Nevada, current federal habeas counsel for Mr.
Chappell. Counsel asked me to evaluate whether Mr, Chappell has a Fetal Alcohol
Spectrum Disorder.

MEDICAL EXPERT OPINION

[t is my opinion to a reasonable degree of medical certainty that Mr. Chappell has
Alcohol-Related Neurodevelopmental Disorder (ARND). This diagnosis is a Fetal
Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD).

In plainer language, Mr. Chappell's mother drank alcohol in a high-risk pattern during
pregnancy. Since childhood Mr. Chappell has demonstrated a pattern of brain
dysfunction consistent with fetal alcohol damage. ARND applies to patients with the
brain injuries but without the classic Fetal Alcohol Syndrome (FAS) physical features
seen in a minority of affected individuals. His ARND was likely compounded by a
potent combination of genetic influences, other prenatal exposures, traumatic loss,
childhood neglect and abuse, lack of appropriate role models, environmental toxins, and
adolescent substance abuse.

FASD BACKGROUND

FASD is an umbrella term used to describe the spectrum of birth defects and neurologic
impacts caused by maternal alcohol consumption duting pregnancy. FAS is at one end
of that spectrum. FAS is a permanent birth defect syndrome caused by prenatal alcohel
exposure, characterized by prenatal and/or postnatal growth deficiency, a unique
cluster of minor facial anomalies, and central nervous system (CNS) abnormalities.
This cluster of subtle facial anomalies includes short eye widths, thin upper lip, and a
smooth philtrum (the vertical groove between nose and lip).

The brain injuries caused by prenatal alcohol exposure are variable, but can include
such outcomes as lower IQ, ADHD (attention deficit/hyperactivity disorder),
difficulties with judgment and impulse control, language and social difficulties, learning
disabilities, visuospatial deficits, motor and coordination challenges, memory problems,
and impairments in executive functions - "higher-level” cognitive skills like flexibility,
planning, organization, inhibition, judgment, and novel problem-solving. Individuals
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with FASDs have daily functioning skills and life outcomes that are often more
impaired than their IQ alone would predict.!

A diagnosis of FAS requires all of the above features (growth, face, brain) to be
confirmed. For alcohol-exposed individuals who lack a history of growth deficiency, the
facial features of FAS, and/or evidence of severe brain impairments, diagnoses on the
broader fetal alcohol spectrum such as Alcohol-Related Neurodevelopmental Disorder
(ARND) may be appropriate.

The field of FASD is over 40 years old, and uses well-established diagnostic criteria,
most notably the Institute of Medicine (IOM) guidelines,? the University of
Washington 4-Digit Code,* the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) definition of FAS,*
and the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, 5th Edition (DSM-5).°

I am a board-certified pediatrician licensed in the State of Washington, and a Fellow of
the American Academy of Pediatrics. I was trained at Yale, UCSF, and the University
of Washington. I am a Clinical Professor of Pediatrics at the University of Washington
School of Medicine, where for the past thirteen years I have evaluated children and
adults at the longest-running FAS diagnostic clinic in the country. Since FAS is a birth
defect syndrome, many experts in the field have pediatric backgrounds; the diagnostic
criteria for FAS are the same for children and adults.

I have published articles in the peer-reviewed literature on prenatal alcohol/drug
exposures, and present on these topics at regional and national conferences. I have been
been retained in cases relating to FASDs by defense counsel in Arizona, California,
Georgia, lllinois, Ohio, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Texas, Utah, and Washington State, as
well as the US Attorneys in Seattle. I have qualified as an expert witness in Oregon and
Pennsylvania. A copy of my resume is attached.

! Streissguth, A. P., Bookstein, F. L., Barr, H. M., Sampson, P. D., O'Malley, K., & Young, J. K. (2004). Risk factors for
adverse life outcomes in fetal aleohol syndrome and fetal alcohol effects. Journal of Developmental & Behavioral Pediatrics,
25(4), 228-238.

* Stratton, K. R., Howe, C. ]., Battaglia, F. C., Institute of Medicine (U.5.). Committee to Study Fetal Alcohol Syndrome,
National Institute on Alcohal Abuse and Alcoholism (1996}, Fetal Alcohol Syndrome: Diagnosis, Epidemiology, Prevention,
and Treatment, National Academies Press.

! Astley, 8.]., & Clarren, S. K. (2000). Diagnosing the full spectrum of fetal alcohol-exposed individuals: introducing the 4-
digit diagnastic code. Alcohol and Alcoholism (Oxford, Oxfordshire), 35(4), 400-410.

* Bertrand, J., Floyd, R., Weber, M., O'Connor, M., Riley, E., Johnson, K., & Cohen, D. (2004). Fetal Alcohol Syndrome:
Guidelines for Referral and Diagnosis. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Atlanta, GA.

* American Psychiatric Association DSM-5 Task Force (2013). Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders :
DSM-5. American Psychiatric Association, Washington, DC.
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MATERIALS RELIED UPON

Available for my review at the time of this report were the following materials:
School Grades Chart, James M. Chappell

. Schaol Testing Chart, James M. Chappell

Social History

. Current Neuropsychological Testing Preliminary Chart of James Chappell
Preliminary Neuropsychological Summary Scores, James Chappell

Ely State Prison medical records excerpts for James Chappell

Ely State Prison excerpts of the Inmate File for James Chappell

I I R

. School records, James M. Chappell
a. 1976-1977 Moores Park School, Semester Report
b. 1979-1980 Moores Park School, Student Progress Report
. 05-09-1980 Class assignment
. 05-09-1980 Daily Progress Report
. 1981, Forest View School, Student Progress Report

oL o

1982, Maple Grove School, Certificate of Completion-6th grade
. 06-14-1978 Lansing School District Environmental Education Center, Certificate
. 1978, Moores Park School, Certificate for Field’s Day
i. Junior Citizen's Award, Officer Friendly Program

om0

j. Lansing School District, Cumulative School Record
k. 1977 Moores Park School, Certificate

9, Declarations

. Benjamin Dean (4-17-16)

. Carla Chappell (4-23-16)

. Charles Dean (4-19-16)

. Ernestine ‘Sue’ Harvey (7-2-16)

. Fred Dean (6-11-16)

Georgette Sneed (5-14-16)

. Harold Kuder (4-17-16)

. James Ford (5-19-16)

i. James Wells (1-22-16)

j. Joetta Ford (5-18-16)

k. Michael Chappell (5-14-16)

[= ol -}
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. Myra Chappell-King (5-20-16)
m. Phillip Underwood (4-17-16)
n. Rodney Axam (4-16-16)
. Rose Wells-Canon (4-16-16)
. Sharon Axam (4-18-16)
. Sheron Barkley (4-16-16)
. Terrance Wallace (5-16-16)
William Earl Bonds (5-13-16)
t. William Roger Moore (4-17-16)
u. Witlie Richard Chappell, Jr. (5-16-16)
v, Willie Richard Chappell, Sr. (4-16-16)
10. Trial Testimony, Dr. Lewis Etcoff (10-15-96)
11. 2nd Penalty Trial Testimony, Dr. Lewis Etcoff (3-16-07) -
12.2nd Penalty Trial Testimony, Dr. William Danten (3-14-07)
13. Juvenile Records, James M. Chappell

s 0 T 0

e

14, Report of Dr. Natalie Novick Brown

15. Report of Dr. Paul Connor

16.qEEG Analysis by Robert Thatcher, Ph.D.
17. Photographs taken of James Chappell

As is standard in an FASD evaluation, at the beginning of my engagement I requested
any available family history, pregnancy and prenatal exposure history, childhood and
adult medical records, social history, school and developmental records, occupational
history, criminal justice history, and client mental health records, as well as the results
of any neurologic or neuropsychological testing.

I have rendered my opinion based on materials available to me at this time, and retain
the right to revise my opinion should new information become available.

Childhood-era information will refer to the client as "James," with adult references as
“Mr. Chappell.”

Pertinent positives and negatives from records review include the following:

PRENATAL EXPOSURES AND PREGNANCY HISTORY

1. James's aunt reported that "James Jr.'s mother, Shirley Chappell, was the best
friend of my sister Barbara ... Barbara was an alcoholic and frequently drank with a
group of alcohelic friends. Shirley was a part of this group, so I assume she was
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drinking as well ... I often saw Shirley and Barbara intoxicated and behaving in the
same manner when I encountered them in passing ... It was my impression that
Shirley was abusing substances throughout her pregnancies with James and Myra,
because she did not change her behaviors and I ebserved her drunk or intoxicated
on various occasions.”"(Rose Wells-Canon)

2. A close friend of James's mother stated that "Shirley’s lifestyle did not change at all
during her pregnancies. She continued to abuse heroin and cocaine on a daily basis
while she was pregnant with James. She also continued o engage in prostitution
whenever she was short on cash. Shirley also continued to drink alcohol during her
pregnancy with James, but not as frequently as she abused other drugs. Shirley
drank alcohol a couple times a week, as far as [ recall, but not on a daily basis
because it was not her drug of choice. Shirley liked hard liquor and usually had

several drinks in one setting when she drank, even while pregnant.” (William
Bonds)

3. James'salleged father reported that "Shirley abused drugs on a daily basis
throughout her entire pregnancies with both Jimmy [James] and Myra." He and she
“used heroin as much as we could, but usually no less than two or three nickel bags
a day."” He could not recall her "receiving much, if any, prenatal care during both
pregnancies.” (James Wells)

4. James's other possible father stated that “Shirley was a heavy drinker from the time
that we met in 1966 until her death in 1973 ... Shirley regularly drank with her best
friend, Barbara Wells, and others. Barbara Wells and Shirley’s mutual friends were
alcoholics who drank most days, but especially on weekends. I frequently saw
Shirley drunk and smelled alcohol on her breath. Shirley drank alcohol throughout
her entire pregnancy with James.” He also noted that Shirley smoked one to one
and a half packs of cigarettes a day during her pregnancy with James. (William
Chappell, Sr.}

5. James's older sister was told that their mother abused drugs and alcohol during her
pregnancies with her and her siblings. (Carla Chappell)

6. "All that I know about my mother was told to me by the adults in my family
including that she struggled with an addiction to heroin and alcohol, and that she
heavily used both of these substances throughout her pregnancies with all of us,
except for Lapriest.” (Myra Chappell-King)

7. Jame's maternal uncles reported that "Alcohol and drug addiction were major
problems for me and my siblings, Shirley, Anthony, Sharon, and I were all addicted
to substances, starting at early ages. All of my siblings had arrest records and tragic
lives. Shirley died while walking down a highway in the middle of the night while
intoxicated ..." (Rodney Axam)

8. At 5-7 months of her pregnancy with James, "In a state of intoxication, Shirley
slipped and fell down an entire staircase ... Shirley began spotting blood after she
got up and was rushed to the hospital ... the doctors told her that she almost lost
James." (William Chappell, Sr.)

Medical Expert Evaluation of James Chappell (DOB 12/27/69) - Dr. Davies Page 5
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9. “James had a very rough start in life. He was born to an alcohol and heroin addicted
mother. Drugs and alcohol were a problem for James’s aunts, uncles, and other
family members as well. A year before her death, it was determined that his mother's
substance abuse problems had caused her to neglect her children, so James and his
siblings were removed from her custody and placed in the home of their maternal
grandmother, Clara Axam. James’s mother was killed when he and his siblings were
just toddlers and babies, so James’s grandmother had to assume permanent custody
and raise them by herself. James and his siblings had different fathers who were all
absent from the children's lives, James and his siblings had no male role models in or
outside the home.... James’s deficits and behaviors were typical of the other children
I have supervised who were prenatally exposed to alcohol and drugs.” (William
Moore)

10. “Shirley was a drug addict by the time she became pregnant with James, and it is my
understanding that she abused heroin throughout her pregnancy with him.” (Sharon
Axam)

11. Around the time of her pregnancy with her son James, Shirley “was a junkie. Besides
abusing heroin, Shirley also drank alcohol.” (Georgette Sneed)

12. Adults told her that her mother Shirley abused heroin and alcohol during all of her
pregnancies except for LaPriest. (Myra Chappell-King)

BIRTH HISTORY

1. A school social work evaluation reported that James was full term and 6.5 pounds at
birth (16th percentile).

2. James was the fourth of five children from Shirley Chappell; his birth father is
inconsistent in the declarations (James Wells is listed but his grandmother
suspected Willie Chappell, who also felt that he was the father). Carla was born
3/15/67, Ricky 3/2/68, and Myra 1/16/72. He had an older half-sibling Lapriest,
with a different father.

GROWTH HISTORY

1. A school physical on 7/18/75 (5.5 years old) reported a weight of 47.5 pounds (74th
percentile) and height 41 inches (4th percentile). (School records)

2. Other childhood growth records are not available to me at this time.

MEDICAL HISTORY

1. James was hospitalized in 1973 for "tonsils” and also had chickenpox in 1973 but was
otherwise found to be healthy at school entry. (School records)

2. James had prolonged enuresis (bedwetting) until 14-15 years old. (Carla Chappell)
He also had daytime enuresis, and was nicknamed "Pissy.” (James Ford) James
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soiled himself as well, and would not react to presence of stoo! in his pants. (Willie
Chappell, Jr.)

3. James frequently complained about headaches, possibly related to poor vision.
(James Ford)

4. School records documented normal hearing exams, and noted that he was
prescribed glasses,

5. James and other kids in the neighborhood played at the abandoned Diamond Reo
factary site, inside empty storage tanks and in the surrounding dirt. This was felt by
many that were interviewed to be a significant exposure to environmental
contaminants. Nellers Court residents were eventually paid to relocate in James's
teens, and the homes were demolished. (James Ford; Joetta Ford)

6. A memo from the current habeas team regarding suspected environmental
contaminants in the Diamond Reo plant and nearby Nellers Court neighborhood.
This memo reports that "Arsenic, Benzene, Lead, Perchloroethylene (sometimes
called Tetrachloroethylene), Toluene, Trichloroethylene, Vinyl Chloride, and cis-
1,2 Dichloroethylene” are currently present at the site, but that “a personal
communication with the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality suggests
that Arsenic and Lead were not introduced by the Diamond Reo plant but
contaminated the soil later, when the state of Michigan used historic fill from other
sites to cover the Diamond Reo site.” This would leave solvents and solvent by-
products as the likely contaminants of the site when James lived there. Of these,
perchloroethylene (PCE) "was the only one of the contaminants mentioned whose
chronic effects included neurological effects. Chronic exposure to PCE causes
sensory symptoms such as headaches, impairments in cognitive and motor
neurobehavioral functioning, and color vision decrements.” The other
contaminants can have short-term effects (such as headaches) but are not reported
to permanently impair cognitive functioning. Toluene can impair cognition in
chronic abusers but this has not been described at lower level environmental
exposures. Lead does impair cognition but his exposure level is unclear - it was a
common contaminant in the 1970s.

7. Mr. Chappell was treated for hypertension, chest pain, headaches, and cold/flu
symptoms in prison. (Nevada DOC records)

SOCIAL HISTORY

1. Thave reviewed Mr. Chappell’s social history in extensive declarations listed above,
and in Dr. Brown’s report. I have not included pertinent positives and negatives
here in the interest of space, as this history is being directly addressed by other
experts.

DEVELOPMENTAL HISTORY
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1. A close friend of James's mother who saw James almost daily from birth to age 3
noted that "James was slower than his siblings and did not seem to pick up on things
as quickly as they did. James was also less interactive than his siblings. James did
not talk much. He did not run up to me and Shirley's other friends to jump on our
lap, play, or ask for things like his other siblings did. James rarely smiled or laughed.
James just quietly sat looking at everything going on around him with a puzzled look
on his face.” (William Bond)

2. James's grandmather reported to school that his early development appeared to be
normal but that James would not talk to anyane after his mother died. She enrolled
him in Head Start "where he would not play with anyone or talk to anyone. He
finally built a relationship with a new teacher, and when she left suddenly, he
regressed to his old behavior, not talking to anyone.” (Clara Axam)

3. Young James was called a "cry baby" who was very sensitive and afraid of others.
(Carla Chappell)

4. After entering Kindergarten, James started to relate to his teacher and some
children, "but did not get involved in playing with them, usually playing by himself
or standing on the sidelines.” (School records)

5, James was perceived to be "mentally slow"” in childhood, with slow and simple
language, and poor attention span. (Benjamin Dean)

6. "James also had a short attention span and was easily distracted in the classroom.
Whenever James had problems understanding or focusing on the work, he often
became disruptive in class by talking to other students or becoming the class
clown.” (Harold Kuder)

7. James’s sister described very hyperactive behavior and a short attention span.
(Myra Chappell-King)

8. James’s older brother observed that “James was a very immature person and acted
like someone who was younger than his actual age. James acted like he was six years
old when he was ten and eight years old when he was thirteen.” (Willie Chappell,

Jr)
9. "James could not read well and had problems with word pronunciations throughout

his childhood and early adulthood. He often asked me and others to read things for
him, even when he was in his early twenties." (James Ford)

10. His close friends would cover for his reading difficulties by mentioning his poor
vision and reading for him. James was similarly dependent on friends to get him
jobs, drive him to work, and let him stay with them. (Terrance Wallace)

11. James's neighbor and mother of his friend worked as a nurse. She claimed that one
of James's elementary teachers mentioned that James's IQ was in the low 70s. Her
own impression was of impulsivity, lack of awareness of consequences, and "getting
into trouble repeatedly for the same issues.” She noted James to struggle with
reading, even as a young adult. She also described that Clara "worried most about
James because he was the most disabled and needy of his siblings.” (Joetta Ford)
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12.

13.
14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20,

James was described as gullible, not street-wise, a follower, very impressionable,
and the frequent butt of tricks/jokes. He had difficulty following social cues and was
"very childish.” He wore bizarre clothing that he seemed to believe looked cool, and
he was noted to have poor personal hygiene. (Benjamin Dean; Charles Dean)

James was "very uncoordinated and couldn’t run fast.” (Harold Kuder)

James was not violent or aggressive (until he got involved with crack). He would
back down easily, and would cower at neighborhood girls, which got him teased.
(Charles Dean)

James had a poor sense of direction, and could not locate an address unless he'd
been there before. {Charles Dean)

James tried selling drugs but was bad at math and would get cheated by junkies on
sales; he would also use his own supply. Drug dealers reportedly gave him a pass
because of his developmental/mental health issues. (Charles Dean)

1t took James longer than his peers to develop personal hygiene skills and the ability
to look presentable. (Myra Chappell-King)

James was very dependent on friends and family, as his disabilities made him
immature and vulnerable. They worried about him leaving the state with Debbie.
(Charles Dean)

James had no money management skills, and worked low end jobs where he was
frequently let go after short periods of time. (Myra Chappell-King)

His former probation officer summarized James's history well, stating that "James
was a child with severe deficits. He was a special education student with a learning
disability and had difficulties with various school subjects ... It was almost
impossible to teach him intangible concepts ... James had an inability to grasp and
internalize the ideas that the tutors and I tried to teach him. I repeatedly had to tell
James the same things, but it seemed like "no one was home" ... James experienced
minor improvements at times, but they were not sustained ... James had trouble
overcoming his disabilities. James took failures very hard, and it was sometimes
challenging to get him motivated again. James lacked introspection and had no
insight into the problems and how to overcome them. James's deficits and behaviors
were typical of the other children I have supervised who were prenatally exposed to
alcohol and drugs." (William Moore)

ACADEMIC HISTORY

1.

Dr. Etcoff testified that school records revealed that by 2nd Grade, James had
already come to the attention of of the school district, which was more unusual than
it is now. He interpreted his SLD diagnostic category as “severely learning
disabled,” and noted placement in a SLD special education classroom setting with
one-on-one attention. Despite that extra attention and special programming,
James’s high school reading and math achievement scores were at the 1st stanine
(lowest of 9 stanines). (Dr. Etcoff)
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2. In1976-77 (1st grade) James’s academic grades were poor, especially math. He
missed 6 days and was tardy 33 times. (School records)

3. InJune 1977, James was first referred for supportive services with the following
concerns: "James has a wetting problem and he sucks his fingers. HIs actions and
reactions are very slow. He asks unrelated questions and will not respond when
spoken to."” He was in the second grade but functioning at a first grade level. It is
unclear what evaluation resulted from these concerns, but "nothing was done at
that time."” A number of informal interventions were tried but none of them were
effective, and his behavior deteriorated. (School records)

4. [In1977-78 (2nd Grade) James's academic grades ranged typically from Satisfactory
to Needs to Improve. He had excellent attendance. (School records)

5. In1978-79 (3rd Grade) James's academic grades were in the "Satisfactory” to "Is
Improving" range, with comments about being easily distracted, late turning in
work, and inconsistent in work habits and effort. He had goed attendance. (School
records)

6. In1979-80 (4th grade), James's grades were generally poor, mostly "Needs
Improvement” or "Is Improving" in academic subjects, with comments about
disruptive behaviors and "real difficulties in math” (multiplication and division
grades were blank except for "can't even begin"). Attendance appeared good.
(School records)

7. Special education services were formally initiated in 4th grade. He was referred for
an evaluation due to disruptive behavior, aggressive responses, easily distracted,
and low academic achievement. He qualified under "Emotionally Impaired.” The
school psychologist reports that IQ tests showed borderline to low average
performance. It appears that his academic achievement in Reading was at the 34th
percentile, and only 4th percentile in Arithmetic. However, the Key Math results
reported seemed closer to grade level. The testing psychologist noted him to have
basic abilities in the typical range but "severe difficulty maintaining his attention on
the external world.” His psychological evaluator noted that he was uncooperative
on testing (thus the results were unreliable), sat with his back turned towards the
examiner, appeared to have poor self-concept, and was felt to be using withdrawal
as a defense. He was assigned to "Basic Special Ed Class” with minimal
participation in Regular Education (small group, non-academics). (School records)

8. In1980-81 (5th grade), James's grades were "Satisfactory” to “Is Improving” in
many subjects, but it was noted that he was in Upper Elementary "SLD" which
could mean Severely Learning Disabled (per Dr. Etcoff) or Specific Learning
Disability. Grade level in reading was at the 4th grade. Talking and self-control
were noted as problems. Attendance was good. (School records)

9. In1981-82 (6th grade), James had good attendance, and reading level was still at the
4th grade level. (School records)

10. In 1982-83 (7th Grade), James only attained 14/28 objectives in Math, but achieved
21/23 objectives in Reading. (School records)
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11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

In June 1983 a school social worker reported that James was a "'depressed’ young
man who sleeps a lot. He has some significant learning disabilities which will
continue to cause him a great deal of frustration in the school setting.” (School
records)

During the 1983-4 school year james had 2 number of disruptive behavior episodes
at school, and saw improvements in Social Studies grades in tutoring. (School
records)

From 1977 to 1982 (Elementary School) a number of achievement tests were
reported, with Total Reading and Math scores declining over time. (School
records)

In December 1984 (9th grade) a Peabody Individual Achievement Test placed him
overall at a 6.8 grade level. (School records)

In May 1985 (9th Grade) a poorly legible SAT Task 2 achievement test appears to
show Reading at 3rd-13th percentile, Spelling at 7th percentile, English 9th
percentile, Math at 3rd percentile. Attendance was reportedly poor. (School
records)

In November 1986, James's special education eligibility category was "Emotionally
Impaired.” His Special Education plan as available to me was sparse, with one
short-term goal of turning homework in, and "Basic Classtroom (EMI/EI/LD)" 1-3
hours daily and General Education 2-4 hours daily. Teacher consultant services
only was rejected as an option, as he needed more support. (School records)

The October-November 1986 Special Education evaluation noted the following
areas of concern:

"Ability: Borderline to low average with probable higher potential.

Achievement: WRAT Reading 5th percentile, Arithmetic 2nd percentile.
Emotional: Obs. and interview - Low self-concept, depressed, distrusting, few
coping skills.

Social-Emotional: Low self-image, poor problem solving skills, difficulty completing
assignments, past history of problems with attendance, low motivation.

Math: Low computational + problem solving skills.” (School records)

The school psychologist's testing in October 1986 included only subtests of the

W AIS-R which found "no significant change"” in his verbal fluency and abstract
ability (previously borderline to low average). His academic achievement scores
dropped to 5th percentile in Reading and 2nd percentile in Math. It is unclear why
Specific Learning Disability - Math was nat given more consideration given current
and prior significant discrepancies between IQ and math achievement. It appears
that his behavioral, environmental, and juvenile justice issues may have
overshadowed his learning problems in these special education evaluations.

In January 1987 (10th Grade, but was only promoted to 10th grade in January 1987
after an extra semester of 9th Grade) James had a GPA of 0.65 (with many special
education classes listed) and class rank of 584/607. (School records)
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20. James appears to have dropped out of school around 10th grade. (Myra Chappeli-
King)

PSYCHIATRIC AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE HISTORY

1. See Academic History for emotional concerns in school.

2. Court records at 13 years of age refer to "counseling, off and on, with Dr. Gene
Pernell.” (Juvenile records) This lasted for a year, stopping around the time
Anthony was killed. (School records)

3. Dr. Etcoff testified in 1996 that Mr. Chappell's Millon Clinical Multiaxial Inventory
I1 (a personality test) was valid and indicated social awkwardness, introversion,
desire to be accepted but fear of rejection, mistrust of others, "enormously low self-
worth and very little self-respect,” and Borderline Personality Characteristic. He
also reported cocaine dependence since about 1992. (Etcoff testimony)

4. Dr. Danton testified in 2007 about domestic violence dynamics and Mr. Chappell’s
abandonment anxiety, borderline persenality, and dependent personality type
{Danton testimony).

5. James used a lot of alcohol and marijuana starting in early adolescence, and started
to use crack in his later teens. His crack addiction worsened after the birth of his
first child. (Carla Chappell)

6. In his teens, James was drinking 20 bottles of 40-ounce male liquor per week,
drinking from morning until evening. He binge drank liguor on weekends. (James
Ford)

7. James’s crack addiction in Nevada was severe, and he would smoke crack
“morning, noon, and night on a daily basis when he was no incarcerated.” His
normally kind and gentle personality would change for the worse on crack, with
extreme paranoia. (Sue Harvey) James would also isolate himself and complain of
hearing things when high on crack. (James Ford)

8. James stole and sold items such as frozen meats to support his habit, so much so
that neighbors would place orders with him. (Ernestine Harvey)

FAMILY HISTORY

1. James's mother Shirley was reported to be a drug and alcohol addict, who was killed
by a police cruiser while walking on a highway. Shirley and her siblings were said to
have been in special education classes for learning disabilities, and only Uncle
Rodney completed high school (but was apparently unable to read). (Carla
Chappell)

2. James' maternal grandmother Clara was described as "a weekend alcoholic.”
(William Chappell, Sr.)

3. James's uncle, aunts, and some cousins "seemed a bit mentally challenged.”
{Benjamin Dean) James's maternal uncle stated that "My siblings and 1 all did

Medical Expert Evaluation of James Chappell (DOB 12/27/69) - Dr. Davies

Page 12

AA07064



poorly in school, were diagnosed with learning disabilities, and were classified as
special needs students.” (Rodney Axam)

4, James's siblings "had severe behavioral problems.” (Benjamin Dean) His sister
Myra stated that "Ricky Jr., James and I have struggled with lifelong behavioral
problems, attention deficits, impulse control issues, educational difficulties, trouble
with the law and substance abuse problems. I believe that these issues stem from
our mother’s habits and activities. While we all had our individual struggles, it was
clear that James had the most problems. James is mentally slower than the rest of
us, he was diagnosed with having a learning disability at an early age, and was
placed in special education classes.” (Myra Chappell)

5. James's older sister Carla (possibly half-sibling, paternity uncertain) had a history of
special education, learning disabilities, and social difficulties. (Carla Chappell)

6. Multigenerational and pervasive substance abuse was reported. (Carla Chappell})

STRUCTURAL EVIDENCE OF BRAIN DAMAGE

1. Robert Thatcher, Ph.D., analyzed a Quantitative EEG (QEEG) recorded on 8/1/16
at Ely State Prison and summarized the findings as follows: “The power spectral
analyses were deviant from normal with excessive power in bilateral frontal regions
and especially right frontal at 9 Hz, bilateral central frontal regions and especially
left central frontal from 2 - 6 Hz in the Laplacian montage, and in the midline
central frontal region from 1 - 6 Hz in the Laplacian montage. LORETA 3-
dimensional source analyses were consistent with the surface EEG and showed
excessive current sources in the midline paracentral lobule, cingulate and medial
frontal gyri with a maximum at 4 Hz (Brodmann areas 6, 24 & 31). Elevated
LORET A current sources were also present in the right superior frontal gyrus with
a maximum at 9 Hz (Brodmann areas 8, 9 & 10). EEG amplitude asymmetry, EEG
coherence and EEG phase were abnormal, especially in bilateral frontal and
temporal relations. Reduced coherence was present in the bilateral temporal and
parietal regions which indicate reduced functional connectivity. Elevated coherence
was present in bilateral frontal and occipital regions which indicate reduced
functional differentiation. Both conditions are often related to reduced speed and
efficiency of information processing. In summary, the qEEG analyses were deviant
from normal and showed dysregulation of the bilateral frontal lobes of the
paracentral lobule, medial and superior frontal gyri and the cingulate gyrus. The
frontal lobes are involved in mood control, executive functioning, abstract thinking
and social skills. The limbic lobes are involved in motivation, emotion, learning, and
memory. The paracentral lobule is involved in bimanual coordination and
processing sensorimotor signals related to the lower extremities. The cingulate
gyrus is involved in volitional motor control and attention control by regulation of
limbic emotional and memory input to the cortex. To the extent there is deviation
from normal electrical patterns in these structures, then sub-optimal functioning is
expected.” {Thatcher report)
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BRAIN DOMAINS WITH EVIDENCE OF DYSFUNCTION

L

Intellectual Functioning - In 1996 Mr. Chappell received a Full Scale IQ of 80 on a
WAIS-R, at the 9th percentile; Performance IQ at 91 (27th percentile), Verbal IQ of
77 (borderline range, at the 6th percentile). In 2016 his Full Scale IQ was 86 on
WAIS-IV (18th percentile), with a Working Memory score of 71 (3rd percentile),
which was significantly lower (split) than his other IQ domains.

Academic Functioning - Mr. Chappell had academic achievement testing with
arithmetic performance (3rd percentile on WRAT-4) well below his overall level of
intellectual functioning and level of completed schooling. This significant
impairment is in line with previous WRAT testing below the 3rd percentile in 1986
and 1996, and his history of special education services with prominent trouble in
math. Dr. Etcoff testified that Mr. Chappell has a Learning Disability in arithmetic,
On the Texas Functional Living Scale - Money and Calculation, he scored at the
3rd-9th percentile. (Connor, Etcoff)

Learning and Memory - Mr. Chappell demonstrated significant impairments in
memory for verbel and visual information: <1st percentile on CVLT initial list
learning task; story recall on GSS-2 at 5th percentile for immediate recall and 2nd
percentile delayed; <1st percentile RCFT Immediate Recall, and 1st percentile
Delayed. (Connor)

Visuospatial Construction and Organization - Mr. Chappell had a severely impaired
performance on the RCFT Copy task, scoring below the 1st percentile (more than 3
standard deviations below the mean). This is a pattern we frequently see in our FAS
clinic, with very poor organization and failure to recognize overall shapes within the
figure that would allow for a more accurate and efficient copy. (Connor)

Attention - Multiple informants described prominent childhood symptoms of
ADHD (especially inattention and impulsivity). Dr. Etcoff testified that James
probably met criteria for ADHD in childhood. While his sustained visual attention
on one test was in the average range, he showed slowing of reaction time (9th
percentile on CPT). (Etcoff, Connor)

Processing Speed - On a task of color naming (Stroop) Mr. Chappell performed at
the 3rd percentile. He also had a relatively low score on Digit Symbol-Coding (9th
petcentile), and was qualitatively noted to have an approach to tasks that was very
slow, with latencies in responding. {Connor)

Executive Functioning - While Mr. Chappell was able to score in the average to
even above average range on tests with high external structure, he had notably
lower scores with low external structure such as the WCST, where most scores
were from 2nd to 10th percentile. He also scared below the 3rd percentile on
Unique Designs on the RFF. (Connor)

Language/Communication: Dr. Etcoff testified that Mr. Chappell would have been
eligible for a Language Disorder diagnosis (borderline Verbal IQ, Vocabulary
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subtest at the 5th percentile). Mr. Chappell scored in the average range on a test of
auditory comprehension with Dr. Connor, but only at the 3rd-9th percentile on
Texas Functional Living Scale - Communication. Multiple informants had
significant concerns about James's language abilities as a child, and on interview
Mr. Wallace rated his overall Communication at less than the 1st percentile
(severely impaired) and Ms. Chappell-King rated his receptive and expressive
communication in the moderately to severely impaired range. Mr. Ford, despite
having reported significant speech concerns from childhood, rated Mr. Chappell's
Communication at age 25 at the 25th percentile. (Etcoff, Connor)

9. Daily Living Skills: On direct testing with the Texas Functional Living Scale, Mr.
Chappell's total score was at the 5th percentile, with lowest scores in
Communication and Money & Calculation. On structured informant scales (VABS
- Daily Living Skills), Mr. Ford rated him at the 5th percentile and Mr. Wallace
rated him at 1st percentile. His life history fits well with these low scores in living
skills. (Connor)

10, Socialization Skills: On structured informant scales (VABS - Socialization), Mr.
Ford rated him at the 6th percentile, and Mr, Wallace rated him at the 3rd
percentile. These scares fit with the converging reports of impaired social abilities
from friends and family. (Connor)
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IN-PERSON INTERVIEW

1 had the opportunity to interview and examine Mr. Chappell during a 90 minute visit
on 7/11/16, in a semi-private interview room at the Ely State Prison in Ely, NV.

I explained the purpose of the visit, that his participation was optional, my licensing
status and record-keeping requirements, and that I could not maintain my typical level
of confidentiality. He appeared to understand and agreed to proceed.

PAST MEDICAL HISTORY

Mr. Chappell did not know his gestational age, birthweight, or about any specific
neonatal complications.

He recalled getting periodic pediatric and dental care. He denied a childhood history of
allergies, ear infections, sinusitis, or hearing problems. He started wearing glasses at age
10. He denied a childhood history of birth defects, seizures, loss of milestones, and
chronic heart, kidney, bone/joint, or gastrointestinal problems. He denied operations or
hospitalizations

Mr. Chappell abashedly described wetting the bed until junior high, and getting teased
for it.

Mr. Chappell denied significant head trauma. He was rear-ended at age 23, but
sustained no head injuries, loss of consciousness, or symptoms of concussion. He did
have a CT of his back at that time, which found some degenerative changes.

CURRENT MEDICAL ISSUES

Mr. Chappell currently takes metoprolol and lisinopril for hypertension, and ibuprofen
or aspirin for occasional headaches. Review of systems was otherwise negative.

DEVELOPMENTAL/ACADEMIC HISTORY

Mr. Chappell was unaware of his early developmental milestones, but was told that
after his mother was killed when he was two and half he became introverted, quiet, and
withdrawn for a period of time.

Mr. Chappell recalled being in three elementary schools, and taking “the little yellow
bus” (special education) starting in 1980-81 at his second school. He was teased for this.
He recalled that his special education services continued through high school. He was
not sure what his qualifying issues were, but recalls being told by his Junior High Special
Education teacher that he was there due to his "inability to pay attention to just about
anything.” He agrees that he was easily distracted, but cannot recall a specific workup
for ADD/ADHD and knows that he was not medicated for such.

At school, Mr. Chappell recalled having the hardest time with math. He was otherwise
vague about possible learning differences or struggles, and described himself as a "jovial
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and upbeat” student who got along well with others. He denied behavioral problems in
school until he started getting in trouble and suspended in high school for skipping
class. He reported completing 10th grade, but after getting suspended twice for truancy
his grandmother took him out of high school and into adult education classes. He didn't
tast long there, as he was "goofing” and smoking marijuana with friends instead of
attending classes. He did not complete a GED.

PSYCHIATRIC HISTORY

Mr. Chappell thinks he was taken to a counselor or psychologist by his grandmother at
10 and 12 years of age, but cannot remember what they worked on. He did not recall
other mental health diagnoses or treatment "when I was in society,” but thinks a
psychologist might have diagnosed him with something at the time of his trial in 1995.
He has not been on any psychotropic medications.

He recalled stress and anxiety during his trial, and that it "took some time to condition
myself and adapt to this place” but that he did so as reasonably as one possibly can. He
denied current symptoms of depression, anxiety, compulsive behaviors, mania,
paranoia, and auditory or visual hallucinations - "I'm a realist.”

SUBSTANCE HISTORY

James's aunt and her brother would babysit often, bring friends over, use drugs and
alcohol openly in the dining room, "then turn the music up and party. I was looking at
them and wondering about the objects on the table, and how their moods would change
and they would get happy and loud.” They would often leave alcohol, pills, and
“roaches” on the table when the party ended. He also recalled a lot of public
intoxication, substance use, and "drug houses” on his block.

Mr. Chappell reported that he was introduced to marijuana and alcohol at age 12. He
would use on weekends at first (often scrounging leftovers from his aunt’s parties). In
high school he recalled smoking weed with friends before school, and drinking too,
several days per week.

He had long been aware of crack cocaine from the neighborhood, but was scared to try
it. At age 16, Mr. Chappell was introduced to cocaine, in the form of crushed crack
cocaine mixed with marijuana and rolled up. "It was a level further, sensation-wise.” In
Michigan, he and his friends still typically stuck to marijuana and alcohol, only smoking
crack occasionally when mixed with weed. After moving to Arizona at age 20, he stuck
to alcohol at first as he didn’t have friends to use with, but then he was given some
cocaine powder by a co-worker and he "rocked it up.” Late 1990 was when he recalled
starting to use crack more habitually.
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IN-PERSON EXAMINATION
MENTAL STATUS EVALUATION

Mr. Chappell was jovial and cooperative with the visit. He was dressed in a prison
jumpsuit, with a few days stubble and a short mustache, with black bifocal glasses. His
responses were on-topic, with slow, considered speech. At times he would use more
sophisticated words incorrectly. He appeared open and unguarded in his responses,
without depressed or anxious affect. There was no evidence of pressured speech, flight
of ideas, or responding to internal stimuli.

Mr. Chappell failed the Montreal Cognitive Assessment (MoCA, version 7.1),° which is
a medical clinician screening tool for cognitive dysfunction, used in this case for a brief
qualitative evaluation. It not intended to supersede the type of neuropsychometric
testing performed by psychologists, as many of the tasks are easier than those found on
formal diagnostic tests.

His total score on the MoCA was 24 out of 30 (in the abnormal range, even with one
point added for abbreviated education), with a normal score being 26 or above. He
appeared to give good effort, without clear evidence of malingering. Subtest results are
listed below,

Visuospatial/Executive: Mr. Chappell's alternate trail-making was incorrect, as he
connected D to E without immediate correction. 3-IJ cube copy was correct as was his
"draw-a-clock”. He achieved 4 out of 5 points in this section.

Naming: He was able to correctly identify a drawing of a lion, rhinoceros, and camel.
(3/3 points)

Attention: A 5-digit list was recalled correctly with forward order, but incorrect with 3-
digit list in backward order; he showed siow response but passed a vigilance task; serial
7 subtractions from 100 was correct in terms of results but qualitatively interesting as he
originally did the answers in his head but not out loud to me, and was remarkably slow
albeit correct in his subtraction. (5/6 points)

Language: He failed to accurately repeat both sentences - “I only know that John is the
one to help today” became "I only know that John is the one that help today,” and "The
cat always hid under the couch when dogs were in the room” became "Cats always hid
under the couch when the dogs were in the room.” Language fluency {maximum
number of words he could produce that start with F) was adequate, with 12 words in
one minute. (1/3 points)

¢ Nasreddine, Z. S., Phillips, N. A., Bédirian, V., Charbonneau, S., Whitehead, V., Collin, 1., et al. (2005). The Montreal
Cognitive Assessment, MoCA: a brief screening tool for mild cognitive impairment. Journal of the American Geriatrics
Society, 53(4), 695-699.
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Abstraction: He was able to briefly describe a similarity between train & bicycle
("transportation”) but failed watch & ruler ("they both have numbers,"” which is too
concrete). (1/2 points)

Delayed Recall: He recalled the 3 of S words at 5 minutes, got one remaining word with
category prompt and the other with multiple choice prompt. (3/5 points)

Orientation: Intact to day of week, month, year, date, place, and city. (6/6 points)

His performance on this screening evaluation indicated potential problems in
visuospatial/executive skills, attention, language, abstract thinking, and memory. Such
results would have prompted a recommendation for a full neuropsychometric
evaluation had one not already been performed, especially with a known prenatal
alcohol exposure and history of special education.

LIMITED PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

The prison declined my request to take measurements or conduct a contact physical
examination with my customary equipment. The prison staff did take measurements
earlier in the morning, and a correctional officer took a few confirmatory facial
photographs at my direction.

Weight: 256 pounds on facility scale per prison staff, which is at the 99th percentile.
Height: 72 inches per prison staff, which is at the 81st percentile.

Body Mass Index (BMI): 34.7

Occipitofrontal head circumference (OFC): 22 inches per prison staff (50th percentile).

General: Pleasant middle-aged Aftican-American male clothed in orange jumpsuit with
white t-shirt, unshackled. He entered with a mild limp which he attributed to a recent
basketball injury.

Head, Eyes, Ears, Nose, Throat (HEENT): Upper lip was a 3 (just below the FAS
range), using the in-person guide appropriate for his ethnicity. Philtrum (vertical groove
between nose and lip) depth was a 3-4 on the lip-philtrum guide (on the borderline of
the FAS range, obscured somewhat by facial hair). Palpebral fissure lengths (width of
visible eye openings) were measured manually at 29 mm bilaterally.

Head shape was not markedly abnormal, although he did have a sloping forehead. No
midface flattening. Typical ear position and rotation, with mild "railroad track"” ear
conftguration on the right. Conjunctivae clear. Palate intact.

Neck: No visible thyromegaly.

Chest: Typical respiratory rate with comfortable breathing.
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Abdomen: Soft, non-tender, without palpable organomegaly.
Skin: No birthmarks of note on face or distal arms.

Extremities: No clinodactyly, unusual palmar creases, elbow valgus or evidence of
radio-ulnar synostosis.

Neurologic: Right-handed. Cranial nerves II-XII grossly intact. Visual fields intact.
Palmar digit recognition intact. Slow rapid alternating movements, with deliberate but
accurate fingertip touching. Finger-nose-finger accurate but slow. Unsteady tandem
gait, possibly due to sore knee. Romberg negative. No evident tics, tremors, or unusual
movements.

PHOTOGRAPHIC ANALYSIS OF FACIAL FEATURES’

The University of Washington FAS Facial Photographic Analysis Software is used by
clinics around the world to analyze the sentinel facial features of FAS, and has been
shown to be more accurate and reliable than manual evaluations, particularly in eye
measurements.® The photographs analyzed here were taken at Dr. Paul Connor's visit,
when Mr. Chappell was clean-shaven.

Palpebral fissure lengths (eye widths): Mean palpebral fissure lengths (PFL) of 28.5
mm, which is -1.5 standard deviations (SD) below the mean on the losub PFL chart,
which is a African-American normed chart.

Lip: Lip circularity 46.9, rank of 3 on the the University of Washington African-
American Lip-Philtrum Guide (which is just below the FAS range on a scale of 1-5, with
5 being the most severe, and 4-5 being in the FAS range).

Philtrum: Rank of 3 (very close to 4, on the borderline of the FAS range on a scale of 1-
5) on the University of Washington African-American Lip-Philtrum Guide.

" Astley S. J. Fetal Alcohol Syndrome Facial Photographic Analysis Software, version 2.0.
* Astley, S.J. (2015). Palpebral fissure length measurement: accuracy of the FAS facial photographic analysis software and
inaccuracy of the ruler. Journal of Population Therapeutics and Clinical Pharmacology, 22(1), e9-26.
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DIAGNOSIS AND OPINION

Based on my examination of James Chappell and review of relevant ancillary materials,
it is my opinion to a reasonable degree of medical certainty that Mr. Chappell has
Alcohol-Related Neurodevelopmental Disorder (ARND) using the Institute of
Medicine (I0M) Criteria.® This is a diagnosis under the umbrella of Fetal Alcohol
Spectrum Disorders (FASD).

When evaluating for a Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder, there are 4 main areas to
explore: history of prenatal alcohol exposure, evidence of growth deficiency, degree of
FAS facial features, and level of brain dysfunction. A process of differential diagnosis is
also important, to consider other genetic, prenatal, postnatal, medical, and psychiatric
explanations for a patient’s outcomes.

FASD diagnosis is multi-disciplinary, and it is typical for medical professionals to rely
on the reports of colleagues such as psychologists when evaluating level of brain
dysfunction, adaptive functioning, and life history.

IOM DIAGNOSTIC CRITERIA FOR ARND

The Institute of Medicine criteria for ARND are summarized as follows:

Alcohol-Related Effects

Clinical conditions in which there is a history of maternal alcohol exposure,*® and
where clinical or animal research has linked maternal alcohol ingestion to an observed
outcome.

Alcohol-related neurodevelopmental disorder (ARND)
Presence of:

A. Evidence of CNS neurodevelopmental abnormalities, as in any one of the following:
— decreased cranial size at birth

— structural brain abnormalities (e.g., microcephaly, partial or complete agenesis of the
corpus callosum, cerebellar hypoplasia)

— neurological hard or soft signs (as age appropriate), such as impaired fine motor skills,
neurosensory hearing loss, poor tandem gait, poor eye-hand coordination

and/or:

B. Evidence of a complex pattern of behavior or cognitive abnormalities that are
inconsistent with developmental level and cannot be explained by familial background or
environment alone, such as learning difficulties; deficits in school performance; poor
impulse control; problems in social perception; deficits in higher level receptive and

* Stratton, K. R., Howe, C. ., Battaglia, F. C., Institute of Medicine (U.S.). Division of Biobehavioral Sciences and Mental
Disorders. Committee to Study Fetal Alcohol Syndrome, National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism (U.S.).
(1996). Fetal Alcohol Syndrome: Diagnosis, Epidemiology, Prevention, and Treatment. National Academies Press.
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expressive language; poor capacity for abstraction or metacognition; specific deficits in
mathematical skills; or problems in memory, attention, or judgment

® A pattern of excessive intake characterized by substantial, regular intake or heavy episodic
drinking. Evidence of this pattern may include frequent episodes of intoxication,
development of tolerance or withdrawal, social problems related to drinking, legal problems
related to drinking, engaging in physically hazardous behavior while drinking, or alcohol-
related medical problems such as hepatic disease.

Y As further research is completed and as, or if, lower quantities or variable patterns of
alcohol use are associated with ARBD or ARND, these patterns of alcohol use should be
incorporated into the diagnostic criteria.'®

ALCOHOL

Mr. Chappell was exposed to substantial, regular maternal alcohol intake: several hard
liquor drinks per occasion several times a week, regularly witnessed to be intoxicated
during this pregnancy. His mother is long deceased, but this exposure is reported by
multiple friends, partners, and family members who observed her drinking and/or
intoxicated during the pregnancy. This meets original [OM criteria for "a pattern of
excessive intake."

Even if the alcohol exposure were at a lesser level, harms from maternal drinking at low
to moderate levels have been shown in multiple research reports subsequent to
publication of the IOM criteria;" 2 " this is reflected in the U.S. Surgeon General
advisory that “No amount of alcohol consumption can be considered safe during
pregnancy.”™

GROWTH

James's birth weight was at the 16th percentile, and his height at 5.5 years was short, at
the 4th percentile. Other early childhood birth data is lacking. Mr. Chappell does not
show current deficits in weight or height. The growth impairments in FAS are typically
most evident in the newborn and early childhood period, and often "catch up” in

1% Stratton, K. R., Howe, C. J., Battaglia, F. C., Institute of Medicine (U.S.). Division of Biobehavioral Sciences and Mental
Disorders. Committee to Study Fetal Alcohol Syndrome, National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcohalism (U.S.).
(1996). Fetal Alcchol Syndrome: Diagnosis, Epidemiology, Prevention, and Treatment, National Academies Press.

" Sood B, Delaney-Black V, Covington C, Nordstrom-Klee B, Ager J, Templin T, et al. Prenatal alcohol exposure and
childhood behavior at age 6 to 7 years: I. dose-tesponse effect. Pediatrics 2001;108:E34.

¥ Flak AL, Su S, Bertrand ], Denny CH, Kesmodel US, Cogswell ME. The Association of Mild, Moderate, and Binge
Prenatal Alcohol Exposure and Child Neuropsychological Outcomes: A Meta-Analysis. Alcohol Clin Exp Res 2013;38:214-
26.

¥ Astley SJ. Profile of the first 1,400 patients receiving diagnostic evaluations for fetal alcohol spectrum disorder at the
Washington State Fetal Alcohol Syndrome Diagnostic & Prevention Netwark, Can J Clin Pharmacol 2010;17:¢132-64.

" United States Public Health Service Office of the Surgeon General. A 2005 Message to Women from the U.S, Surgeon
General. Centers for Disease Control, Washington, DC 2005.
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adolescence.” However, Mr. Chappell's scant available growth history does not meet
growth criteria for FAS at this time.

FACIAL FEATURES

Mir. Chappell has an upper lip thickness that is just in the normal range (arank 3on a
scale of 1 to 5 where 4 and 5 are in the FAS range). He has a philtrum (vertical groove
between nose and upper lip) on the borderline between normal and FAS range. He has
palpebral fissure lengths (eye widths) that are at the 7th percentile (-1.5 SD). Mr.
Chappell is thus close to the FAS facial phenotype in all three sentinel features but does
not meet criteria for the face of FAS.

In practice, the classic face of FAS is uncommon: only 9% of our FAS clinic patients
have these features.' Research suggests that the facial features of FAS require an
alcohol exposure during a very narrow window of opportunity, around days 19-20 of
pregnancy. The developing brain can be damaged at any point in pregnancy.

BRAIN

In an FASD evaluation, we look for structural and/or functional evidence of brain
damage. Mr. Chappell has not had a head CT or MRI, we lack birth/childhood head
circumferences, and his adult head circumference is in the typical range.

My exam found no evidence of neurological hard signs (impairments in basic motor,
sensory, and reflex behaviors that typically indicate a focal deficit) but did note some
soft signs (non-localizing neurological abnormalities) such as slow rapid alternating
movements and finger-nose-finger touching, as well as an unsteady tandem gait,
(possibly influenced by sore knee). His non-dominant hand finger-tapping was at the
4th percentile and multiple informants described poor coordination as a child.

In addition, Mr. Chappell has an abnormal qEEG. qEEG compares surface
measurements of brain electrical activity to a normative database, digitally analyzing
various aspects of brain function such as electrical power, asymmetry, coherence and
phase lag between regions. Use of LORETA (Low Resolution Tomography) techniques
permits findings to be mapped to brain anatomical locations.”

Mt. Chappell’s qEEG is abnormal in regions (frontal and limbic lobes) and in patterns
(EEG coherence suggestive of reduced speed and efficiency of information processing)
that correspond to his functional impairments. It would be inappropriate to use QEEG

¥ Cartet, R, C., Jacobson, J. L., Sokol, R. ]., Avison, M. J., & Jacobson, S. W. (2013). Fetal alcohol-related growth restriction
from birth through young adulthood and moderating effects of maternal prepregnancy weight. Alcoholism Clinicat and
Experimental Research, 37(3), 452-462.

% Astley, 5. J. (2010). Profile of the first 1,400 patients receiving diagnostic evaluations for fetal alcohol spectrum disarder at
the Washington State Fetal Alcohol Syndrome Diagnostic & Prevention Network. The Canadien Journal of Clinical
Pharmacology, 17(1), el32-64.

17 Coburn, K. L., Lauterbach, E. C., Boutros, N. N., Black, K. J., Arciniegas, D. B., & Coffey, C. E. (2006). The value of
quantitative electroencephalography in clinical psychiatry: a report by the Committee on Research of the American
Neurapsychiatric Association, The Journal of Neuropsychiatry and Clinical Neurasciences, 18(4), 460-500.
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results alone in diagnosis without clinical correlation, and in routine FASD practice in-
depth neuropsychometric testing is much more commonly used. However, it can be
argued that a QEEG with significant abnormalities when compared to a large normative
database provides some convergent evidence of brain damage/dysfunction, and might
serve as a “digital soft sign.”

In 1996 qEEG was in use, and by 2007 techniques such as LORETA had been refined.
The IOM authors were ambivalent about the use of neurodiagnostic technigues, citing
concerns that CT and MRI brain scans at the time lacked large normative databases.
Nonetheless, IOM criteria included examples of structural brain abnormalities (partial
or complete agenesis of the corpus callosum, cerebellar hypoplasia) which would
require brain scans to diagnose in a living patient. Currently (and in 2007) the use of
MRI to diagnosis significant structural abnormalities in FASD is widely accepted, so
standards have clearly evolved.

Thus it is unclear whether Mr. Chappell meets IOM criterion A for evidence of CNS
neurodevelopmental (structural) abnormalities. He does not need to, since ARND
requires evidence of structural abnormalities and/or functional cognitive abnormalities.
In practice the latter is more common.

Multiple evaluators have found evidence of dysfunction in Mr. Chappell's brain
functioning in the following areas: intellectual functioning, academic functioning,
learning and memory, visuospatial construction and organization, attention, processing
speed, executive functioning, language/communication, daily living skills, and
socialization skills.

The domains with most significant impairment appear to be his learning disability in
math, significant impairments in memory, severely impaired performance on
visuospatial organization, poor executive functioning performance with low external
structure, and his overall very poor real-world and testing performance in
language/communication/social use of language domains. In addition, his teacher, peer,
and family reports suggest that James would have received an ADHD diagnosis in
childhood had he received a madern evaluation.

Mr. Chappell's pattern of disability is consistent with patterns of dysfunction seen in
FASD, and satisfies IOM criteria for "B. Evidence of a complex pattern of behavior or
cognitive abnormalities that are inconsistent with developmental level and cannot be
explained by familial background or environment alone ...". Familial background and
environmental impacts will be addressed in the following section on differential
diagnosis, but by themselves do not convincingly explain his pattern of cognitive
impairments.

Thus Mr. Chappell meets I0M criteria for Alcohol-Related Neurodevelopmental
Disorder (ARND), which is a diagnosis under the umbrella of Fetal Alcohol Spectrum
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Disorders (FASD).! It is also worth noting that Mr. Chappell would receive a DSM-5

diagnosis of Neurodevelopmental Disorder Associated with Prenatal Aicohol Exposure
(ND-PAE, code F88)."

The DSM-5 criteria published in May 2013 address FASD in two sections. In the
criteria for Other Specified Neurodevelopmental Disorder (F88), the only specific
example given is for *Neurodevelopmental disorder associated with prenatal alcohol
exposure: Neurodevelopmental diserder associated with prenatal alcohol exposure is
characterized by a range of developmental disabilities following exposure to alcohol in
utero.” Mr. Chappell qualifies for this diagnosis based on the evidence presented above.
Maore specific criteria for Neurobehavioral Disorder associated with Prenatal Alcohol
Exposure (ND-PAE) are proposed in Conditions for Future Study, and Mr. Chappell
meets all seven proposed criteria for ND-PAE.”

ADAPTIVE FUNCTIONING

It is important to note that the gap between some of Mr. Chappell’s more intact testing
scores (such as Performance 1Q), his academic achievement that is lower than predicted
by IQ, and his very dysfunctional adaptive functioning fits a "step-down" pattern
frequently seen in people with ARND. They can perform at a relatively higher level in a
one-on-one, focused testing environment, but have trouble translating that performance
into the more complex environment of school, and have even more difficulty using their
limited mental capacities in the less-structured life of an adolescent/young adult. They
can perform more basic, rote skills but when complexity is intreduced, or the need for
abstract thought, interpretation, or judgment, their adaptive “real world” performance
can be surprisingly impaired.

The accounts of James's day-to-day impairments from family, friends, and a former
probation officer are striking in how well they fit typical FASD features: slower and
more disabled than siblings from a young age, slow/simple language, ADHD symptoms,
declining school performance as demands increased, having to learn things over and
over, attempts to cover for deficits like reading difficulties, particular disability in math,
difficulty with abstract concepts, poor coordination, lack of sense of direction,
prolonged toileting and hygiene issues, very immature with widening gaps between
James and peers over time, gullibility, dependence on more functional peers and family
members, juvenile history of repeated impressionable/impulsive rule violations
(stealing keychain, following peers into empty houses, etc.), and inability to function
independently or hold a job as aduit.

Adaptive functioning deficits are not required for a diagnosis of FASD, but it is notable
that the adverse life outcomes {disrupted school experience, trouble with the law,

1 He also meets 4-Digit Code criteria for Static Encephalopathy, Alcohol Exposed, which is equivalent to ARND,

¥ American Psychiatric Association DSM-5 Task Force (2013). Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders :
DSM-5. American Psychiatric Association, Washington, DC.

» Ibid., pages 798-9.
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confinement, drug/alcohol problems) experienced by Mr. Chappell fit a classic pattern
of fetal alcohol “secondary disabilities,”# These result from having the primary
disabilities (brain damage that you’re born with) of FASD but none of the identified
protective factors such as early diagnosis of FASD and a stable, sober, and supportive
childhood home.

A landmark investigation called “the Seattle 500 study” explored risk factors that
influence these adverse FASD outcomes. What is remarkable about Mr. Chappell’s
history is that in addition to a high-risk pattern of prenatal alcohol exposure and current
ARND diagnosis, his formative years were marked by alf of the risk factors shown in
this study to increase the risk of adverse outcomes: no early diagnosis of FASD, lack of
stable/nurturing caregiving, multiple home placements, IQ over 70, domestic violence
and abuse, poor quality home envirenment in middle childhood, caregivers who abused
alcohol, many life basic needs not met, male gender, and having ARND rather than
FAS. These risk factors increase the odds of adverse outcomes 2- to 4-fold.*

Indeed, individuals like Mr. Chappell with ARND rather than FAS, and those with
broadly normal IQ rather than intellectual disability, are actually at higher risk for
adverse life outcomes. This may be because they are less likely to receive an early
diagnosis and appropriate supports.

DIFFERENTIAL DIAGNOSIS

Etiologies such as genetic inheritance and other adverse pre- and post-natal factors also
likely contributed to the brain dysfunction displayed by Mr. Chappell.

His available family history contains abundant drug and alcohol abuse, some vague
mental health risk, mother/siblings/aunts/uncles with varying degrees of special
education needs for learning and behavioral problems, and possible ADHD in siblings,
but is net notable for a formally diagnosed pattern of intellectual disability or genetic
syndromes. Thus his maternal-side family history carries significant risk for attentional
and learning disabilities, and both sides confer marked risk for substance abuse.

What is challenging with such a family history is assessing the relative contribution of
genetic risk versus environmental/modeling influences versus multigenerational FASD
{his grandmother was noted to drink as well, although we lack detailed exposure history
for her children). It is likely that these influences interact with each other to increase
risk. For example, research shows that prenatal alcohol exposure increases lifetime odds

 Streissguth AP, Kanter J. The Challenge of Fetal Alcohol Syndrome: Overcoming Secondary Disabilities. University of
Washington Press; 1997.

2 Streissguth, A. P., Bookstein, F. L., Barr, H. M., Sampson, P. D., 0'Malley, K., & Young, J. K. (2004). Risk factors for
adverse life outcomes in fetal alcohol syndrome and fetal alcohol effects. Journal of Developmemtal & Behavioral Pediatrics,
25(4), 228-238,
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of alcoholism above any expected genetic risk; the fetus develops "a taste for alcohol” in
the womb.?

Mr. Chappell was also reportedly prenatally exposed to heroin, cocaine, and tobacco.
The presence of prenatal illegal drug exposure often overshadows alcohol in lay
people's recollection and assignment of blame for outcomes. However, the research is
clear that the legal product - alcohol - is the most worrisome exposure. Alcohol is a
known teratogen; the other reported substances are not.

Prenatal opiate (heroin) exposure can cause neonatal withdrawal symptoms, may lead
to mild memory and perceptual difficulties in older children, and can increase
susceptibility to adverse childhood experiences. Cocaine use during pregnancy appears
to be associated with irritability in young children and language difficulties in
children/adolescents but is not associated with global deficits. Tobacco use during
pregnancy increases risk for low birthweight, ADHD, and antisocial behaviors.**

In general, we worry more about exposures to toxins in the prenatal and early postnatal
period than later in childhood, as the brain is more vulnerable during critical periods of
organ development and rapid growth. Mr. Chappell was exposed to various
environmental contaminants around his grandmother’s home in Nellers Court. Of the
toxins listed, most were solvents that are not clearly associated with long-term cognitive
impacts. PCE (perchloroethylene/tetrachloroethylene) was one that can lead to
headaches and later impairments in cognitive and motor functioning in adults that
wortked in or lived near dry cleaners that used this solvent. However, the literature on
PCE and childhood exposures is "very limited ... the data supporting a cause-and-effect
relationship for these effects are inadequate.”? The current lead contaminant was
reportedly introduced to the site after his family moved. However, childhood lead
exposure was common at the time. Typical lead exposures of that era could lower 1Q
but not typically by more than 5-10 points.?

Postnatal adverse risk factors are extensive, and include early childhood neglect by his
drug-abusing parents resulting in child services placement with his maternal
grandmother at age 2; death of his mother at age 3 which had a significant impact in
James, leading to withdrawal and mutism; emotional neglect and physical abuse in his
grandmother's home; lack of appropriate supervision in childhood; lack of appropriate
male role models; pervasive exposure to violence and substance abuse in his home and
neighborhood; traumatic loss of the only adult in the family that showed him affection

1 Alati, R., Mamun, Al, A,, Williams, G. M., O'Callaghan, M., Najman, ]. M., & Bor, W. (2006). In utero alcohal exposure
and prediction of alcoho! disorders in early adulthood: a birth cohort study. Archives of Generat Psychiatry, 63(9), 1009-
1016.

* Davies, J. K., & Bledsoe, J. M. (2005). Prenatal alcohol and drug exposures in adoption. Pediatric Clinics of North
Amernica, §2(5), 1369-93, vii.

= Apency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDRY). (1997). Toxicological Profile for Tetrachloroethylene
(Update}. U.S. Public Health Service, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Atlanta, GA.

# Lanphear, B. P., Hornung, R., Khoury, J., & Yolton, K. (2005). Low-level environmental lead exposure and children's
intellectual function: an international pooled analysis. Environmental Health Perspectives, 113(7), 894-899.
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at age 11; signs of untreated childhood depression; being easily influenced by peers
involved in drugs and crime; and adolescent substance abuse (alcohol, marijuana, and
cocaine). This life history multiplies the risk of adverse outcomes such as disrupted
school experience, trouble with the law, confinement, mental health diagnoses,
drug/alcohol problems; as described above, these risk factors increase the odds of such
secondary disabilities in FASD 2- to 4-fold.”

Medically, Mr. Chappell's available history does not include significant episodes of
traumatic brain injury. His history and physical examination did not suggest an
alternative genetic or neurological diagnosis.

Mr. Chappell had a prominent substance use disorder in adolescence and early
adulthood. He reportedly had a high tolerance to alcohol in adolescence, used marijuana
regularly, and developed a worsening cocaine addiction in young adulthood. Substance
abuse can have cognitive impacts, but these effects tend to improve with sobriety.

Adolescence does appear to be a vulnerable period where "Research has shown that
heavy drinking during adolescence can lead to decreased perfermance on cognitive
tasks of memory, attention, spatial skills, and executive functioning. ... Studies have also
shown that marijuana use during adolescence can result in decreases in cognitive
functioning, particularly learning and sequencing scores. ... Longitudinal studies are
essential to fully understand how alcohol and marijuana use affect adolescent
neurodevelopment.”?®

A review of long-term cognitive effects of cocaine abuse found that "Long-term cocaine
use is associated with cognitive impairment in most domains. The strongest and most
convincing evidence applies to the domains of sustained attention, response inhibition,
memory, reward-based decision making, and psychomotor performance.”** However,
this and similar reviews do not specifically address cognitive recovery from
adolescent/young adult abuse followed by a long period of abstinence.

It appears that Mr. Chappell's drug abuse may have worsened his preexisting deficits
but is not a convincing alternate diagnosis. His drug abuse does not account for his
childhood-onset disabilities and appears unlikely to adequately account for deficits years
after his period of substance abuse.

Finally, Mr. Chappell has a history of childhood onset very poor self-image, depression,
inattention, and disruptive behaviors at school, where he qualified as "Emotionally
Impaired.” Adult evaluators noted "enormously low seif-worth,"” fear of rejection,

7 Streissguth, A. P., Bookstein, F. L., Barr, H. M., Sampson, P. D., 0'Malley, K., & Young, J. K. (2004), Risk factors for
adverse life outcomes in fetal alcohol syndrome and fetal alcohol effects. Journal of Developmental & Behavioral Pediatrics,
25(4), 228-238.

# Squeglia, L. M., Jacobus, J., & Tapert, S. F. (2009). The influence of substance use on adolescent brain development.
Clinical EEG and Neuroscience : Official Journal of the EEG and Clinical Neuroscience Society (ENCS), 40(1}, 31-38.

» Spronk, D. B., van Wel, J. H. P., Ramaekers, ]. G., & Verkes, R. J. (2013). Characterizing the cognitive effects of cocaine:
comprehensive review. Neuroscience and Biobehavioral Reviews, 37(8), 1838-1859.
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mistrust of others, abandonment anxiety, dependent personality type, and borderline
personality characteristics. Mental health problems are frequently comorbid with
FASD:s. In one study of adults with FASD, 92% met criteria for an Axis-I disorder such
as alcohol or drug dependence (60%), depression (44%), psychotic symptoms (40%), and
anxiety or bipolar disorder (20% each). In addition, 48% met criteria for at least one
personality disorder.®

It is vanishingly rare to see an adult in a FAS clinic that does not have some
combination of at-risk family history, prenatal alcohol exposure, other prenatal
influences, adverse childhood experiences, and adolescent/aduit issues such as
substance abuse and mental illness. It is not scientifically possible to precisely tease
apart the negative influences of all of these factors. However, Mr. Chappell's childhood-
onset disabilities, functional evidence of brain deficits consistent with prenatal alcohol
impacts, and life-long adaptive functioning that is very typical of individuals with FASD
implicate prenatal alcohol damage as a primary cause.

SUMMARY

James Chappell has Alcohol-Related Neurodevelopmental Disorder (ARND), also
known as Neurodevelopmental Disorder associated with Prenatal Alcohol Exposure
(ND-PAE), which is a Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder. This syndrome was present at
birth, but compounded by genetic risks, other prenatal exposures, adverse childhood
experiences, possible damage from environmental contaminants, mental illness, and
substance abuse.

Based on my review of the available records and my in-person examination, [ hold the
above opinions to a reasonable degree of medical certainty. The analysis I have
conducted could have been conducted by any qualified FASD professional at the time
of Mr. Chappell's trial (1996) and penalty re-hearing (2007).

The diagnosis of ARND made here establishes that Mr. Chappell does have a mental
disease and defect. By virtue of this disorder being a result of exposing a fetus to a toxic
substance, this condition was present before the age of 18 and preceded the subject
offense.

Thank you for the opportunity to examine Mr. Chappell,

M
Julian Davies, MD

® Famy, C., Streissguth, A. P., & Unis, A. 5. (1998). Mental illness in adults with fetal alcohol syndrome or fetal alcohol
effects. The American Journal of Psychiatry, 155(4), 552-554.
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MATERIALS RELIED UPON (Amended)

DOCUMENTS PROVIDED TO DR. JULIAN DAVIES

School Grades Chart, James M. Chappell

School Testing Chart, James M. Chappell

Social History Chronology

Preliminary Chart, Current Neuropsychological Testing of James Chappell
Preliminary Neuropsychological Assessment Services Summary Scores, James Chappell
Excerpts from [-File from Ely State Prison for James Chappell

Excerpts of Medical Records from Ely State Prison for James Chappell
Juvenile Record, James M. Chappell

Photos of James Chappell {taken at Ely State Prison (7-11-2016)

Nevada Supreme Court Opinion (12-30-1998)

Dr. Jonathan Lipman, Final Report (8-12-2006)

Dr. Matthew Mendel, Final Report (6-27-2016)

Dr. Lewis Etcoff, Report (6-13-1996})

Dr. Lewis Etcoff, Supplemental Report {9-28-1996)

Quantitative EEG Analysis, Dr. Robert M. Thatcher {8-1-2016)

Dr. Natalie Novick Brown, Final Report (8-3-2016)

Dr. Paul Connor, Final Report {7-15-20006)

School records, James M. Chappell

1976-1977 Moores Park School, Semester Report

1979-1980 Moores Park School, Student Progress Report
09-05-1980 Class assignment

09-0-1980 Daily Progress Report

1981, Forest View School, Student Progress Report

1982, Maple Grove School, Certificate of Completion-6" grade
06-14-1978 Lansing Schaol District Environmental Education Center, Certificate
1978, Moores Park School, Certificate for Field's Day

Junior Citizen’s Award, Officer Friendly Program

Lansing School District, Cumulative School Record

1977 Moores Park School, Certificate

Declarations of:

Angela Mitchell (8-9-16)
Benjamin Dean (4-17-16)
Bret Robello {9-29-16)
Carla Chappell (4-23-16)
Charles Dean (4-19-16)
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¢ Clare McGuire {8-19-16)

¢ Dina Richardson (8-9-16)

e Ernestine ‘Sue’ Harvey (7-2-16})
¢  Fred Dean (6-11-16)

* Georgette Sneed (5-14-16)

s Harold Kuder (4-17-16)

s James Ford (5-19-16)

¢ James Wells (1-22-16)

e Joetta Ford (5-18-16)

s Lila Godard (8-5-16)

* Louise Underwood (9-22-16)

s Madge Cage (9-24-16)

e Michael Chappell (5-14-16)

s  Michael Pollard (9-14-16)

¢ Myra Chappell-King (5-20-16)
e  Phillip Underwood {4-17-16)

e« Rodney Axam {4-16-16)

s Rose Wells-Canon {4-16-16)

= Rosemary Pacheco (8-9-16)

e Sharon Axam (4-18-16)

e Sheron Barkley (4-16-16)

o Shirley Sorrell (9-23-16)

e Terrance Wallace (5-16-16}

¢ Verlean Townsend (9-23-16}

e William Earl Bonds {5-13-16)

¢ William Roger Moore {4-17-16)
* Willie Richard Chappell, Jr. {(5-16-16)
¢ Willie Richard Chappell, Sr. (4-16-16)
o Wiilie Wiltz, Jr. {7-28-16)

Trial and 2™ Penalty Trial Testimony of:

e Trial Testimony, Dr. Lewis Etcoff (10-15-1996)
s 2nd Penalty Tria! Testimony, Dr. Lewis Etcoff (3-16-07)
¢ 2nd Penaity Trial Testimony, Dr. William Danton (3-14-07)
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Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder (FASD)

FASD: Umbrella term for group of conditions
caused by maternal alcohol consumption,

which result in CNS Dysfunction.

e FAS (fetal alcohol syndrome)

e PFAS (partial fetal alcohol syndrome)

e ARND (alcohol-related neurodevelopmental disorder)

FAE: Previous term for PFAS, ARND

» Other substances can affect gestating infants,
but none do so in the same manner as alcohol
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Alcohol is a Teratogenic Drug

Alcohol freely passes from the mother’s
blood into the fetus.

A fetus has no functioning liver early in
gestation.

Fetal brain cell death commences within
12 hours of maternal alcohol exposure.
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Sulik KK. Genesis of Alcohol-Induced Craniofacial Dysmorphism.
Exp Biol Med 230(6): 366- 375, 2005, Figure 4 at page 370.
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Teratogenic Effects
of Prenatal Alcohol Exposure

» Direct toxic effect of alcohol on cells

e Direct toxic effect of acetaldehyde on cells

¢ Hypoxia from impaired placental/fetal blood flow
e Effect on migration of cells

e Effect on apoptosis
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IQ distributions in the Primary Disabilities Sample: FAS and FAE
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|IOM Guidelines

D. Evidence of CNS neurodevelopmental abnormalities, as in:

— Decreased cranial size

— Structural brain abnormalities

— Neurological hard or soft signs such as impaired fine motor skills,

poor eye hand coordination

E. Evidence of a complex pattern of behavior or cognitive
abnormalities that are inconsistent with developmental level and
cannot be explained by familial background or environment alone,
such as learning difficulties; deficits in school performance; poor
impulse control; problems in social perception; deficits in higher

level receptive and expressive language; poor capacity for
abstraction or metacognition; specific deficits in mathematical

skills; or problems in memory, attention, or judgment

12
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CDC Guidelines

e Functional Deficits
— 1Q 2 SD below average
— Deficits 1 SD below average in at least 3 domains

13

Cognitive or developmental or Discrepancies (Including
academics)

Executive functioning
Motor functioning
Attention or hyperactivity
Social skills

Other domains that can include sensory problems,
pragmatic language problems (receptive and expressive
communication), and learning and memory deficits among
others (not meant to be an all inclusive list)
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Using CDC Criteria to Apply to IOM

* CDC criteria is:
— More structured
— More able to be applied consistently and reliably

dCross cases

» Therefore, they could be used as a method of
quantifying I0M requirements for a
“...complex pattern of behavior or cognitive
abnormalities...”

14
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What is a Neuropsychological Assessment

A series of tests designed to measure brain functioning
Does not diagnose “brain damage” per se but “brain dysfunction”
Tests based on functions found to be impaired in people with damage to

brain in multiple areas

— Usually learned from cases in which specific regions of brain have been
damaged resulting in specific deficits (i.e. Phineas Gage, H.M.)

— Memory deficits related to damage to parts of temporal lobe (hippocampus)
— Executive function deficits related to damage to frontal lobes
Looking for Significant Deficits (more than 84% of the population
performed better
— Further broken into levels of severity (e.g. mild, moderate, severe)

— However, at whatever level, it refers to impairment in functioning (e.g.
intellectual disability)

However, A diagnosis of an FASD does mean that the individual has brain
damage due to the prenatal alcohol exposure.

15
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